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For purpo%es of this Annual Report on Form 10- K (Form 10- K), the terms “ TriNet, ” “ the Company, e,” “us”and“
our ” refer to TriNet Group, Inc., and its subsidiaries. This Form 10- K contains statements that are not hrstorrcal in nature, are
predictive in nature, or that depend upon or refer to future events or conditions or otherwise contain forward- looking statements
within the meaning of Section 21 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. Forward- looking statements are often identified by the use of words such as, but not limited to, “ ability,
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“anticipate, ” “ believe, ” ““ can, ” “ continue, could, ” ““ design, estimate, ” *“ expect, ”” “ forecast, ” “ hope, ” “ impact,
intend, ” “ may, ” “ outlook, ” ““ plan, ” “ potential, ” *“ predict, ” “ project, ” ““ seek, ” *“ should, ” “* strategy, ” *“ target, ” *“ value,
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will, ” “ would ” and similar expressions or variations intended to identify forward- looking statements. Examples of

forward lookrng statements 1nclude among others TriNet’ s expectatron% regardrng ﬂ‘rafket—fespeﬁse—te—new—&tppeﬁ—seﬁ‘tee

-impaet—e#eur—’PrNet—Peep{eFeree—eeﬂ-fefeﬂee— our expectations regarding medrcal utrhzatron rates by our WSES and the nnpact

of 1nﬂat10n on our 1n§urance costs; the effect that our qtock repurchase program will have on our bu%rnes% the 1mpact of ot

e-f—planned improvements to our technology platform aﬁd—H—RI—S—seft—w&fe—and Whether they erl meet the needi of our current
clients and attract new ones; ;

eperattons;-our ability to improve operating efficiencies ; our strateglc reahgnment and related restructurlng mltlatlves the
impact of our client service initiatives and whether they enhance client experience and satisfaction; our continued ability to
provide access to a broad range of benefit programs on a cost- effective basis; our expectations regarding the volume and
severity of insurance claims and insurance claim trends; the effectiveness of our risk strategies for, and management of, workers'
compensation, health benefit insurance costs and deductibles, and-EPErisk:-the metrics that may be indicators of future
financial performance; the relative value of our benefit offerings versus those SMBs can independently obtain; the impact that
our benefit offerings have for SMBs seeking to attract and retain employees; the principal competitive drivers in our market; our
plans to grow net new clients and manage client attrition; our investment strategy and its impact on our ability to generate future
interest income, net income, and Adjusted EBITDA; seasonal trends and their impact on our business; the payment of
dividends of $ 0. 25 per share in the first quarter of 2025; fluctuations in the period- to- period timing of when we incur
certain operating expenses ; the impact of increases and decreases in interest rates on our investments and borrowings ; the
estimates and assumptions we use to prepare our financial statements; our belief we can meet our present and reasonably
foreseeable cash needs and future commitments through existing liquid assets and continuing cash flows from corporate
operating activities; and other expectations, outlooks and forecasts on our future business, operational and financial
performance. Important factors that could cause actual results, level of activity, performance or achievements to differ
materially from those expressed or implied by these forward- looking statements are discussed above and throughout this Form
10- K, including under Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, and Part II, Item 7. MD & A, and in the other periodic filings we make
with the SEC, and including risk factors associated with: our ability to manage unexpected changes in workers’ compensation
and health insurance claims and costs by WSEs; our ability to mitigate the unique business risks we face as a co- employer; the
effects of volatility in the financial and economic environment on the businesses that make up our client base; our inability to
realize or sustain the expected benefits from our business realignment initiatives; loss of clients for reasons beyond our
control and the short- term contracts we typically use with our clients; the impact of regional or industry- specific economic and
health factors on our operations; the impact of failures or limitations in the business systems and centers we rely upon; the
impact of discontinuing our discretionary credits on our business and client loyalty and retention; changes in our insurance
coverage or our relationships with key insurance carriers; our ability to improve our services and technology to satisfy client and
regulatory expectations; our ability to effectively integrate businesses we have acquired or may acquire in the future; our ability
to effectively manage and improve our operational effectiveness and resiliency; our ability to attract and retain qualified
personnel; the effects of increased competition and our ability to compete effectively; the impact on our business of cyber-

attack% breache% drscloqures and other data related 1nc1dents our ab111ty to pfeteet—aga-tnst—aﬂd—femed-r&te—eybef—&&aeks;

sefv-ie&pfe’v‘idefS'—eﬂ%abi-l-i-ty—te-comply with evolvrng data privacy , Al and qecurrty laws; our ability to manage changes in,
uncertainty regardrng, or adverse application of the complex laws and regulations that govern our business; changing laws and

regulations governing health insurance and employee benefits ; our ability to keep pace with changes in technology or
provide timely enhancements to our solutions and support; risks associated with our international operations; our ability
to operate a business subject to numerous complex laws; changing laws and regulations governing health insurance and
other traditional employee benefits at the federal, state, and local levels ; our ability to be recognized as an employer of
worksite employees and for our benefits plans to satisfy all requirements under federal and state regulations; changes in the laws
and regulations that govern what it means to be an employer, employee or independent contractor; the impact of new and
changing laws regarding remote FRINEF32023-FORMHO-KBUSINESSremeote-work; our ability to comply with the licensing




requirements that govern our solutions; the euteome-failure of third- party service providers performing their functions; the
failure to comply with anti- corruption laws and regulations, economic and trade sanctions, and similar laws; the
TRINET42024 FORM 10- K BUSINESSoutcome of existing and future legal and tax proceedings; fluctuation in our results of’
operations and stock price due to factors outside of our control; our ability to comply with the restrictions of our indebtedness
eredit-faetlity-and meet our debt obligations; the need for additional capital or to restructure our existing debt; the
continuation of our stock repurchase program; and the impact of concentrated ownership in our stock by Atairos and other
large stockholders and the anti- takeover provisions in our charter documents and under Delaware law . Any of these
factors could cause our actual results to differ materially from our anticipated results. Forward- looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance, but are based on management’ s expectations as of the date of this Form 10- K and
assumptions that are inherently subject to uncertainties, risks and changes in circumstances that are difficult to predict. Forward-
looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results, performance
or achievements to be materially different from our current expectations and any past results, performance or achievements.
Given these risks and uncertainties, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward- looking statements. The
information provided in this Form 10- K is based upon the facts and circumstances known as of the date of this Form 10- K, and
any forward- looking statements made by us in this Form 10- K speak only as of the date of this Form 10- K. We undertake no
obligation to revise or update any of the information provided in this Form 10- K, except as required by law. The MD & A of
this Form 10- K includes references to our performance measures presented in conformity with GAAP and other non- GAAP
financial measures that we use to manage our business, to make planning decisions, to allocate resources and to use as
performance measures in our executive compensation plans. Refer to the Non- GAAP Financial Measures within our MD & A
for definitions and reconciliations from GAAP measures. Website Disclosures We use our website (www. trinet. com) to
announce material non- public information to the public and to comply with our disclosure obligations under Regulation Fair
Disclosure (Reg FD). We also use our website to communicate with the public about our Company, our services, and other
matters. Our SEC filings, press releases and recent public conference calls and webcasts can also be found on our website. The
information we post on our website could be deemed to be material information under Reg FD. We encourage investors and
others interested in our Company to review the information we post on our website. Information contained in or accessible
thl()u"h our Websne 1S not a part of this report T—R—I—N-E—’F4—TRINET5 %92—3—2024 FORM 10- K PART [ Item 1. Busmess TriNet

51"—1=1Net—We e-ffefs— offer aeeess—te—advanced technology-
enabled serv1ces that include human capital expertlse employee benefits such as health insurance and retirement plans ,
payroll and payroll tax admlnlstratlon risk mm gation , and comphdnce consultmg —a-l-l—eﬂab-}ed—by—rﬂd-usﬁy—}eadmg
teehﬂe-}egy—e&pabﬁ-iﬁese.Ourlong Net—s-stite-of-produ based—se}tt&eﬁs—term

. ! 5 d d—ele : efrand-add-HR services suehas-payrot-and
aeeess—te—for a broad range of SMBs through 1ndustry- leadmg benehts sales distribution excellence, management-as

ﬂeeded.—ny'—pfeﬂdmg—P-EG—and H-RI—S—a world- class services dellvery model —we—beheve—t-h&t—we—ea&s&ppeﬁ—a—v&&der—faﬁge—ef

foundmo in 1988 TrlNet “has served, and continues to serve, thousands of SMBs. We are the largest publlcly traded company
in the U. S. that focuses primarily on the PEO business, in terms of the number of WSEs we serve. [n 2623-2024 , we
processed $ #2-73 billion in payroll and payroll taxes for our clients and ended the year with approximately 22-360 , 666-700
WSEs. We aim to differentiate ourselves from other PEOs in three substantive areas. First, we offer a high- quality,
integrated service solution that is tailored to high- income, employee- centric SMBs. Our primary targeted industry
verticals include technology, financial services, life sciences, nonprofit, professional services, and main street. Second, we
offer our clients ;:347-560-W-SEs-a premium HR advisory experience featuring high- touch services and 266-efficient issue
resolution , $66-HRISUsers-primartyinrto yield a high level of customer satisfaction and retention. Finally, we believe our
risk- based model allows our clients to better manage the-their H-benefits costs over the long term . S-Our medium- term
strategy includes taking actions to increase revenue growth through improved benefits options and risk management
capabilities, expanded sales force scale, tenure, and productivity, and expanded distribution channels. In addition, we
will focus on cost discipline, operational efficiencies in our service delivery model, and prudent capital allocation, while
being strategic with re- investments . Our Service Models We deliver a comprehensive suite of HCM services that help our
clients administer and manage various HR- related needs and functions, such as compensation, benefits, payroll processing, tax
credit support, employee data, health insurance, workers' compensation, EPLI and other employment risk mitigation programs,
employee performance management and training, on- boarding and off- boarding, and other transactional HR needs using our
PEO and-HRIS-technology platferms— platform and ewrHEM;-benefits and compliance expertise. We deliver our services
primarily through our two-primary-moedels;-higher—tetelhPEO services and-that we provide via our co more-self- direeted
HRIS-employment model, and to a lesser extent, through our ASO- only services , which we anticipate will grow in the
future . PEO Services TriNet has historically focused almost exclusively on the PEO business , and PEO services remain our
core business. Our PEO services offer our clients our most complete HCM solutlon ;Dener"llly 1nclud1ng all of the services
described below. ASO W : ale-s v viee-Services Until recently,




P t t t d-Fri HRIS services
pfnﬁ&ﬂ-ly—eens*lsfs—e-fetuesel-ﬂ We are however currently transmonmg thls SaaS - only difeefed—eleud—based—I-I-RI—S—sevaafe
solution whieh-aHews-elients—to manage-offerings that combine their—-- the SaaS solution with a significant service
component. We now refer to these offerings as ASO services, and are marketed as" HR Plus". ASO services include
needs-and-the-option-to-add-tools-sueh-aspayroll processing and-, benefits management, HR administration and compliance
management to provide HCM solutions that flex-our clients can tailor dynamically over time based on the-their needs efeur
elients-. Our-HRIS-Unlike our PEO services, our ASO services do not include aeeess-to-our-co- employment servees;-or access
to our TriNet sponsored health benefit plans. However, these-servtees-our ASO clients will have access to our benefits
administration platform that can administer third- party benefits and integrates with 401 (k) retirement plans. This
transition from our HRIS offering to our ASO offering will result in not only a significant change in the level of service
but also prlce for mel-uele—ta*efed-rt—s&ppeﬁ—ﬂa—our chents currently using HRIS FriNet-Clarus RD-team;-additional-eloud-
o i nerementat-a serviees-. As a result, we anticipate significant attrition in our
ex1stmg HRIS cllent populatlon during 202S. 5PRI—N—E—T§—TRINET6 2623-2024 FORM 10- K Our Services Our
comprehensive HR solutions include the following capabilities: HR CONSULTING
EXPERTISEBENEFITOPTIONSPAYROLL SERVICESRISK MITIGATION FEEHNOEOGYPEATEORM
TECHNOLOGYPLATFORMCONTRACTOR AND GLOBAL WORKFORCE SUPPORT HR Consulting Expertise We
use the collective knowledge and experience of our teams of HR, benefits, payroll, risk management and compliance
professionals to help our PEG-and-HRIS-clients manage-navigate many of the administrative, regulatory and practical
requirements associated with being employers. We do this by incorporating our knowledge and experience into our services and
our technology platforms and by making our professionals available to consult with clients on a variety of HR needs, including
talent management, retention and terminations, benefits enrollment, immigration and visas, payroll tax credits, employment
compliance and regulatory developments and many other industry- specific and general HR topics. Depending on their needs,
our clients - W-SEs-and-HRESHsers-have access to varying levels of service and support from our professionals, ranging from
call center support to pooled HR resources. Our professionals also provide additional specialized HR consulting services upon
request. Benefit Options In our PEO business, we utilize our scale to provide our WSEs access to a broad range of TriNet-
sponsored employee benefit and insurance programs with ehetee-features and at costs that we believe mest-many of our clients
would be unable to obtain on their own. We believe that our TriNet- sponsored programs help our PEO clients compete for
talent against larger businesses. Our benefit and insurance programs are designed to comply with federal, state and local
regulations, and our benefit and insurance service offerings include plan selection and administration, enrollment management,
leave management, plan document distribution and WSE and client communications. Under these benefit and insurance
programs, we pay third- party insurance carriers for WSE insurance benefits and reimburse insurance carriers or third- party
administrators for claims payments within our insurance deductible layer, where applicable. We sponsor and administer several
employee benefit plans for our WSEs through a broad range of carriers, including group health, dental, vision, short- and long-
term disability, and life insurance as an employer plan sponsor under Section 3 (5) of ERISA. We also provide for other benefit
programs to be made available to WSEs, including flexible spending accounts, health savings accounts, retirement benefits,
COBRA benefits, supplemental insurance, and commuter benefits, as well as other programs such as home insurance, critical
illness insurance, accident insurance, hospital indemnity, pet insurance, and auto insurance. For further discussion of our
insurance programs, including policies where we reimburse our carriers for certain amounts relating to claims, refer to Note 1 in
Part I1, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K. We also offer PEO clients the option to
obtain their own client- sponsored benefits through our OMS product family. Our OMS clients receive PEO services Hke-such

as HR, payroll, payroll tax, and risk management from TriNet while qponiorlng their own health benefits obtained through a
broker. 360 3 : . o S srennhealh-nlans i

We help our PEO and -H-RI—S—ASO chent% manage thelr employee compeniahon by prov1d1ng multi- state payroll processing, tax
administration and tax credit services and other payroll- related services, such as time and attendance management, time off and
overtime tracking, and expense management solutions. Our clients ;-and W SEs ;and-HRESHsers-can access payroll and tax
information using our various online and mobile tools. Our payroll tax administration and tax credit services include calculating,
withholding, remitting and reporting certain federal, state and local payroll and unemployment taxes on behalf of clients ;-and
WSES —aﬁd—H-RI-S—Usefs- TRINET7 2024 FORM 10 K White :

set’ﬁeeﬁe—useJFﬂ-Net—Gl&fus—R—B—s-ta*efedﬁ—selwes—le< M1t1gat10n We monitor employment related legal and regulatory
developments at the federal, state, and local levels to help our PEO and HRIS-ASO clients comply with employment laws and
mitigate many of the risks associated with being an employer. We provide HR guidance on employment laws and regulations,
such as those relating to minimum wage, unemployment insurance, family and medical leave and anti- discrimination. For our
PEO clients, we-also-ensure-that-our TriNet- sponsored benefit plans are designed to comply with applicable laws and



regulations, tike-such as the ACA, reducing this compliance burden to our clients. Our PEO services provide fully- insured
workers' compensation insurance coverage for our clients and WSEs through insurance policies that we negotiate with third-
party insurance carriers. We manage the deductible risk that we assume in connection with these policies by being selective in
the types of businesses that we take on as new clients, and by monitoring claims data and performance of our carriers and third-
party claims management service providers. In addition, we advise clients on workers’ compensation best practices, including
by performing workplace assessment consultations and assisting with client efforts to identify conditions or practices that might
lead to employee injuries. We also provide EPLI coverage for our PEO clients through an insurance policy that we obtain from
a third- party EPLI carrier. This policy provides coverage for certain claims that arise in the course of the employment
relationship, such as discrimination, harassment, and certain other employee claims, with a per- claim retention amount. The
retention amount under this policy, which functions like a deductible, is allocated on a pre- determined basis between the client
and TriNet. Our professionals assist our clients in implementing HR best practices to help avoid and reduce the cost of
employment related liabilities. Our preferred out51de employment law ﬁrms defend covered EPLI claims. Technology Platform
sepata chnologypla elients—Our PEO technology platform includes online
and mobile tools that allow our ellents and WSE:s to store, view, and manage HR information and administer a variety of HR
transactions, such as payroll processing, tax administration, tax credits, employee onboarding and termination, employee
performance, time and attendance, compensation reporting, expense management, and benefits enrollment and administration.
Our online tools also incorporate Workforce analytlcs allowmg PEO chents to generate HR, payroll total compensatron and
other custom reports. Contractor Fev 8 3 : e-SatH € &S

pfepﬂetafy—e}eud-—based-mmpllﬁed solutlon for handllng 1ndependent contractors w1th our contractor payments
application, featuring a softwarc platferntrsolution that allows clients to simplify-onboard, manage and pay independent
contractors. In addition, for clients with employees outside the U. S., we provide payroll and HR support through
international employer of record partners ’v‘aﬂeus—state-a-nd—fedefa-l—taeeefedﬁs—fer—SM-Bs- FRINEF72023FORMA0-K-Our
PEO Co- Employment Model Our PEO services operate using-on the basis of a co- employment model, under which
employment- related responsibilities are allocated by contract between us and our PEO clients. The co- employment model
allows WSEs to receive the full berefit-scope of our services, including providing WSEs with access to TriNet- sponsored
employee benefit plan offerings. Each of our PEO clients enters into a client service agreement with us that defines the suite of
services and benefits to be provided by us, the fees payable to us, and the division of responsibilities between us and our clients
as co- employers. WSEs also separately acknowledge the co- employment relationship and the allocation of employment-
related responsibilities between TriNet and the client co- employer. The division of responsibilities under our client service
agreements is typically as follows: TriNet Responsibilities We generally assume responsibility for, and manage certain risks
associated with: ¢ payments of salaries, wages and certain other compensation to WSEs from our own bank accounts (based on
client reports and payments), including the processing of garnishment and wage deduction orders, ¢ reporting of wages,
withholding and deposit of associated payroll taxes as the employer of record,  provision and maintenance of workers'
compensation insurance and workers' compensation claims processing, TRINETS 2024 FORM 10- K - access to, and
administration of, group health, welfare, and retirement benefits to WSEs under TriNet- sponsored benefit plans, « compliance
with applicable law for certain TriNet- sponsored employee benefits offered to WSEs, ¢ administration of unemployment claims
and post- employment COBRA benefits, and ¢ provision of various HR policies and agreements, including employee handbooks
and worksite employee agreements describing the co- employment relationship. Client Responsibilities Our clients are
responsible for employment- related responsibilities that we do not specifically assume, generally including: ¢ day- to- day
management of their worksites and WSEs, ¢ compliance with laws associated with the classification of employees as exempt or
non- exempt, such as overtime pay and minimum wage law compliance, * accurate and timely reporting to TriNet of
compensation and deduction information, including information relating to hours worked, rates of pay, salaries, wages and other
compensation, and work locations, ¢ accurate and timely reporting to TriNet of information relating to workplace injuries,
employee hires and termination, and certain other information relevant to TriNet’ s services, ¢ provision and administration of
any employee benefits not provided by TriNet, such as equity incentive plans or nonqualified deferred compensation plans ,
compliance with all laws and regulations applicable to the clients' workplace and business, including work eligibility laws, laws
relating to workplace safety or the environment, laws relating to family and medical leave, laws pertaining to employee
organizing efforts and collective bargaining and employee termination notice requirements, * payment of TriNet invoices, which
include reimbursement for salary, wages and other relevant compensation to WSEs and applicable employment taxes and
service fees, and ¢ all other matters for which TriNet does not assume responsibility under the client service agreement, such as
intellectual property ownership and protection and liability for products produced and services provided by the client company
to its own clients. As a result of co- employment relationships for PEO services, we are liable for payment of salary, wages and
certain other compensation to the WSEs as reported and paid to us by our client, and we are responsible for providing specified
employee benefits to such persons to the extent provided in each client service agreement and under federal and state law. In
most instances, clients are required to remit payment prior to the applicable payroll date by wire transfer or ACH. FRINEFS
2623-FORMI0-KFor our PEO services, we also assume responsibility for payment and liability for the withholding and
remittance of federal and state income and employment taxes with respect to salaries, wages and certain other compensation paid
to WSEs, although we reserve the right to seek recourse against our clients for any liabilities arising out of their conduct. We
perform these functions as the statutory employer for federal employment tax purposes ssince our clients transfer legal control
over these payroll functions to us. The laws that govern the payment of salaries, wages and related payroll taxes for our WSEs
are complex and the various federal, state and local laws that govern such payments can vary significantly. Based on applicable



law in any jurisdiction, we or our client may be held ultimately liable for those obligations if we fail to remit taxes. Our HRES
ASO services do not involve co- employment, and this reduces the responsibility and liability that we assume when providing
these services. For example, while we eurseftware-may facilitate payroll processing for HRES-ASO clients, TriNet is not the
employer of record and-aets-enly-ina-software-providerrole- HRIS-ASO clients generally remain responsible for, among other

things, payret-fanding-workers’ compensation insurance, obtaining and administertng-sponsoring group health, welfare and
retirement benefits, administering unemployment claims, and in some cases payroll tax reporting. The additional higherdevet

of responsibility responsibilities that eur-PEOs assume, and risks that ear-PEOs manage, for our PEO clients is a key
differentiator-difference between our PEO and HRES-ASO services. TRINET9 2024 FORM 10- K Market Trends and
Developments Affecting Our Business #20823-The U. S. economy grew modestly during 2823-2024 with unemployment
remaining tew-steady while inflation stabilized during beganto-abate-overthe year. We observed the following industry trends
in 2623-2024 : - SMB Economic Performance. Over any year, SMBs generally experience staffing changes, either resulting in a
net increase or decrease in staffing. In 2623-2024 the extent of net staffing increases differed signifteantly-based on industry and
geographic region. Our clients experienced signtfteant-staffing reductions in the technology seeter;-and reduetions—tirthe
professional services seeter-sectors , while staffing levels rose in other sectors such as main street and nonprofit Other
industries remained stable. Overall in 2623-2024 , net hiring our-Siv ; v
was stgnifieanttylower—- low everath-than-relative to our histoerte-historical treﬁels—experlence Continued lnsurance Cost
Variability and Volatility. In 2623-2024 , we experienced iereased-higher than anticipated health benefits utilization and
inflation in healtirhealthcare costs , which are affected by factors such as —We-beteve-this-oeeurred-inpart-edue-to-market-

wide pharmaceutical price increases, as well as the impact of rising wages and other costs which led to increased costs

associated with contract renewals between health insurers and health care providers. These-higher-eosts-overthe-year-were-and
eontinte-to-berefleeted-in2023-healthelaims— Tax Credit Backlogs. Many of the key economic assistance programs that

SMBs relied on during the COVID- 19 pandemic have now expired, including the EmployeeRetention—TFax-Credit--ERTC ¥
Although these programs have expired, processing backlogs and a temporary halt in September 2023 in processing new ERTC
claims at the IRS have resulted in many SMBs, including some of our clients, continuing to wait to receive their tax credits. In
many cases, SMBs still partlc1pated in these proglams retroactively via payroll tax filing amendments. Many SMBs continue
y y ot d-date-for t-he—thelr credits to be processed fiing-of ERTC-elaims-and-its

paet-. » [nterest Rates. The-samerise-in-After a period
of rlsmg interest rates t-hat—ts—een’fﬂbuﬁﬂg— we saw short- term rates begin to decrease in the second half of 2024. While this
period of higher interest rates may have resulted in lower overall hiring among our SMB clients alse-eentrtbuted-to-higher-,
we have not yet seen hiring rates rise as a result of the recent decrease in short- term rates. Further, the lower short-
term interest rates resulted in reduced interest income swe-reeetve-on our cash deposits and-higher-, a driver of our financial
results, but w1ll also result in lower interest expense on our outstandmg borrowings under our debt—While-theFederat

2021 Revolver ,—t-he—'rn%paets—e-ﬂt-he—h-tg-heﬁates

ereditline-inrAugustand-Septemberof2623-. « Privacy Laws and Regulaﬂons We have seen 1ncre’19t‘:d focus at every level of

government inside and outside of the United States on regulating the collection, storage, use, retention, security, disclosure,
transfer and other processing of confidential, sensitive and personal information, as well as the growing use of Al artifretat
nteHigenee-. As the patchwork of laws becomes increasingly complex, we expect the effort and cost of complying with all of
the requirements to also increase and the likelihood of compliance failures to rise. * PEO Benefit Plan Legislation. Various We
sa-w—&n—rnerease—m—state efforts—governments from time to time seek to regulate PEO health plans —Forexample; new

regulaﬂons on PEO health plans can lmnt our options for providing TriNet sponsmed benehts to our PEO Chents or elnnmate
those benefits entirely . We ;se-we-devote substantial time and resources to monitor and respond to these developments. We
expect to continue to see stmiar-these legislative and regulatory efforts across the country. FRENEF9-2623-FORMA0-IK-For
more information regarding the developments above, refer to Part I, [tem 7. MD & A and Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors in
this Form 10- K RartTtemtA-RiskFaetors;andPart - HemHE—Cyberseeurtty-. Our Technology and Service Development
Efforts We continued to make significant investments in our PEO and-HRIS-technology platferms— platform . These
investments are intended to provide our clients r-(including PEO and ASO clients) and W SEs sand-HRISHsers-with enhanced
functionality, ease of use, HR management options, security and an optimized user experience. We intend to continue making

these and other similar investments in 2624-2025 and beyond to —We-believe-the-eontinted-investmentinrimproving-our
teehnetogy-will-drive operating efficiencies and improve client retention and satisfaction over the long term. In %92—3—2024 we
(O d A o o

began-eombining-continued to develop our next- generation P
based platform thateanrsupportatt-. This new platform, which combines elements of our orlgmal PEO and HRIS
platforms, is mtended to further modermze our customers experlence through wrt-h—a—teeh-ne-legy—t-hat—enab-les—more self-

and-priotitizattontn-this-area—wil-inerease—We-believe-this-wil-cnable us to service SMBs throughout a larger portion of their

lifecycle. Additionatly-Moreover , we have also begun to explore integrating new technologies, including expanding our

FrilNet-Clarus R-D-elond-basedsoftware-platforntexisting AI / ML capabilities, into the customer experience to attows—
allow us to create efficiencies in the way we serve our customers existing-SMB-elients-and the way to-serve-SMBs-that-are



service contracts with us that dutomamcally renew. In most cases, our PEO cllents may cancel these contracts with 30 days'
notice to us and we may cancel these contracts with 30 days' notice to our clients. Our HRES-ASO clients execute contracts with
monthly or annual terms and clients can typically cancel these contracts with 30 days’ notice to us. In some cases, our clients
may incur fees associated with early termination. Our top five PEO markets are California, New York, Florida, Texas and
Massachusetts, which account for approximately 64-63 % of our total W-SEs— WSE paid wages for the year ended December
31, 206232024 . Nearly all of our revenues are generated within the United States and its territories and substantially all our
long- lived assets are located in the United States. Our Competitors We face competition from: « PEOs that compete directly
with us, « HRIS-seftware-providers-that-eompete-direetty-with-us;=-payroll processing agents and other HCM services providers
that do not use a PEO model, « HR and personnel of companies that administer employee benefits, payroll and HR for their
companies in- house, ¢ providers of certain endpoint HR services, including payroll, employee benefits, business process
outsourcers with high- volume transaction and administrative capabilities, and other third- party administrators, and * insurance
brokers who allow third- party HR systems to integrate with their technology platform. PEO services remain our core business
and other PEOs continue to represent our most significant competition. Our PEO service competitors include large PEOs such as
the TotalSource unit of Automatic Data Processing, Inc., the FRIENEFH-2623-FORMIO6-K-PEO operations of Paychex, Inc.
and Inspenty, Inc as Well as numerous specialized and smallel PEOs dnd similar HR serce providers with PEO opeldtlons

SMBs is because of our ablhty to pr0v1de access to a broad range of workers ' eompensatlon health insurance and other benefits
programs on a cost- effective basis. We-eompete-with-Our customers may obtain their own insurance through brokers and
other providers of insurance and benefits coverage, and our PEO offerings must be priced competitively with those provided by
these competitors #erder-for us to attract and retain our clients. Our PEO clients are typically looking for high- touch HR
compliance and services support, TriNet sponsored employee benefits, TriNet responsibility for processing payroll and payroll
taxes, and access to EPLI claims support and other substantial HR services. By contrast, many of our HRES-ASO clients are
looking for more self- directed, focused and less expensive HRES-ASO services. We do not co- employ the employees of our
HRESUsers-ASO clients and do not provide them with TriNet sponsored health benefits ;wetkers>eompensation;or-EREE
eoverage-. As a result, our HRESSASO services eempetes— compete with services provided by a wider array of HCM companies
and-HRISpreviders-outside of the PEO industry. For additional information about our competition, please refer to Part I, Item
1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10- K, under the heading —" We must continue to work to improve our services to meet the
expectations of our clients and regulators, or we may lose our clients and materially harm our business". Our Sales and
Marketing Organizations We sell our solutions primarty-enline-and-through our direet-sales organization , offering our
solutions directly to clients and through key strategic partnerships with brokers and other channel partners . We have
aligned our PEO sales organization by industry vertical with the goal of growing profitable market share in targeted industries.
Our PEO vertical approach deepens our network of relationships and gives us an understanding of the unique HR needs facing
SMBs in those industries. Our sales representatives are supported by marketing, brand, lead generation efforts, and referral
sources and networks. We increasingly use technology and remote communication tools to engage with customers and prospects
virtually. TRINET11 2024 FORM 10- K Our marketing organization supports our sales representatives across the entire
customer journey, from brand awareness and lead generation to customer nurturing, and leverages referral sources and
networks. We typieally-increasingly utilize technology and remote communication tools to engage with customers and
prospective customers effectively. To connect with SMBs, we leverage diverse channels, including sponsorships with
associations and aligned brands. Key initiatives include promoting our PEO and ASO services through both physical
and virtual events and workshops. Programs such as TriNet PeopleForce, monthly PEO, and ongoing ASO virtual
events allow us to target speclfic verticals and geographlc markets. As a sponsor ﬁﬂd—paﬁ-tetpa-te-m-of the Small Busmess

During these

4t-h—’Pﬂ-Net—Peep{eFeree—eeﬁfereﬂee—and customers 1 bin ;
business-toptesrelevant-to etﬂLS-Pv‘I-B-pfespeets—aﬁd-eheﬁts—prOVIde actlonable, real- world 1ns1ghts We a-}se-seek to generate

sales opportunities, build and-premete-brand awareness, enhance client retention, and butd-establish our reputation as an
HCM thought teaders— leader in s-within-key industry verticals ;through marketing alliances and ether-indirect channels .
These include partnerships with insurance brokers , stel-as-accounting firms, venture capital firms, incubators -insuranee
brokers;-and verttealmarket-industry associations. Our Addittenaly—~weatitize-digital marketing programs aim to drive
awareness , ineluding-generate interest, and capture leads across our portfolio. These efforts encompass digital



advertising, search engine marketing, retargeting, and email campaigns marketing;to-ereate-awareness-and-interestimrattof
eurserviees-. Our marketing and corporate communications teams lead efforts to building erganization-is-eharged-with-driving
everattbrand awareness, managitig-overseeing reputation management, driving lcad generation, ereating retaining
customers, and managing-delivering relevant thought leadership to the SMB community. The team manages our website
and other entine-owned propertics, ereating-creates content for outbound al-marketing-and eommunieationr-inbound channels
ineluding-our-outbound-, and supports sales enablement, promotional campaigns, and-brand initiatives inbeound-marketing
efforts-, and partner enablement. In 2024, we also published “ The State of the Workplace ”, which provided a
comprehensive analysis of both employer and employee perspectives in the U. S. small business community. Additionally,
our Corporate Communlcatlons and Edltorlal team is responsible for managing our press and media relations, overseeing
s-events;and-internal and external communications , driving organic social

medla 1n1t1at1ves, and developlng comprehenswe cr1s1s communication strategies to safeguard and further enhance our
reputation . With SMBs-- SMB are-inereasingly-using-behavior evolving rapidly, we have adopted digital tools such as ke

tele—presenee-telepresence , chat, and web-engagements-and-interactive assessments to enable us to engage SMBs in
1nnovat1ve ways In 2024 we werlﬁo—enhanced our dlgltal eng&ge—engagement with tools such as -SM-Bs—rn—t-hese—ways—l-n

Websrte and interactive self- assessments Our e
media;-branding—-- brand initia e eom eatiotplans,trpa atgmenting v
campaigns are designed to create a unlfylng" umbrella effect" to ampllfy awareness across the 1ndustry Our 2024 brand
campaign, centered on Ineredible-Starts Here;with-our marketing-eampaign;-organizing principle" People Matter, "
employed an omnlchannel approach that we expect w1ll contlnue to evolve in inelided-omni—ehanneHnitiatives-usingsoetal
- 2025 . FORMH0-4-The Laws and Regulations that
Affect Our Busmess Our buslness operates ina complex legal and regulatory environment due to a=myriad effederal, state and
local laws and regulations that impact our business. Below is a summary of what we believe are the most important legal and
regulatory issues specific to our business. For additional information on the impact of these and other laws and regulations on
our business and results of operations, refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10- K, under the heading-" Legal and
Compliance Risks". TRINET12 2024 FORM 10- K Employer Status under ERISA and State Laws As part of our PEO
services, we sponsor employee benefit plan offerings as the employer of our WSEs under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the" Code"), ERISA and applicable state law. The term “ employer ” has different definitions for different purposes
under the Code and ERISA, and for most purposes are interpreted under complex multi- factor tests under common law. As an
the employer of WSEs with respect to the employee benefit plans we sponsor , we must manage our benefit plans in
accordance with ERISA requirements, which can impact how we fulfill plan obligations, how we price services, the features of
our benefit plans, and how we administer and operate our plans. We believe we manage our benefit plans in accordance with
ERISA requirements and that we are anthe employer of our WSEs #+-with respect to the plans for purposes of b—S—under-the
Code, fh&empleyefe%etu%’vLSEs—nﬁhe—U—S—fer—&xe—pm?eses—ef—ERlSA Fasweltasquatifying-as-anand employertnder
various state laws, but this status could be subject to challenge by various regulators. We believe that our benefit plans are
exempt from many state regulations under ERISA, but our position could be challenged by state regulators or as a result of new
laws, regulations, agency guidance, audits or easelaw-case law at the federal and state levels. For additional information on our
state and federal employer status and the ERISA and other state requirements that apply to us and their collective impact on our
business and results of operations, refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10- K, under the heading-" If we are not
recognized as an employer of worksite employees, and if our benefit plans are deemed to not satisfy plan requirements, under
federal and state regulations, we and our clients could be adversely impacted". Health Insurance and Health Care Reform Our
sponsored employee health and welfare offerings are an important component of the services that we provide. The future of
health care reform continues to evolve in the U. S. For example, the passage of the ACA in 2010 implemented sweeping health
care reforms with staggered effective dates from 2010 through 2022, and many provisions in the ACA are still subject to the
issuance of additional guidance from the DOL, the IRS, the U. S. Department of Health and Human Services and various U. S.
states. Passage of the TCJA in 2017 eliminated the individual mandate tax penalty under the ACA beginning in 2019, while
retaining employer ACA mandate obligations. States have developed, and will continue to develop, varying approaches to state-
based health exchanges and mandates. Further significant changes to health care statutes, regulations and policy at the federal,
state and local levels could occur in the future 2624-and-beyond-, including the potential further modification or amendment of
the ACA, and we may need to adapt the manner in which we conduct our business as a result of any such changes. For
additional information on health care reform and its impact on our business and results of operations, refer to Part I, Item 1A.
Risk Factors, of this Form 10- K, under the heading-" Changing laws and regulations governing health insurance and other
traditional employee benefits at the federal, state and local level could negatively affect our business". Data Privacy and
Security Regulations We collect, store, use, retain, disclose, transfer and otherwise process a significant amount of confidential,
sensitive and personal information from and about our actual and potential clients, WSEs, HRES-Users-employees of ASO
clients, and colleagues, and we are subject to a variety of federal, state and international laws, rules, and regulations in
connection with such activities. As a sponsor of employee benefit plans, we also have access to certain protected health
information (PHI) of our WSEs and colleagues. Management of PHI is subject to several regulations at the federal level,
including HIPAA and the HITECH Act. HIPAA contains restrictions and health data privacy, security and breach notification
requirements with respect to the use and disclosure of PHI. Further, there are penalties and fines for HIPAA violations. Because
TriNet sponsored health plans are covered entities under HIPAA, we-our sponsored health plans are required to comply with
HIPAA' s portability, privacy, and security requirements. We are also subject, among other applicable federal laws, rules and
regulations, to the rules and regulations promulgated under the authority of the Federal Trade Commission. ¥We-expeetthatIn




recent years, the federal government ~s-approaeh-to-has increased its focus on and regulation of data privacy and security
rales, and regutations-will-eontintie-we expect this to evolve in the coming years. FTRENEFH2-TRINET13 2623-2024 FORM
10- K At the state and local level, there is ineteased-ongoing focus on regulating the collection, storage, use, retention, security,
disclosure, transfer and other processing of confidential, sensitive and personal information. In recent years, many states have
proposed or enacted new laws or amended existing laws and we expect them to continue to do so in the future. As the state
privacy laws beeemes— become increasingly complex, we expect the cost and effort of complying with all of the requirements
to increase and the likelihood of compliance failures to rise. f-ael-Moreover, without the enactment of a comprehensive
federal privacy law, we are requlred to comply w1th a patchwork of state laws that lacks uniformity efdaws-and
regutations;-which w v vaws;-creates significant legal
complexities for companies hke TriNet that operate natlonWlde aﬁd—l—n—l-nd-ra—aﬁd—@aﬂada— -Arlse-Slmllarly , as we continue to
expand our operations 2 6 ; A e and Canada-have
enaeted—data—bfeaeh—neﬁﬁea&en—serwces, we may be requlred to comply w1th s1mllarly complex privacy security laws that
q W eagtes sttators-in the countries event-of
tm&tttheﬂfed-aeeess—te-or d-lselosufe—ef—pefseﬂal-reglons in whlch we operate or eeﬁﬁdeﬁﬁa-l—ﬁﬂrfe&naﬁeﬁ—prowde services .
Complying with existing and new data-privacy and security regulations could cause us to incur substantial costs or require us to
change our business practices in a manner adverse to our business. For additional information en-regarding the privacy and
security of the confidential, sensitive and personal information and PHI we possess and the potential impact to our business if
we fail to protect such information, refer to Part I, Item 1C. Cybersecurity and each of the risk factors included in Part I, Item
1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10- K, under the heading-" Data Privacy and Security Risks". Licensing Laws Nearly all states
have adopted laws and regulations for licensing, registration, certification or recognition of PEOs and the IRS has implemented
a voluntary federal certification program for PEOs. We expect states without such laws and regulations to adopt them in the
future. While these laws and regulations can vary widely, most regulators monitor the financial health and other relevant
business information of PEOs on an annual or quarterly basis. In some cases, these laws and regulations codify and clarify the
co- employment relationship for certain payroll, unemployment, workers' compensation and other employment- related purposes
or require specific client contractual terms and / or WSE disclosures. We believe we comply in all material respects with the
applicable PEO laws and regulations in each state and jurisdiction in which we provide PEO services. Every state regulates
insurance practices conducted within their jurisdiction. While we do not broker insurance currently , certain of our PEO and
HRIS-ASO services involve assisting our clients in obtaining and managing employee benefits. We partner with brokers to
provide these services and have elected to obtain state insurance licenses as a result. As each state’ s licensing requirements
differ, maintaining current licenses is complex and we are subject to insurance audits, investigations and fines if we fail to
comply with insurance license requirements. Other state regulatory authorities impose licensing requirements on companies
involved in the transmission of cash, such as banks, and other money transmitters. We do not believe that our current activities
require any such licenses, but we and others in our industry have received inquiries from regulatory authorities in the past and
could receive them in the future. For additional information on the impact of licensing laws, refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk
Factors, of this Form 10- K, under the heading" If we do not comply with our regulatory license requirements, or if we are
deemed to be operating in various non- PEO licensed industries without the required licenses, we and our clients could be
adversely impacted". FRINEFH3-TRINET14 2623-2024 FORM 10- K Payroll Taxes, Unemployment Taxes and Payroll Tax
Credits We must also comply with the federal and state payroll tax and unemployment tax requirements that apply where our
clients are located. Tax reform efforts, and other payroll tax changes, at the federal, state and local level can impact our payroll
tax reporting obligations for our clients and the services we can provide. State unemployment tax rates vary by state based in
part on prior years’ total wages, unemployment taxes paid and unemployment claims experience and may also vary based on the
overall claims experience of a PEO in states in which we are required to report and pay unemployment taxes using one of our
accounts and rates. As a result, depending on where client WSEs perform services for our clients, the fees we charge PEO
clients for unemployment taxes can be higher or lower than a client could obtain without use of a PEO. In some cases, taxing
authorities can retroactively increase the unemployment taxes we pay to cover deficiencies in the unemployment tax funds. We
also rely on our clients to accurately inform us of the work and residence locations for their WSEs and HRESUsers-ASO client
employees , and inaccurate information, whether due to remote work policies or otherwise, can impact our payroll tax
obligations and the obligations of our clients, WSEs and HRESHsers-ASO client employees . We have seen a growing trend,
particularly at the federal level, of using payroll tax credits, deferrals and other related payroll tax programs as a mechanism for
incentivizing SMB development and economic recovery. These programs are popular because they allow SMBs, which often
have business income tax losses, to realize benefits via payroll tax reductions, rather than business income tax reductions. As a
result, many of our SMB clients require that we support these programs. Examples of these programs include the federal 2015
PATH Act, CARES Act and FFCRA #Aet. The PATH Act allows SMBs to use R & D tax credits submitted on the SMB’ s
business income tax return to reduce certain payroll taxes. The CARES Act and FFCRA Aet-introduced payroll tax credits and
employer Social Security deferral programs that allowed SMBs to receive payroll tax reductions and refunds or to defer the
employer portion of Social Security based on qualifications and employment practices. We act as the employer of record for
federal payroll tax reporting for our PEO clients. This means that we file client tax credit claims, and pass the associated tax
credit refunds to our clients based on information supplied by our clients, which we do not control. These programs have
generally not been designed with the PEO industry in mind and these programs are subject to broad agency interpretations given
their complexity. While our clients are contractually responsible to us for their errors in tax credit submissions and for repaying
us for all rejected tax credits under our service contracts, taxing authorities may still look to TriNet for repayment and we may
not be able to effectively enforce or collect on these obligations. For additional information tax credit programs, and the risks
they post to our operations, refer to Part [, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10- K, under the heading-" Our business is




subject to numerous complex laws, and changes in, uncertainty regarding, or adverse application of these laws could negatively
affect our business." Other Employment Regulations We must also comply with labor and employment laws, which change
frequently at the federal, state and local level. In particular for our PEO services, regulatory focus on the classification of
employers, employees and independent contractors has the potential to significantly change how we and other PEOs operate and
the services that we and other PEOs can provide to our clients and WSEs. States continue to consider, or have adopted, changing
regulations or guidance around the definition of employers, employees and independent contractors and any change in these
definitions may impact our ability to provide certain PEO and HRES-ASO services to certain employers or employees. We must
also comply with state and federal rules and guidelines around both independent contractor and joint employer status. Standards
for determining independent contractor and joint employer status vary from law to law and state to state, and changes to and new
interpretations of these standards can limit the client workers to which we can provide services and increase the likelihood of
claims that we are a joint employer of client WSEs or an employer of HRESUsers-ASO client employees . For example, [n
January 2024, the DOL proposed a new rule for determining independent contractor status and in August 2023, the DOL
proposed new regulations that address the salary requirements for white collar minimum wage and overtime exemptions under
the FLSA. Meanwhile, the NLRB also modified its own independent contractors test in June 2023 and issued a new standard for
determining whether two businesses are joint employers under the NLRA in October 2023. We do not believe that we are a joint
employer under any law or rule, or that these rule changes impact our status as a co- employer. However, laws regarding
independent contractor and joint employer status can impact the types of SMB workers we can service and the potential liability
that we have for the actions of our SMB clients and their employees. For additional information, refer to Part I, [tem 1A. Risk
Factors, of this Form 10- K, under the heading-" The definition of employers, employees and independent FRENEFH4-2623
FORM-16-K-—contractors is evolving. Changes to the laws and regulations that govern what it means to be an employer or an
employee may require us to make significant changes in our operations and may negatively affect our business". TRINET1S
2024 FORM 10- K Our Human Capital Resources As of December 31, 2023-2024 , we had approximately 347360 , 566-700
WSEs ;7260;-866-HRISUsers-and 3, 600 colleagues. Oversight and Management At TriNet, we power the success of SMBs by
supporting their growth and enabling their people. Together, we strive to become the most trusted advisor to SMBs by
harnessing the power of scale. We recognize the incredible opportunity that can only be realized by working together, with a
shared view of how we support our clients, WSEs and HRISUsers-ASO clients . This is illustrated in our core values: « Lead
with the customer- We are accessible, responsive and empowered to serve our customers. We are successful when our
customers are successful. ¢ Stand together- We bring together diverse backgrounds, experiences and ideas to create better
outcomes. We collaborate across boundaries, communicate openly and respect each other. * Act with integrity- We are honest,
transparent, ethical and fair. We take pride in always doing what’ s right for our customers and colleagues. * Make an impact-
We act with purpose, are deliberate in our planning and quick in execution. We are accountable to each other and empowered to
make decisions. ¢ Be incredible- We invest in the development of our colleagues. We push the boundaries of what' s possible,
lead the way and innovate to accomplish the extraordinary. We regularly conduct surveys to seek feedback from our colleagues
on a variety of topics, including confidence in company leadership, competitiveness of our compensation and benefits package,
career growth opportunities and opportunities to improve the attractiveness of our company with existing and potential
colleagues. The results are shared with our colleagues and reviewed by senior leadership, who analyze areas of progress or
deterioration and prioritize actions and activities in response to this feedback to drive meaningful improvements in colleague
engagement. None of our colleagues are covered by a collective bargaining agreement. Attracting and Retaining our Colleagues
We must attract, develop and retain highly motivated and qualified colleagues to continue to provide the services that our clients
need, to achieve our strategic objectives, and to grow our business. We do this by: * offering competitive compensation and
benefits packages, including comprehensive health benefits and our 401 (k) retirement savings plan, with an immediately vested
employer match of up to 4 % of cash compensation, * supporting a pay for performance culture through the use of cash and
equity incentives tied to the performance of our company and individual performance, * offering an ESPP that allows our
colleagues to purchase our shares at a discount to market value, which fosters a stronger sense of ownership and aligns the
interests of our colleagues with our stockholders, ¢ investing in the professional growth of our colleagues with tuition and
continuing education reimbursement, wetbeing-well- being programs, and comprehensive training and development activities
and opportunities both inside and outside of our company, ¢ creating and maintaining a-diverse-and-- an environment that
promotes inetustve-inclusion eeleague-base-and belonging by, for example, the use of colleague- led resource groups and a
diversity-and-inelasion-training curriculum for our colleagues, and * supporting workplace flexibility for our colleagues by
adopting remote work policies, and providing access to telemedicine services. For more information about how we help our
PEO and HRIS-ASO clients manage their own human capital resources and satisfy their own HR- related needs, see the section
above titled *“ Our Services 7. TRENEFH5-TRINET16 2623-2024 FORM 10- K Our Approach to Acquisitions Historically, we
have pursued acquisitions to expand our service capabilities, technology offerings, and supplement our growth. Our acquisition
targets have included PEOs as well as HCM technology and services companies to supplement or enhance our HCM services.
We intend to continue to pursue acquisitions, where appropriate, that will enable us to add new clients ;-or WSEs erHRIS-Users
, expand our presence in certain geographies or industry verticals, or expand our technology capabilities or services. The Impact
of Seasonality on Our Business Our business is affected by seasonality in client business activity, hiring and benefit selections,
health claims costs and payroll taxes: « PEO clients generally change their payroll service providers at the beginning of the
payroll tax and benefits enrollment year; as a result, we have historically experienced our highest volumes of new clients joining
and terminating clients in the month of January. Our HRES-ASO clients are generally less affected by these considerations. ©
WSEs select our TriNet- sponsored benefit plans during their respective open enrollment periods, which occur throughout the
year. We generally experience the largest proportion of WSE benefit changes in the first and second quarters. * Health claims
costs tend to increase throughout the year as the utilization of medical services above each WSE' s deductible causes our



insurance costs to increase. In addition, the overall use of medical services by WSEs, including elective procedures, tends to
increase later in the calendar year. « Certain payroll tax related billings are based on annual taxable wage bases up to a set cap.
Our clients WSEs-and-HRISUsers-frequently meet these wage base caps in the first two quarters of the year, depending on the
compensation level of the relevant employees , resulting in lower related billing contributions to PSR in the latter half of the
year. Our Owned and Licensed Intellectual Property We own or license from third parties various software and other intellectual
property rights, used in our business. We protect our intellectual property rights through the use of confidentiality and non-
disclosure agreements with our colleagues and third- party partners and vendors as well as policies incorporated and enforceable
by contract. We also own registered trademarks in the United States, Australia, Canada, the United Kingdom, and the European
Union covering our name and other trademarks and logos that we believe are materially important to our operations. We
generally protect our trademarks through federal registration or through the commercial use of our trademarks. Trademark
registrations must generally be renewed every five to ten years and we renew the registration of trademarks that we deem to
have continuing value to our business. Corporate and Other Available Information We were incorporated in 1988 as TriNet
Employer Group, Inc., a California corporation. We reincorporated as TriNet Merger Corporation, a Delaware corporation, in
2000 and during that year changed our name to TriNet Group, Inc. Our principal executive office is located at One Park Place,
Suite 600, Dublin, CA 94568 and our telephone number is (510) 352- 5000. Our website address is www. trinet. com.
Information contained in or accessible through our website is not a part of this report. Our Annual Reports on Form 10- K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10- Q, Current Reports on Form 8- K, and amendments to those reports are available free of charge
at investor. trinet. com as soon as reasonably practicable after we file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. Alternatively,
the public may access these reports at the SEC' s website at www. sec. gov. The contents of these websites are not incorporated
into this report and are not part of this report. FRINEFH6-TRINET17 2623-2024 FORM 10- K RISK FACTORSItem 1A. Risk
Factors Below is a discussion of the risks that we believe are significant to our business. These risks are not the only ones we
face. We may face additional risks that we do not currently consider to be significant or of which we are not currently aware,
and any of these risks could cause our actual results to differ materially from historical or anticipated results. You should
carefully consider these risks along with the other information provided in this Form 10- K, including the information in"
Management' s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and our accompanying consolidated
financial statements, as well as the information under the heading" Cautionary Note Regarding Forward- Looking Statements"
before investing in any of our securities. We may amend, supplement or add to the risk factors described below from time to
time in future reports filed with the SEC. Operational Risks Unexpected changes in workers' compensation and health insurance
costs and claims by worksite employees could harm our business. Our insurance costs, which comprise a significant portion of
our overall costs, are significantly affected by WSEs " health and workers' compensation insurance claims experience. We use
fully insured risk- based, and fully insured guaranteed- cost, insurance ptans-policies provided by third- party insurance carriers.
Under risk- based policies, we agree to reimburse our carriers for any claims paid within an agreed- upon per- person deductible
layer up to a maximum aggregate exposure limit per policy. These deductible dollar limits and maximum limits vary by carrier
and year. Under guaranteed- cost policies, our carriers establish the premiums, and we are not responsible for any deductible.
Refer to Note 1 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K for further discussion of
these policies. Under our risk- based health insurance policies, which make up the majority of our health plans and claims paid
in 2623-2024 , we assume the risk of variability in future health claims costs for our enrollees. We have experienced variability,
and may experience variability in the future, in the amounts that we are required to pay within our deductible layer under these
policies. This variability arises from changes to the components of MCT, defined as changes in participant use of services,
including the introduction of new treatment options, changes in treatment guidelines and mandates, and changes in the mix, cost
of providing treatment, and timing of services provided to plan participants. MCT trends change over time, and other seasonal
trends and variability may develop, which makes it difficult for us to predict this aspect of our business and our failure to
accurately predict these trends could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
For example, while the-ameunt-ef-our insurance costs were only moderately higher than our expectations in 2024, higher
medical claims swe-experteneedin2023-inercased-ascompared-to 2022 -otr-instranee-costsrematned-shehtly below
expeetations;whiehstitthad a significant impact on our results due to volume . In addition, if we underestimate future levels
of healthcare cost inflation, it could increase our cost of claims, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations . Under our fully insured workers' compensation insurance policies, we assume
the risk for losses up to $ 1 million per claim occurrence (deductible layer). The ultimate cost of the workers” compensation
services provided will not be known until all the claims are settled. If we do not accurately predict the risks that we assume, we
may not charge adequate fees to cover our costs, which could reduce our net income and result in a material adverse effect on
our business. Our ability to predict these costs is impacted by unexpected increases in frequency or severity of claims, which can
vary due to changes in the cost of treatments or claim settlements. We accrue for the estimated future costs of reimbursing our
workers' compensation and health insurance carriers under our insurance policies. We use internal actuaries to develop health
claims estimates , and we use external actuaries and our own experience to develop workers’ compensation estimates, but the
volume and severity of claims activity is difficult to accurately predict. Estimating these accrued costs requires us to consider a
number of factors, such as the components of MCT, seasonal trends and the impact of events #ee-such as the COVID- 19
pandemic, which requires significant judgment. In addition, the usefulness of historic claims data is impacted by our rates of
WSE and client turnover and we renew our carrier contracts and set fees in advance of benefit periods. In past periods, we have
experienced insurance costs that were either higher or lower than our expectations and estimates. If we were to experience either
outcome in the future, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operation.
Higher- than- expected insurance costs result in lower net income. Because we set fees in advance of plan periods, lower- than-
expected insurance costs can be an indicator that insurance costs are developing more slowly than our projections, which are




reflected in our fees, and this can have a negative impact on client retention and new sales. In addition, claims are not static , and
if we subsequently receive updated information indicating that the volume and severity of insurance claims were higher or
lower than previously estimated and reported, our insurance costs could be higher or lower, respectively, in that period or
subsequent periods as we adjust our accrued costs accordingly, which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. We have experienced both favorable and unfavorable insurance cost variability due
to claims activity in the past and could have similar or worse experiences in the future. Refer to Critical Accounting Judgments
and Estimates in Part II, Item 7. MD & A, of this Form 10- K for further discussion of these estimates. FRINEFHFTRINET18
2623-2024 FORM 10- K Our co- employment relationship with our worksite employees exposes us to unique business risks. As
a co- employer of client WSEs, we assume some of the risks and obligations of an employer. For instance, in the past we have
been required to provide access to health benefits to WSEs even when the cost of providing those benefits exceeded the service
fees received from our clients. The extent of our responsibility for other aspects of our co- employer relationship with WSEs
remains subject to regulatory uncertainty at the federal, state and local levels. For example, in certain states, PEOs are
responsible for paying salaries, wages and related payroll taxes of WSEs, even if our clients have not timely remitted payments
to us whether due to insolvency, their bank going into receivership, or other events that may be out of our control. WSEs work in
our clients' workplaces. Qur-abiityto-We do not control the workplace environment of our clients ts-Hmited- Yet, we may be
subject to liability for violations of labor and employment laws, workers' compensation laws, industry- specific laws that apply
to the businesses our clients operate, and other laws that apply to our clients or to employers generally. We may also be liable
for acts, omissions or violations by clients or WSEs, even if we do not participate in such acts, omissions or violations. We seek
to mitigate these risks through our client agreements and insurance coverage. Our client agreements allocate responsibilities
between us and our clients and provide that our clients will fund certain obligations in advance and indemnify us for any liability
attributable to their own or our WSEs' conduct. However, we may not be able to effectively enforce or collect on these
obligations. In addition, we maintain insurance coverage, including workers’ compensation and EPLI coverage, to limit our and
our clients' exposure to various WSE- related claims. We are still responsible for deductible layers under our EPLI policies, and
these policies generally exclude coverage for claims relating to the classification of employees as exempt or non- exempt, other
wage and hour issues, and employment contract disputes. We cannot assure you that our insurance will be sufficient in amount
or scope to cover all claims that may be asserted against us and for which we are unable to obtain indemnification from our
clients. Negative publicity relating to events or activities attributed to us or our colleagues as a result of the actions of our clients
and WSEs, or others associated with them, whether or not justified, may tarnish our reputation and reduce the value of our
brand, which could have a material adverse impact on our ability to attract and retain clients. Our SMB clients are particularly
affected by......, and workers’ compensation claims. We may be-unable-toreeovereosts-related-te-not realize or sustain the
expected benefits from our busmess transformatlon 1n1tlatlves, and these efforts could elaims-based-on-the-fees-established
v ay-have a materiatmaterially adverse effect on our
business . We have been and w1ll be undertakmg certain transformatlon initiatives . which are designed to evolve the
technology we use to support our sales and marketlng efforts and our financial eendrt—ren—and reporting systems, enhance

ot-our eas&y—pfediet—aﬁd-customer support

We—regu-l&ﬂy—e*peﬁenee—el-ient—&ttr'rt—ien—and strengthen
-fer—us—te—eeﬁtfe-l-efourtalent tet ing-the-overa

our revenue growth, margln 1mprovement and product1v1ty &
potti i i i Hig viees-. [T we experienee-ehentattrittor-do not successfully manage
and execute these 1n1t1at1ves, 'fﬁl'— or 1f a-ny—e-ﬁt-he—they are 1nadequate abeve—reasons—rn—exeess—e#etuh or histerte-ineffective,
we may fail to meet our financial goals and esti a-matertat-a er-achieve anticipated
benefits, improvements may be delayed not sustalned or not reahzed and our busmess ﬁnaﬁela-l—eend-r&eﬁ—and—fescﬂ-ts-ef

operatlons —Geographte-and competltlve e

posmon e%eur—busmess—&ttnbtﬁﬂs%ﬁe—e%&s*n—&r&t—reg&eﬁ—could be adversely affected These 1n1t1at1ves, or our fallure to

successfully manage them, could result in unintended consequences or unforeseen costs, including distraction of our
management and employees, attrition, inability to attract or retain key personnel, and reduced employee productivity ,
which could have-a-material-adverse-adversely effeet-affect err-our business, financial condition et and results of operations .
TRINET18 2023 FORM 10- K...... operational costs to remediate any resulting issues . We have and will continue to devote
substantial time, money and management resources to these projects. Managing these projects also typically requires changes to
our internal operational, financial and management controls as well as our reporting systems and procedures. We cannot
guarantee that our efforts will achieve our goals in a timely or cost- effective manner or at all, and we cannot guarantee that we
can carry out these projects without a negative impact on our day- to- day operations and client satisfaction. If our current and
future projects are delayed or unsuccessful, of if any changes to our controls, reporting systems, or procedures are deficient,
client satisfaction may suffer, we may lose clients or fail to onboard new clients at expected rates, and we may incur substantial
unanticipated costs to complete these projects. Any of these outcomes could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. Our SMB clients are particularly affected by volatility in the economic



environment . SMBs can be particularly susceptible to changes in the level of overall economic activity in the markets in
which they operate.These businesses are often exposed to credit and cash liquidity risks,including exposure as a result of
the failure of their financial institutions,that larger businesses may be able to avoid,and during periods of weak economic
conditions,including periods of increased inflation and increased borrowing costs,SMB failures tend to increase,and
employment levels tend to decrease.During these periods,our clients can and do freeze hiring,terminate their
employees,and reduce compensation and benefits levels,any of which would negatively affect our revenues and margins if
we are unable to reduce our operating expenses sufficiently or quickly enough.During these periods,we have also seen
and expect to see,reduced demand for our services,increased client terminations,fewer new clients,and clients seeking to
renegotiate our contracts and prices.When our clients leave us or reduce their headcount,we typically see increases in the
volume and severity of unemployment claims,COBRA claims,disability claims,and workers’ compensation claims.We
may be unable to recover costs related to TRENETS-TRINET19 2623-2024 FORM 10- K these claims based on the fees
established in our client service agreements,and any failure to recover such costs may have a material adverse effect on
our business,financial condition and results of operations.We lose clients for many reasons that we cannot control or
easily predict and,generally,our clients sign service agreements that they can cancel on short notice.Our standard client
service agreements can generally be canceled by our clients with 30 days’ prior written notice.We regularly experience
client attrition and decreases in new client sales due to a variety of factors that are difficult for us to control or
predict,including the overall national economic conditions,client mergers and acquisitions,changes in medical utilization
and related costs,client business failure and liquidity issues,the effects of competition,and client decisions to administer
all or a portion of their HR needs in- house without using our services.If we experience client attrition for any of the
above reasons in excess of our historic and estimated rates it could have a material adverse effect on our
business,financial condition and results of operations.Geographic and industry market concentration makes our results
of operations vulnerable to regional and industry- specific economic and health factors.PEO services remain our core
business.Our top five PEO markets,California,New York,Florida,Texas and Massachusetts,accounted for approximately
63 % in aggregate of our paid WSEs for the year ended December 31,2024.If any of those geographic regions suffers a
downturn,even if the economy at the national level remains strong,or experiences higher than expected medical services
utilization,due to regional health issues,the portion of our business attributable to clients in that region could be
adversely affected,which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations. In
addition,most of our PEO clients operate in a relatively small number of verticals,including the technology,professional
services,financial services,life sciences and not- for- profit verticals.As a result,if any of those verticals,or any industry within
one of those verticals,suffers a downturn,even if the economy at the national level remains strong,the portion of our business
attributable to clients in that industry could be adversely affected,which could have a material adverse effect on our
business,financial condition or results of operations.Any failure in the business systems or service centers that we or our service
providers rely upon,could negatively impact our clients,harm our reputation and expose us to significant,unanticipated
liability.Our business is highly dependent on in- house and third- party business systems and service centers.The operation of
our business relies on the complex integration of numerous hardware and software subsystems across several service centers to
manage a large volume of daily client ;-and WSE ard-HRISHser-transactions.For example,we rely on software
systems,including the software systems used by our banking institutions,to process payroll,payroll tax and benefits data and
make related payments,and to access insurance carrier networks and databases that manage WSE ard-HRISHser-benefits and
claims.These software systems run on computer hardware that we or our service providers house in various service centers.These
centers and systems have been,and could be disrupted by equipment failures,computer server or systems failures,network
outages,ransomware attacks and other malicious acts,software errors or defects,vendor performance problems,banking
failures,power failures,natural disasters,terrorist actions or similar events.We have,for example,experienced office closures on
the east coast on multiple occasions over the past few years due to hurricane and storm threats,in Texas due to climate- related
power grid issues,and in California due to increased wildfire threats in the state.Our offices and service centers in these and
other locations will continue to face the risk of closure or damage in the future due to climate related events.Any such
disruption,even if only for a short period of time and even if we are not at fault,can have a significant impact on our clients y-and
WSEs and-HRESHsers-by preventing us from timely processing payroll,paying payroll taxes and other liabilities and otherwise
disrupting our business operations.As a result,any such disruption could cause us to lose clients,negatively impact our ability to
attract new clients,and reduce our rev enues dnd increase our COStS ,any of which Could result in a material dd\ erse eﬁect on our
reputdtlon busme atton ; Re ; a-material-o

and results of operatlons Changes in our insurance coverage,or in
our Ieldtlonshlps with key insurance carriers, Could harm our business.Our success depends in part on our ability to maintain
competitive health and workers' compensation coverage options and insurance rates through well- known insurance carriers.If
we are unable to maintain competitive insurance rates or obtain popular and desirable coverage plans through well- known
insurance carriers,it could affect our ability to attract and retain clients,which could have a material adverse effect on our
business. Where we sponsor insurance coverage and we are not responsible for any deductibles,our carriers set the fixed cost of



the plan,which may lead to uncompetitive fees.Even where we sponsor insurance under which we are responsible for
deductibles,we may not be able to control our costs in a way that would make our fees competitive.In addition,broad adoption of
our services in certain geographic regions or industries may make it more difficult for us to obtain competitive health and / or
workers' compensation insurance rates due to concentration of clients within a particular region or industry.For example,we have
significant concentrations of PEO clients in California,New York,Florida,Texas and Massachusetts,which account for
approximately 64 % in aggregate of our paid WSEs for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 .The loss of any one or more of
our key insurance vendors in these areas,or our inability to partner with the most desirable carriers in these areas,could have a

material adverse effect on our flnanelal condition and results of operatlon% We-must-eontinte-to-work to-improve-otr-serviees-to

we—dehveﬁe—eﬂieeheﬂfs—whteh—rﬁe}udes—’PRINET—}}TRINETZO %92—3—2024 F ORM 10 K We must contmue to work to
improve our services to meet the expectations of our clients and regulators,or we may lose our clients and materially
harm our business.In order to attract and retain clients,we believe that we must compete in our industry effectively on
the basis of the value proposition that we deliver to our clients,which includes ° client experience and satisfaction,® the
relevance and cost- effectiveness of our PEO benefit plans,» our PEO vertical market expertise,* our service and product pricing,®
our brand awareness and reputation,* our ability to innovate and respond to client needs and regulatory mandates rapidly,e the
performance of our online and mobile solutions,software and technology platforms,and ¢ our human resources subject matter
expertise. The expectations of our clients and prospective clients in these areas change over time as a result of many factors
outside of our control,such as competition,regulatory and technical changes,and changing trends in the demands employees
place on SMB employers.To satisfy client expectations and regulatory requirements,we must timely and effectively identify and
develop,or license and contract appropriate technologies and services,and incorporate such technologies and services into the
solutions that we provide.New services or upgrades may not be released according to schedule or may contain defects when
released.If our new technologies and services perform poorly,or fail to satisfy regulatory requirements,we could experience
client dlssatlﬁfaetlon adver%e pubhelty,los% of sales,and Chent claims agalnqt us,any of Wthh could materlally harm our business

regulatory requirements,we may not be able to do so on a cost- effective ba%l% ,which could have a materlal adverse effect on our
financial condition and our results of operations.We could lose market share if our competitors develop superior technologies
and services or satisfy client or regulatory demands before we are able to do so.If we are unable to satisfy the evolving
technology and service expectations and regulatory requirements,then we may experience lower client satisfaction,fewer new
clients and higher client attrition,which could have a material adverse effect on our business.We have acquired,and may in the
future acquire,other businesses and technologies,which can divert management' s attention and create integration risks and other
risks for our business.We have completed numerous acquisitions of other businesses and technologies over the years,and we
expect that we will continue to pursue future acquisitions.Acquisitions involve numerous risks,some of which we have
experienced in the past and which we may experience in the future,including:* over- valuing and over- paying for businesses
and technologies,* increased operating costs and unanticipated costs to successfully integrate the clients ;and WSEs and-HRES
Ysers-,operations,systems,technologies,services and-, personnel and other stakeholders of the acquired business,® establishing
or maintaining required internal controls,procedures and policies for the acquired business,* unanticipated costs and risks arising
from the unique corporate culture and risk appetite of acquired businesses,* diversion of management’ s attention from other
business concerns,* litigation resulting from the activities of the acquired business,* insufficient revenues,insurance or seller
indemnification to offset increased expenses associated with the acquisitions and unanticipated liabilities of the acquired
businesses,* entering markets in which we have no prior experience and may not succeed,and ¢ potential loss of key employees
or key clients of the acquired business as a result of the acquisition or integration of the acquired business.We have experienced
increased operating costs to resolve the challenge% of prior acquisitions.If we fail to appropriately integrate any acquired
business,we may fail to achieve our growth,service enhancement or operational efflelency objeetlveq and our business,results of
operatlonq and financial condmon could be harmed v letha ;

eeﬁs*tdefab-}e-feseﬂfees-en—t-hes&effeﬁs-lf we are unable to attraet maintain and manage quahﬁed pel%onnel 1nclud1ng our sales

force, our business may be harmed. To succeed, we must be able to attract and retain highly motivated and qualified personnel.



Competition for skilled employees is intense , and like many businesses, we are susceptible to fluctuations in the labor market.
For example, as we continue to expand our operations in India, we are also entering a new labor market. If we are unable to
attract and retain qualified personnel, in either or both of the US and India (or any other jurisdiction into which we expand), our
business may suffer. For example, for a variety of reasons, including due to changes in industry or client focus, compensation
structure, third- party competition for sales talent and other factors we have experienced elevated sales force attrition in the
TRINET21 2024 FORM 10- K past and may experience it in the future. Newly hired sales personnel are typically not
productive for some period of time following their hiring, which results in increased near- term costs to us relative to their actual
sales contributions during this period. If we are unable to effectively train and maintain an adequately seasoned and sized sales
force, new client onboarding will not increase at the rate that we anticipate, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations. Our industry is competitive, which may limit our ability to maintain or
increase our market share or improve our results of operations. We face significant competition on a national and regional level
from other PEOs, and ASOs that do not use co- employment relationships s-end-HRISseftware-providers-, as well as from other
existing, and potential, companies and industries that service, or may in the future service, client HCM needs. Refer to the
heading “ Competition ” under Part I, Item 1. Business, above for more details. Our competitors, regardless of industry, may
have greater marketing and financial resources than we have, and may be better positioned than we are in certain markets.
Increased competition in our industry could result in price reductions or loss of market share, any of which could harm our
business. We expect that we will continue to experience competitive pricing pressure and competition from new technologies
and HCM service models, any one of which could have a material adverse effect on our business. We may not be able to keep
pace with changes in technology or provide timely enhancements to our solutions and support. The market for our
solutions is characterized by rapid technological advancements, changes in customer requirements, frequent new
product introductions and enhancements, and changing industry standards. To maintain our growth strategy, we must
adapt and respond to technological advances and technological requirements of our clients. Our future success will
depend on our ability to: enhance our current solutions and introduce new solutions in order to keep pace with solutions
offered by our competitors. We continue to make significant investments related to the development of new technology.
If our systems become outdated, it may negatively impact our ability to meet performance expectations related to
quality, time to market, cost and innovation relative to our competitors. The failure to provide a more efficient and user-
friendly customer- facing digital experience across internet and mobile platforms as well as in physical locations may
adversely impact our business and operating results. We cannot assure you that our efforts to update and integrate
systems will be successful. If we do not integrate and update our systems in a timely manner, or if our investments in
technology fail to provide the expected results, there could be a material adverse effect to our business and results of
operations. We face risks associated with our international operations. In August 2024, we opened a new office in
Hyderabad, India, which increases the size and scale of our India- based workforce and operations. Historically, our
business and operations have been primarily conducted in the United States. A disruption to, or our failure to
successfully integrate, our operations in India could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations. Our current and potential future international operations are subject to certain risks,
including: « fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and global market volatility; * difficulties and costs of
staffing and managing foreign operations, including cultural and language differences and additional employment
regulations, union workforce negotiations and potential disputes; * geopolitical, economic or social instability or military
conflict; » natural disasters, terrorist attacks and other events over which we have no control; * compliance with local
laws and regulations, including privacy and security laws and regulations; * compliance with laws governing doing
business outside the United States, including foreign or domestic legal and regulatory requirements resulting in the
imposition of new or more onerous sanctions and anti- corruption laws, export and import controls, trade restrictions,
tariffs, duties, taxes, embargoes, exchange or other government controls; * laws and business practices favoring local
companies; and * management of potentially adverse tax consequences from India, the United States, or both, as a result
of our multi- jurisdiction operations. Any of these risks could have an adverse impact on our ability to successfully
manage our business and consequently have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. Cyber- attacks, breaches, disclosures or other data- related incidents could result in reduced revenue, increased
costs, liability claims, regulatory penalties, regulatory disclosure requirements and damage to our reputation. TREINET21+-2023
FORM16-K-We and our third- party service providers and subcontractors collect, store, use, retain, disclose, transfer and
process a significant amount of confidential, sensitive and personal information from and about our actual and potential clients,
WSEs ;sHRIESHsers-and colleagues, including bank account numbers, social security numbers, tax information, PHI, health
claim information, retirement account information, and payroll data. Maintaining the security and confidentiality of this
information is critically important to our clients, WSEs s HRESUsers-and colleagues. For more information regarding our
cybersecurity risk management framework and governance, refer to Part I, Item 1C. Cybersecurity. TRINET22 2024 FORM
10- K Due to the size and complexity of our technology platform and services, the amount of confidential, sensitive and personal
information that we store, we and our service providers are potentially susceptible to a variety of intentional or inadvertent
cyber- attacks, breaches, disclosures and other data- related incidents and threats. Cybersecurity threats can take a variety of
forms. Malicious actors may develop and deploy viruses, worms and other malicious software programs that attack our
networks and data centers or those of our service providers. Malicious actors may also direct social engineering, phishing,
credential stuffing, ransomware, denial or degradation of service attacks and similar types of attacks against any or all of us, our
clients and our service providers. Other threats include inadvertent security breaches or diselosure-disclosures , misuse or
unauthorized access or other improper actions by our colleagues, clients, WSEs s HRESHsers-, service providers and other
business partners. Cyber- attacks, breaches, disclosures and other data- related incidents are increasing in frequency and



evolving in nature. While we devote substantial time and resources to training our colleagues to identify and avoid such
incidents, no training or cybersecurity program can offer absolute protection against such attacks and incidents. Any actual or
attempted cyber- attack, breach, disclosure or other data- related incident, could result in data loss, the unauthorized access or
use of personally identifiable information, or business interruption, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, reputation, financial condition or results of operation. Public perception of, or even inaccurate or unfounded rumors of,
any such cyber- attacks, breaches, disclosures, or other data- related incidents, could have a material adverse effect on our
business, reputation, financial condition or results of operation. Any such cyber- attacks, breaches, disclosures or other data-
related incidents, could result in material financial liability by:  causing us to incur material fines, penalties, orders, sanctions
and proceedings or actions against us or our service providers by regulatory authorities, clients and other third parties, *
requiring us to indemnify clients and other third parties, * damaging our reputation, ¢ causing us to incur significant expenses to
defend our actions and practices, ¢ delaying product and service development plans, ¢ causing unrelated compliance breaches
through system failures or management distraction, and  increasing our costs of doing business. Although we maintain
insurance coverage for such events, the amount of our insurance may not cover these costs, and we cannot be certain
that cyber insurance will continue to be available to us on economically reasonable terms, or at all, or that any insurer
will not deny coverage as to any future claim. TriNet does not need to be the direct target of such cyber- attacks, breaches,
disclosures or other data- related incidents, for them to have a material adverse effect on our operations. A cyber- attack on a key
third- party Soft\ are service pr0Vlder or a new Vulneldblhty identified in softW"lre that we use, could disrupt our services or

1dent1f1ed regularly, by orgmlzdtlons like the U. S Cybersecunty and lnfrastlucture Secunty Agency Slmllar cyber- attqcks
breaches, disclosures and other data- related incidents, including those resulting from a vulnerability, involving a client could
also result in access to TriNet’ s systems. Any such incidents, even if not initially directed at TriNet, could also have a material
adverse effect on our business operations, result in liability, fines and penalties or other regulatory sanctions, a loss of
confidence in our ability to provide our services, and / or harm our reputation and relationships with current or potential clients.
We, our clients and our service providers have been the victims of cyber- attacks, breaches, disclosure or other data- related
incidents, in the past that led to disclosure of the confidential, sensitive or personal information we possess, and we, our clients
and our service providers expect to be victims again in the future. Similarly, we and our service providers have experienced
disruption to, or unauthorized access to, our networks, applications, bank accounts and other key systems in the past and similar
events may occur again in the future. We have reported data breaches to regulators, affected individuals, clients and other third
parties in the past and we expect to do so in the future as appropriate. While we do not believe that any such past events
constitute a material cybersecurity incident or resulted in material expenditures, future events could result in a material adverse
1mpact on our :PR—I-N-E—’EQ—EG%—FGRNHG-—IGOperanm For more mform"mon res_ardmg our analys1s of mdtendl cybersecunty




—tegtatory e settons-ortab eyt etttd-matertatya v
operatingresults- We must comply with constantly evolving, data privacy , Al and security laws and regulations, which may
require substantial costs or changes to our business, and any actual or perceived compliance failure could result in reduced
revenue, increased costs, liability claims, regulatory penalties, and damage to our reputation. We are subject to various federal,
state and local laws, rules, and regulations, as well as contractual obligations, relating to the collection, storage, use, retention,
security, disclosure, transfer and other processing of confidential, sensitive and personal information. Existing laws and
regulations are constantly evolving, and new laws and regulations that apply to our business are being introduced at every level
of government inside and outside of the United States. TRINET23 2024 FORM 10- K Depending on the applicable
jurisdiction, these laws may be more stringent or broader in scope, or offer greater individual rights, with respect to confidential,
sensitive and personal information than federal, international or other state laws, and such laws may differ from each other,
which may complicate compliance efforts, requiring attention to changing regulatory requirements. As the patchwork of privacy
laws to which we are subject becomes increasingly complex, the cost of complying with all of the requirements will rise and we
cannot guarantee our compliance efforts will be successful. TRINEF23-2023-FORM-16-We are exploring the use of AI and
ML in an effort to deploy capabilities that are beneficial to our clients and WSEs. In recent years, legislation that creates
obligations with respect to the development and / or use of AI has been adopted or is under consideration in the U. S. at
both the federal and state level, as well as abroad. In addition, self - K-regulatory frameworks like the National Institute
of Standards and Technology AI Risk Management Framework are being promulgated and adherence to such
regulatory frameworks may become an industry standard or a client expectation. As a result, current or future laws
(including product liability regimes), regulatory or self- regulatory requirements or ethical considerations, including our
own published, guiding ethical principles regarding AI and ML, could restrict or impose burdensome and costly
requirements on our ability to leverage data and / or these technologies in innovative ways. For details regarding these data
privacy and security laws and regulations discussed above and that apply to our operations, refer to Part I, Item 1. Business, of
this Form 10- K, under the heading “ The Laws and Regulations that affect Our Business: Data Privacy and Security
Regulations ”. Complying with these and any other data privacy and security laws, rules and regulations, and with any new laws
or regulations or changes to existing laws, could cause us to incur substantial costs or require us to change our business practices
in a manner adverse to our business, divert resources from other initiatives and projects, and restrict the way products and
services involving data are offered, all of which may have a material adverse effect on our business. Despite our efforts, in the
future we may be unable to make required changes and modifications to our business practices in a commercially reasonable
manner, or at all. Given the rapid development of cybersecurity and data privacy laws, we may be required to incur significant,
unexpected compliance costs and we may be exposed to significant penalties or liability for non- compliance, the possibility of
fines, lawsuits (including class action privacy litigation), regulatory investigations, criminal or civil sanctions, audits, adverse
media coverage, public censure, other claims, significant costs for remediation and damage to our reputation, all of which could
have a material adverse effect on our business and operations. Any inability, or the perception of any inability, to adequately
address data privacy or data- related concerns, even if unfounded, or to comply with applicable laws, regulations, standards and
other obligations relating to data privacy and security, could result in additional cost and liability to us, damage our relationships
with clients and have a material adverse effect on our business. As a sponsor of employee benefit plans with access to certain
PHI, we are subject to regulation at the federal level, including under the HIPAA and the HITECH Act. HIPAA contains
restrictions and health data privacy, security and breach notification requirements with respect to the use and disclosure of PHI.
There are penalties and fines for HIPAA violations. Due to our international footprint, we have customers and colleagues
outside of the United States. If we fail to comply with applicable data privacy regulations in the countries in which we send and
receive personal data, we may be exposed to regulatory action and fines, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business. The services we provide to our clients are subject to numerous complex federal, state and local laws and regulations,
including those described in Part I, Item 1. Business, of this Form 10- K. These laws and regulations cover a diverse range of
topics, including employer status, employee and independent contractor classifications, employee benefits, health and retirement
plans, workers' compensation, banking and money transmission, employment and payroll tax, worksite safety, insurance, wage
and hour, anti- discrimination, and many topics specific to the industries of our clients. Many of these laws do not specifically
address PEOs or co- employment relationships, and regulators are often unfamiliar with the PEO industry and co- employment
relationships, which can lead to unpredictable application, interpretation and enforcement of these laws and regulations at the
federal, state and local levels in relation to our business. Our HRES-ASQ services can also be subject to complex federal, state
and local laws and regulations regarding payroll agents, employment and payroll taxes, insurance producers, banking and money
transmission, and other licensing requirements. The tax credit support services we provide are also subject to federal, state and
local regulations regarding tax preparation and practice that limit the services we can provide to SMBs. While regulations
governing HRES-ASO services and tax credit support services do not involve the complexity of a co- employment relationship,
these services are in some ways also highly regulated and such regulations can, and do, change regularly at the federal, state and
local levels. ; -mid-—January-the se-of Rep att axRelie
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the-ERFC-early—Any new laws, changes in existing laws, or any adverse application, interpretation or enforcement of new or
existing laws, including those described in Part I, Item 1. Business, of this Form 10- K, whether they apply to employers
generally or specifically to PEOs or to our co- employment relationships could: TRINET24 2024 FORM 10- K - reduce or
eliminate the value and benefits that clients realize by using our services, * change or eliminate the types of services we provide,
* require us to make significant changes to how we do business and provide services, * require us to modify our current business
practices or operations, * affect the extent and type of employee benefits that employers and co- employers can or must provide
employees, FRIENEF24-2023-FORM-16-K— alter the amount, timing and type of taxes employers, co- employers, clients ;-and
WSEs ;-and-HRISUsers-are required to pay and that we must manage for and collect from our clients, * increase the cost and
complexity of the licensing requirements for our business operations, ® create or increase our liability and responsibilities to our
clients and WSEs s HRISHsers-, and / or » mandate new compliance requirements, disclosures or services. Any of the above
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. For example, we have seen a
growing trend, particularly at the federal level, of using payroll tax credits, deferrals and other related payroll tax programs as a
mechanism for incentivizing SMB development and economic recovery. These programs are popular because they allow SMBs,
which often have income tax losses, to realize benefits via payroll tax reductions, rather than income tax reductions. However,
these programs have generally not been designed with the PEO industry in mind and rely on calculations contained in client
income tax returns which PEOs do not process in their role as the co- employer or other client data that cannot be verified by a
PEO, even though the resulting tax benefits are processed through the PEO’ s payroll tax returns. Because minimal guidance
exists in the statutes that create these programs, they are subject to broad and varied agency interpretation and application. In
addition, the processes used to evaluate payroll tax filings are designed with individual taxpayers in mind, not PEOs that
aggregate the filings of many clients, whlch can further i increase varied 1nterpretat10n by agenc1es and make it dlfﬁcult to predict
their 1nterpretat10n and apphcatlon 6 ample;-we-must-elaim : goreg ederal-ta

W VoSV 0 ees Some of these programs 1nclude the
2()15 PATH Act, whlch allows SMBs to use R & D tax credlts submltted on the SMB’ s income tax return to reduce the SMB’ s
payroll taxes, and the CARES Act and FFCRA Aet-payroll tax credit and payroll tax deferral program enacted in 2020 and
2021, which allow SMBs to defer certain payroll tax obligations to a later date or to receive payroll tax credits based on SMB
employment practices that are beyond our control. The IRS has taken positions that we and other PEOs, rather than clients, are
responsible for client errors and repaying rejected tax credit claims under these and similar programs. While our clients are
contractually responsible for repaying us for any rejected tax credits under these programs, a contract does not guarantee our
ability to recover rejected tax credits and any failure to recover rejected tax credits from our clients would increase our operating
expenses, which could result in a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Similarly, the IRS
has taken positions that the tax benefits under some of these programs should be calculated on an aggregate PEO, rather than
individual client, basis, which can limit whether and how we obtain credits for our clients. We cannot predict how these
positions will ultimately be resolved and if they are resolved unfavorably, we may be forced to discontinue supporting some or
all of these programs, incur tax expenses that we cannot recover from our clients, and divert management’ s attention to
defending our positions, any one of which could have a material adverse effect on our ability to attract and retain SMB clients or
on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, many states have also implemented assistance
programs, such as mandatory employee leave requirements and other employment- and employment tax- related incentives. Our
SMB clients rely on us to help them take advantage of these programs, and new laws, regulations and agency or judicial
interpretations of these laws could change or eliminate existing programs at any time, which could force us to discontinue
supporting these programs or incur liability that we cannot recover from our clients, which could cause us to lose clients and
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Changing laws and regulations
governing health insurance and other traditional employee benefits at the federal, state and local level could negatively affect
our business. Changes to and continued uncertainty regarding the implementation and future of health care reform in the United
States, at the federal, state and local level, has the potential to substantially change the health insurance market for SMBs and
how such employers provide health insurance to their employees, which could have a materially adverse effect on how we
provide our sponsored health benefits to our WSEs, and our ability to attract and retain our clients. In addition, changes at the
federal, state and local level to the laws and regulations regarding other traditional employee benefits, such as retirement and
workers’ compensation benefits, also have the potential to substantially change the types of benefit programs that are available
to SMBs and that we and other PEOs may be required to offer. Our ability to comply with, and adapt our service offerings to
take advantage of, any such changes could require significant additional costs, divert management attention, or be prohibitive
based on cost, technology or other factors, which could result in a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations. FRENEF25-2623-FORMHO-K-If we are not recognized as an employer of our worksite employees,
and if our benefit plans are deemed to not satisfy plan requirements, under federal and state regulations, we and our clients could
be adversely impacted. TRINET25 2024 FORM 10- K In order to sponsor some of our most important employee benefit plan
offerings for WSEs, including health plans, we must qualify as an-the employer of WSEs, and our plans must qualify as
employer- sponsored plans, under applicable provisions of the Code and ERISA. In particular, our status as the employer for the
purposes of ERISA is important because ERISA preempts state laws that otherwise might apply to, and limit, our benefit plan
offerings. The definition of employer under the Code and ERISA is not uniform and is defined in part by different facts and
circumstances tests, and there is no definitive judicial interpretation of employer in the context of PEOs. Generally, the tests
used under the Code or ERISA are designed to evaluate whether an individual is an independent contractor or employee, and
they confer substantial weight to whether a purported employer has the right to direct and control the details of an individual' s




work. Some factors that may be considered important under these tests have included the employer’ s degree of behavioral
control (for example the extent of instructions, training and evaluation of the work), financial control and the economic aspects
of the work relationship, the type of relationship, as evidenced by the specific contract, if any, whether employee benefits are
provided, whether the work is indefinite in duration or project- based, and whether it is a regular part of the employer’ s
business. We-beleve-thatIn our opinion, we qualify as the sole employer of WSEs for the purposes of Sections 3 (5) and 3
(40) of ERISA and that our health plans are single- employer plans that, as such, are entitled to ERISA’ s preemption of state
law. However, the DOL routinely audits employee benefit plan offerings of employers, and in one routine audit of one of
TriNet’ s health plans that concluded in 2021, the DOL indicated that while it agrees that we are an employer for ERISA
purposes, it believes that wherever there is more than one employer of a WSE, no employer may qualify as a single employer for
ERISA purposes. Similarly, in 2022, the DOL revised an existing publication regarding regulation of MEWAs and added a new
section stating its view that a PEO arrangement offering health coverage to more than one client is a MEWA under Section 3
(40) of ERISA. This DOL interpretation is contrary to our interpretation of the applicable ERISA facts and circumstances test,
and it also is contrary to the position taken by other national PEOs. We will continue to vigorously defend our pesitien-opinion
that we are the sole employer of our WSEs for the purposes of Sections 3 (5) and 3 (40) of ERISA, and therefore that our health
plans are single employer plans entitled to ERISA” s preemption of applicable state laws. White-Although we do not currently
have ne-eurrent-any ongoing DOL audit on —getng;-this issuc and-, we have received requests for information on the issue
from the-other MEWA-—publieationrefereneced-above-may-arise-tn-government agencies. It is possible that these requests, or
future DOL audits ef FriNet-plans-or-the-plans-of, could lead a government agency to disagree with ether—- the PEOs-in-our
industry-Company’ s interpretation . If it were ultimately determined that health plans sponsored by TriNet are multiple
employer plans and subject to potential regulation at the state level, we would likely adjust our business model and the manner
in which we provide employee health benefits to WSEs. Any such outcome or adjustment would require significant investment
in time, cost and management attention and would have a-material-an adverse impact on our clients and WSEs and the type of
products and services we provide to them, which could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.
As anthe employer of WSEs under ERISA, we must manage our plans in accordance with ERISA requirements, which could
impact how we fulfill plan obligations, how we price services, the features of our benefit plans, and how we administer and
operate our plans. We believe that our benefit plans satisfy all applicable ERISA requirements, but if it were ultimately
determined that we fail to satisfy any such requirements, we would likely be required to adjust our business model, including
with respect to each of the areas outlined above, and could be subject to material fines or penalties. Any such consequence may
result in a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations. We have seen inereasee-state efforts to regulate PEO
health plans. For example, rew-legislation and proposed rules in New Mexico seek to prevent WSEs of small greap-employers
from participation in PEO sponsored large group market health plans, with exception for plans the PEOs register as MEWAs
under state law. These rules, and legislation, and any other new or changed rules that treat PEO health plans as multiple
employer plans, restrict PEO fees with carriers or that limit the availability of PEO benefit plans, if upheld to be legally valid
and applicable to our PEO health plans, would likely require us to adjust our business model in the states with such rules,
including the manner in which we provide employee health benefits to WSEs and price our services, and could result in material
fines or penalties. Any such outcome or adjustment would require significant investment in time, cost and management attention
and would have a material impact on our clients and WSEs and the type of products and services we provide to them, which
could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations. Similarly, to qualify for favorable tax treatment
under the Code, certain employee benefit plans, such as 401 (k) retirement plans and cafeteria plans, must be established and
maintained by an employer for the exclusive benefit of its employees. All of our 401 (k) retirement plans are operated pursuant
to guidance provided by the IRS and have received favorable determination letters from the IRS confirming their tax- qualified
status. However, the IRS uses its own complex, multi- factor test to ascertain whether an employment relationship exists
between a worker and a purported employer. Although we believe that we qualify as an employer of WSEs under the Code, we
cannot assure you that the IRS will not challenge our position or continue to provide favorable determination letters. FRINEF26
2023 FORMI6—+—Moreover, the IRS' 401 (k) guidance and qualification requirements are not applicable to the operation of
our cafeteria plans. TRINET26 2024 FORM 10- K Further, if we are not recognized as an employer of our WSEs under the
Code or by any state tax authority, we may be required to change the method by which we report and remit payroll taxes to the
IRS or such tax authorities. Such changes could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations. The
definition of employers, employees and independent contractors is evolving. Changes to the laws and regulations that govern
what it means to be an employer or an employee may require us to make significant changes in our operations and may
negatively affect our business. Views on employers, employees and independent contractors continue to change are-ehanging
atarapidrate-at federal, state and local levels. Any-state-regutations-Regulations that change existing definitions and
classifications of employers, employees and independent contractors could affect the types of client employees we can support
through our PEO and HRES-ASO services, the way in which we provide TriNet- sponsored benefits to our WSEs, the way in
which we report and remit payroll taxes to tax authorities, and our legal liability for the actions and inactions of our clients,
which may negatively impact client demand for the services we provide, require us to modify or change how we operate our
business and have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations. At the federal level, the DOL published a
final rule in January 2024 en-identifying new criteria for the DOL' s classification of employees and independent
ontractors under the FLSA Meanwhlle, the NLRB modlﬁed 1ts standard for determlmng 1ndependent contractor status =
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standard setting-forthits-standards-underthe NERAfor determining joint employer status under the NLRA. The NLRB

declined to appeal the district court' s ruling, effectively restoring the prior rule that had been in place only since 2020 .
Standards for determining joint employer status vary from law to law and state to state. Joint employment is not the same as co-
employment, and we do not believe that we are a joint employer under any law or rule, or that these rule changes impact our
status as a co- employer. However, continuing uncertainty regarding independent contractor and joint employer status could still
result in increased regulatory and worker claims, which could divert management attention and cause us to incur additional and
potentially material costs to defend. Remote work continues to be widely used by employers across the country. The laws and
regulations that govern employees were not drafted with remote workers in mind and changes in, uncertainty regarding, or
adverse application of these laws could negatively affect our business. Many Mere-and-mere-cmployees, including WSEs and
HRISYsers-, are working from home ane-. SMBs, including our clients, are-inereasingly-hiring-have hired and continue to
hire employees in locations where they have not previously had employees , and / or permitting existing employees to relocate
to other locations and work entirely remotely. Other employees may work at home in one state or city some of the time and in an
office in another state or city at other times. The work location and residence of an employee can create confusion regarding the
federal, state and local laws that apply, including labor and employment, payroll and payroll tax, and unemployment laws. For
example, it can be difficult to determine the amount of payroll and unemployment taxes that must be paid when employees
spend part of their time working from home in one state and part of their time working in an office in another state. Regulations
regarding payroll and unemployment taxes are still catching up to this new reality, which creates a risk that states will disagree
about the taxes that must be paid, or the employment laws that must apply, in these situations. New laws, changes in laws or
adverse application or interpretation of laws that depend on the residence and work location of WSEs and-HRISHsers-could
reduce or eliminate the attractiveness of our services, significantly increase our compliance costs and the cost to provide our
services, or require us to make substantial changes to the way in which we operate, and any one of these outcomes could result
in a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Even where remote workers live and work in the
same state and city, as a co- employer of WSEs, our PEO services are open to the risk that new laws, changes in laws or adverse

apphcatlon or 1nterp1etat10n of laws will expand PEO reipon%lblhty f01 remote WSEs. Feﬁex&mp-}e,—dttﬂﬂg—t-he—ee%-%

may expeet—te—%ee add-rt-teﬁa-l—sr&n-}&r—expamlom of PEO reipon%lblhty and we cannot gualantee that we Wlll be able to recover
the-compliance costs related to eemply-with-such ehanges-expansions from our clients, which could have a material adverse
effect on our business. If we do not comply with our regulatory license requirements, or if we are deemed to be operating in
various non- PEO licensed industries without the required licenses, we and our clients could be adversely impacted. Most states
require PEOs to hold a license and we are licensed as a PEO in all states that require such licenses. If we are not able to satisfy
existing or future PEO licensing requirements or other applicable regulations in any state, we may be prohibited from doing
business in that state, including having any clients within that state. State regulatory authorities generally impose licensing
requirements on companies acting as insurance agents or third- party administrators, such as those that handle health or
retirement plan funding and claim processing. TriNet FRINEF27F2023-FORM1H0-K-does not provide broker insurance, but we
do maintain producer licenses in all 50 states and select U. S. territories for our HRES-ASO services and for our OMS product
family, which offers clients the option to receive PEO services from TriNet while sponsoring their own health benefits obtained
through brokers. Other state regulatory authorities impose licensing requirements on companies involved in the transmission of
cash, such as banks, and other money transmitters. We do not believe that our current activities require any such licenses, but we
and others in our industry have received inquiries from regulatory authorities in the past and could receive them in the future.
Businesses similar to our HRES-ASO services have been subject to such licensing requirements in the past and although
TRINET27 2024 FORM 10- K we believe that our operations have been designed to be compliant and avoid such
requirements, we cannot guarantee that all regulators will agree. If regulatory authorities in any state determine that we are
acting as an insurance agent, third- party administrator, money transmitter, or as any other regulated industry other than a PEO,
we may need to hire additional personnel to manage regulatory compliance and pay annual regulatory fees, which could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. We may be adversely impacted by any failure of
third- party service providers to perform their functions. As part of providing services to clients, we rely on a number of
third- party service providers. Service providers include, but are not limited to, banks used to electronically transfer
funds from clients to their employees, information technology vendors, and couriers used to deliver client payroll checks.
Failure by these service providers, for any reason, to deliver their services in a timely manner and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations could result in material interruptions to our operations, impact client relations, and
result in significant penalties or liabilities to us. Failure to comply with anti- corruption laws and regulations, economic
and trade sanctions, and similar laws could have a materially adverse effect on our reputation, results of operations or
financial condition, or have other adverse consequences. We are required to comply with regulations administered by
multi- national bodies and governmental agencies worldwide including, but not limited to, the economic sanctions and
embargo programs administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control (“ OFAC ”), and the Foreign Corrupt Practices
Act (“ FCPA 7). OFAC places restrictions on the sale or export of certain products and services to certain countries and
persons. A violation of a sanction or embargo program, or of the FCPA, or similar laws prohibiting certain payments to
governmental officials, could subject us, and individual employees, to a regulatory enforcement action as well as
significant civil and criminal penalties which could adversely impact our business and operations. The growth of our
international operations also subjects us to additional risks, such as compliance with foreign laws and regulations. The
enactment of new laws and regulations, modifications of existing laws and regulations, or the adverse application or
interpretation of new or existing laws or regulations can adversely affect our business. Additionally, as federal, state, and
international regulations become more complex, the risk that we may be unable to comply with those regulations




increases, particularly in the event there are different or additional regulatory standards in different jurisdictions. We
are subject to legal and tax proceedings that may result in adverse outcomes. We are subject to claims, lawsuits, government
investigations, and other legal and regulatory proceedings arising from the ordinary course of our business. Refer to Note 9 in
Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K for additional information about the legal
proceedings we are currently involved in and future proceedings that we may face. Current and future legal proceedings may
result in substantial costs and may divert management’ s attention and resources, which may seriously harm our business, results
of operations, financial condition and liquidity. In addition, the tax authorities in the U. S. regularly examine our tax returns.
Refer to Note 12 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K for additional details
regarding tax examinations and disputes. The ultimate outcome of tax examinations and disputes cannot be predicted with
certainty. Should the IRS or other tax authorities assess additional taxes as a result of any audit or examination, we may be
required to record charges to operations that could have a material impact on our results of operations, financial position or cash
flows. Financial and Stock Ownership Risks Our results of operations and stock price may fluctuate as a result of numerous
factors, many of which are outside of our control. Our future operating results and stock price are subject to fluctuations and
quarterly variations based upon a variety of factors, many of which are not within our control, including, without limitation: ¢
the volume and severity of health and workers' compensation insurance claims made by our WSEs, recorded as part of our
insurance costs, and the timing of related claims information provided by our insurance carriers, * the amount and timing of our
insurance premiums and other insurance costs, operating expenses and capital expenditures, ¢ the number of our new clients and
the number of WSEs er-HRISUsers-employed by each new client, « the retention or loss of existing clients, for any reason,
including third- party acquisition, * a reduction in the number of WSEs erHRISUsers-employed by existing clients, * a
reduction in the rate of WSE er-HRISUser-hiring by existing clients, * the timing of client payments and payment defaults by
clients, « the costs associated with our acquisitions of companies, assets and technologies, * any payments or draw downs on our
credit facility, TRINET28 2024 FORM 10- K - any unanticipated expenses, such as litigation or other dispute- related
settlement payments and compliance expenses arising from changes in regulations or regulatory enforcement, ¢ any expenses
we incur for geographic and service expansion and service enhancements, * any changes in laws or adverse interpretation or
enforcement of laws, which may require us to change the manner in which we operate and / or increase our regulatory
compliance costs, * any changes in our effective tax rate, ¢ the issuance of common stock or debt to pay for future acquisitions,
which could dilute our stockholders or subject us to significant debt service obligations, FRINEF28-2023-FORM16-¥— the
repurchase of our common stock under our stock repurchase program or otherwise, which could impact earnings per share and
increase the ownership percentage of non- participating stockholders, « amortization expense, or the impairment of intangible
assets and goodwill, associated with past or future acquisitions, and * the impact of new accounting pronouncements. In
addition, the trading price of our common stock is subject to fluctuation in response to a variety of factors, including the factors
above and below, many of which are not within our control, including, without limitation:  the overall performance of the
equity markets, ¢ any trading activity, or a market expectation regarding such activity, by our directors, executive officers and
significant stockholders, ¢ the economy as a whole, and its impact on SMBs and our clients, * the performance and market
perception of companies that investors believe are similar to us, * changes in the interest rates and financial performance of our
cash investments, which may increase during periods of high inflation and market volatility and impact our interest income, *
any significant changes in the liquidity of our common stock, and » market acceptance of our performance across non- financial
factors, including evolving environmental, social, and governance factors favored by investors and required by regulators. Many
of the above factors are discussed in more detail elsewhere in this Risk Factors section and in Part I, Item 7. MD & A, of this
Form 10- K. Many of these factors are outside our control, and the variability and unpredictability of these factors have in the
past and could in the future cause us to fail to meet our expectations and the expectations of investors and any industry analysts
who cover our shares, which could result in a decline in our share price and reduced liquidity in our shares. In addition, the
occurrence of one or more of these factors might cause our results of operations to vary widely, which could lead to negative
impacts on our margins, short- term liquidity, and our ability to retain or attract key personnel, and could cause other
unanticipated issues, including a downgrade of our securities by or change in opinion of industry analysts and a related decline in
our share price. The terms of our eredit-faettity-current or future indebtedness may restrict our current and future operations,
which would impair our ability to respond to changes in our business and to manage our business. Our credit facility and the
indentures governing the 2029 Notes and the 2031 Notes eontains- contain , and any future indebtedness of ours would
likely contain, a number of restrictive covenants that impose significant operating and financial restrictions on us subject to
customary exceptions, including restricting our ability to: * incur, assume or prepay debt or incur or assume liens, * pay
dividends or distributions or redeem or repurchase capital stock, ¢ make loans, investments or acquisitions, * enter into sale-
leaseback transactions, ¢ enter into new lines of business, * complete a significant corporate transaction, such as a merger or sale
of our company or its assets, and ¢ enter into agreements that prohibit the incurrence of liens or the payment by our subsidiaries
of dividends and distributions. Our failure to comply with these—- the restrictions and the other terms and conditions under our
credit facility and the indentures governing the 2029 Notes and the 2031 Notes could result in a default, which in turn could
result in the termination of the lenders’ commitments to extend further credit to us under our credlt facility and acceleratlon ofa
substantial portion of these borrowings before their due date ot A ; : . I
that were to happen, we may not be able to repay all of the amounts that would become due under our indebtedness or refinance
our debt, which could materially harm our business and force us to seek bankruptcy protection. We may require additional
capital or need to restructure our existing debt to pursue our business objectives and to respond to business
opportunities, challenges or unforeseen circumstances. If capital is not available to us, our business, results of operations,
and financial condition may be adversely affected. We intend to continue to make expenditures and investments to
support the growth of our business and may require additional capital to pursue our business objectives and respond to




business opportunities, challenges, or TRINET29 2024 FORM 10- K unforeseen circumstances, including the need to
develop new solutions or enhance our existing solutions, enhance our operating infrastructure, and acquire
complementary businesses and technologies. Accordingly, we may need to engage in equity or debt financing activities to
secure additional funds or restructure our existing debt. However, additional funds may not be available or we may not
be able to restructure our existing debt when we need to on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all. Volatility in equity
capital markets may materially and adversely affect our ability to fund our business through public or private sales of
equity securities or debt restructuring. Rising interest rates and / or instability in the banking and finance industries may
reduce our access to debt capital. Our current debt agreements and any future debt financing that we secure in the
future could involve restrictive covenants, which may make it more difficult for us to obtain additional capital and to
pursue business opportunities. In addition, the restrictive covenants in the credit facility, the indentures governing our
2029 Notes and 2031 Notes and any additional credit facilities or debt agreements we may secure in the future may
restrict us from being able to conduct our operations in a manner appropriate for our business and may restrict our
growth, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations. We cannot
assure you that we will be able to comply with any such restrictive covenants in our current or future indebtedness. In
the event that we are unable to comply with these covenants in the future, we would seek an amendment or waiver of the
covenants. We cannot assure you that any such waiver or amendment would be granted. In such event, we may be
required to repay any or all of such borrowings, and we cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain alternative
funding arrangements on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. If we are unable to obtain adequate financing or
financing on terms satisfactory to us, when we require it, our ability to continue to pursue our business objectives and to
respond to business opportunities, challenges, or unforeseen circumstances could be significantly limited, and our
business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects could be materially and adversely affected. We cannot
guarantee that our stock repurchase program will be fully implemented or that it will enhance long- term stockholder
value. In May 2014, our board of directors approved a stock repurchase program. From time to time, our board of
directors authorizes increases to our stock repurchase program and has approved an aggregate total of $ 2, 715 million
as of December 31, 2024. The total remaining authorization for future stock repurchases under our stock repurchase
program was $ 251 million as of December 31, 2024. We plan to use current cash and cash generated from ongoing
operating activities to fund our stock repurchase program. Under the program, share repurchases may be made at our
discretion from time to time in open market transactions, privately negotiated transactions, or other means. The
program does not obligate us to repurchase any specific dollar amount or to acquire any specific number of shares of our
outstanding stock. The timing and number of any future shares repurchased under the program will depend on a variety
of factors, including stock price, trading volume, and general business and market conditions. Our board of directors
will review the program periodically and may authorize adjustments of its terms, if appropriate. As a result, there can
be no guarantee around the timing or volume of our share repurchases. The program could affect the price of our
common stock, increase volatility and diminish our cash reserves. The program may be suspended or terminated at any
time and, even if fully implemented, may not enhance long- term stockholder value. Refer to Part II, Item 5 of this
Annual Report on Form 10- K for additional information. Atairos, our largest stockholder, may have significant influence
over our Company, and the ownership of capital stock, and thus the voting control, of our Company remains concentrated in our
executive officers, directors and their affiliates, which limits your ability to influence corporate matters. FRINEF29-2023-FORM
+6—3-On February 1, 2017, an entity affiliated with Atairos Group, Inc. (together with its affiliates, “ Atairos ’) became our
largest stockholder when it acquired the shares of TriNet common stock previously held by General Atlantic. In connection with
this transaction, we appointed Michael J. Angelakis, the Chairman and CEO of Atairos, to our board of directors and agreed to
nominate Mr. Angelakis or another designee of Atairos reasonably acceptable to our Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee for election at future annual meetings until Atairos’ beneficial ownership falls below 15 % of our common stock. As
of January 31, 2624-2025 , Atairos beneficially owned approximately 36-37 % of our outstanding common stock, and all of our
directors, executive officers and their affiliates, including Atairos, beneficially own, in the aggregate, approximately 37 % of our
outstanding common stock. As a result, Atairos, particularly when acting with our executive officers, directors and their
affiliates, is able to exert substantial influence on all matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors
and approval of significant corporate transactions, such as a merger or other sale of our company or its assets. In addition, our
stockholders have no assurances that Atairos’ holdings, or the holdings of our other large stockholders, in our common stock
will not increase. This concentration of ownership could limit the ability of other stockholders to influence corporate matters and
may have the effect of delaying or preventing a third party from acquiring control over us. Anti- takeover provisions in our
charter documents and under Delaware law could make an acquisition of our company more difficult, limit attempts by
our stockholders to replace or remove our current management and limit the market price of our common stock.
Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of
control or changes in our management. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws include
provisions that: TRINET30 2024 FORM 10- K - establish a classified board of directors so that not all members of our
board of directors are elected at one time; * permit our board of directors to establish the number of directors, * provide
that directors may only be removed “ for cause ”, * require super- majority voting to amend some provisions in our
certificate of incorporation and bylaws, ¢ authorize the issuance of “ blank check ” preferred stock that our board of
directors could use to implement a stockholder rights plan, * do not give our stockholders the ability to call special
meetings of stockholders, ¢ prohibit stockholder action by written consent, and require all stockholder actions to be
taken at a meeting of our stockholders, * provide that our board of directors is expressly authorized to adopt, amend or
repeal our bylaws, and ¢ establish advance notice requirements for nominations for election to our board of directors or



for proposing matters that can be acted upon by stockholders at annual stockholder meetings. These provisions may
frustrate or prevent any attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management by making it more
difficult for our stockholders to replace members of our board of directors, which is responsible for appointing the
members of our management. In addition, because we are incorporated in Delaware, we are governed by the provisions
of Section 20623— 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which generally prohibits a Delaware corporation from
engaging in any of a broad range of business combinations with any holder of at least 15 % of our capital stock for a
period of three years following the date on which the stockholder became a 15 % stockholder, unless the business
combination is approved in a prescribed manner. TRINET31 2024 FORM 10- K PROPERTIES, LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
AND MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURESItem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments None. Item 1C. Cybersecurity Below is a
discussion of our risk management and approach to governance as it relates to cyber risks. For additional information on the
impact of cyber risks, refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10- K, under the heading “ Data Privacy and Security
Risks 7. Cyber Risk Management and Strategy Our Global Security program aims to safeguard critical assets through a risk-
based approach to cybersecurity. The CSO provides leadership for the program. We employ a defense- in- depth strategy and
has established a Security Risk Management Program. In that regard, we built a customized IRCF that was developed with the
specific intent of keeping information assets secure and preventing technology resources from unauthorized disclosure,
modification, deletion, and destruction. We have modeled our IRCF on several leading industry standards including portions of
the NIST Cybersecurity Framework. The IRCF serves as an organizational model for governance and reporting and is reviewed
annually. Our Global Security Organization is responsible for the day- to- day execution of our cyber risk management strategy.
This strategy has been incorporated into our overall ERM program and is thus informed by, and overseen through, our ERM
program. Our ERM program facilitates identifying, prioritizing, analyzing and remediating enterprise risks, in which cyber risks
are included. Within the broader ERM framework, we established a specific program- the IRM program- organizing the
governance of risks associated with information held by us. The IRM Steering Committee, of which our CSO is a member,
manages the IRM program, discusses the management of cyber risks on a regular cadence and substantive updates from the
IRM Steering Committee are provided to the ERM Steering Committee. Finally, through our ERM program, updates and
discussion regarding our cybersecurity risk management are provided to and occur at the Risk Committee of. We provide on at
least an annual basis cybersecurity awareness training to our Beard-efDireetors-employees. For example, our employees
with network access participate in required training, covering topics such as spear phishing, social engineering and other
cybersecurity threat awareness training . To supplement our cyber risk management capabilities, we utilize certain third-
party vendors. These vendors support our ability to proactively secure our network and systems, in addition to ongoing
monitoring of our cyber environment. With respect to our management of cyber risks arising from third- party vendors, we
utilize an internal risk assessment and monitoring program that includes the identification and ongoing review of third- party
controls. As part of our cyber risk management strategy, we established a process for identifying and assessing the material risk
of cybersecurity incidents. In the event a cybersecurity incident is identified, the CIRT, which is made up of a cross- functional
team, including technology, security, finance and legal professionals, acts in accordance with established processes. The CIRT
convenes regular meetings to review and analyze relevant cybersecurity indicators and information. Utilizing an IRC, if it is
determined that an incident needs to be reviewed for potential materiality, it is referred to our Chief Legal Officer who will
engage the necessary or desirable cross functional professionals as needed in order to make a determination of materiality. We
also seek to regularly update and upgrade our technology investments in an effort to further support our ability to identify and
assess risks from cybersecurity incidents. We-have-As of December 31, 2024, we are not identifted-aware of any eyber-risks
from cybersecurlty threatq er—metdeﬁfs—that have materlally affected or are rea@onably likely to materially affect us, including -
or-add 0 A e s-er-our business strategy, results of operations, e
and ﬁnanc1al condmon 7. We continue to 1nvest in cyber- res111ence and cyber- threat response preparedness as we
anticipate ongoing rlsks from cybersecurity threats. refer-Refer to Partt-the “ Risk Factors ” section contained in [tem | A
—RiskFaetors;-of this Form 10- K for more information on our cybersecurity- related —uﬂdeH-he—headmgLBata—Pfﬁmey—aﬂd
SeearityRisks-risks 2. Cyber Risk Governance Our Cyber Risk Management Strategy described in this Item 1C. is overseen by
senior executives with experience in cybersecurity and our business operations and is ultimately overseen by the Risk
Committee efthe-Beoard-. Our Global Security Organization is tasked with executing this strategy through the implementation of
cybersecurity policies, procedures, and strategies. In the event that a cybersecurity risk is identified, as and to the extent
appropriate, the Global Security Organization manages the day- to- day response to such material risk and provides regular
reports to the ERM Steering Committee, or the Risk Committee efthe-Beard-, or the Board, as appropriate. The CSO is also an
advisor to the Company' s Disclosure Committee, which meets quarterly. On a quarterly basis, a meeting of the Risk Committee
is convened to discuss and evaluate our management of enterprise- wide risks. Each meeting of the Risk Committee is facilitated
by our Executive Director for ERM and TRINET32 2024 FORM 10- K includes programmatic updates from the CSO , among
other enterprise risk topics . The Risk Committee provides updates to the full Board efBireetors-regarding the state of the
Company’ s ERM program. Cyber risks are an enterprise risk that the ERM Program monitors and thus such risks are an
ongoing area of focus of the ERM Steering Committee and, as a result, the Risk Committee. On a monthly basis, the ERM
Steering Committee is convened and receives pertinent updates regarding our management of cyber risks , as necessary .
FRINEF3H2023-FORMH0-K-In addition to the regularly scheduled programmatic updates that are provided to the ERM
Steering Committee and the Risk Committee, we also established a process to inform such committees of significant
cybersecurity events and allow them to monitor corresponding remediation efforts. Specifically, the IRM Steering Committee,
consisting of senior leaders from the security, privacy, data governance, technology, records management, and third- party risk
management programs, reports to the ERM Steering Committee and has the responsibility to provide updates regarding the
identifteatiorrprevention , management-detection, mitigation , and remediation of significant cybersecurity threats. The ERM




Steering Committee is similarly tasked with providing relevant updates to the Risk Committee , via the ERM Program,
regarding significant cybersecurity threats. Additionally, we have developed a process that is specific to the management and
analysis of cybersecurity incidents. This process includes weekly and monthly updates from the CIRT along with escalation
criteria that allows for tnetdents-significant cybersecurity threats to be reviewed for materiality on an ad hoc basis. These
updates are also provided to the ERM Steering Committee and the Risk Committee as necessary. Our CSO leads our Global
Security Organization which is responsible for overseeing , assessing and monitoring the Company' s cyber risk management
strategy. Our CSO has over 20 years of industry experience, including serving in similar roles leading and overseeing
cybersecurity programs at other companies . He holds a B. S. degree from Azusa Pacific University and an M. B. A. from
the University of Southern California . Team members who support our Global Security team have relevant educational and
industry experience, including holding similar positions at other large companies. Item 2. Properties We lease space for our
offices in various U. S. states, including the following: Corporate Headquarters: Significant Client Service Centers: * Dublin,
California » Bradenton, Florida « Austin, Texas * Hyderabad, India For more information regarding our leases, refer to Note 7
in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K. Item 3. Legal Proceedings For the
information required in this section, refer to Note 9 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this
Form 10- K. Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures Not applicable. FRINEF32-TRINET33 2623-2024 FORM 10- K STOCK
ACTIVITIESPART II Item 5. Market for Registrant” s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities Market Information and Holders of Record Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange
under the symbol “ TNET . As of February $-6 , 2624-2025 , we had 76-64 holders of record of our common stock per
Computershare Trust Company N. A., our transfer agent. Our actual number of stockholders is greater than the number of our
record holders, because it includes stockholders who are beneficial owners of our common stock, but whose shares are held in
street name by brokers and other nominees. This number of holders of record also does not include stockholders whose shares
may be held in a trust by other entities. For information regarding our equity- based incentive plans, please refer to Part III, Item
12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters, of this Form 10- K.
Dividend Policy The decision to pay cash dividends in the future is made at the discretion of our board of directors and
will depend on then- existing conditions, including our financial condition, operating results, contractual restrictions
under our credit facility (refer to Note 8 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form
10- K), capital requirements, business prospects and other factors our board of directors may deem relevant. In 2024, we
declared dividends on common stock on a quarterly ba51s of $ 0 25 per share, w1th payments beglnmng in Apl‘ll 2024
We d1d not declare or pay ca%h d1V1dend§ in 2023 6 P vidl

deefn—re{evaﬁt— Performance Graph The graph below compares the Cumulatlve total return on our common stock since
December 31, 26482019 with the cumulative total return on the S & P 500 Index and a Peer Group Index. The cumulative total
return is based on the assumption that $ 100 had been invested in TriNet Group, Inc. common stock, the Standard & Poor’ s 500
Stock Index (S & P 500) and common stock of members of a Peer Group Index, all on December 31, 26482019 and that all
dividends were reinvested. The cumulative dollar total returns shown on the graph represent the value that such investments
would have had at each year end. TRINET34 2024 FORM 10- K COMPARISON OF 5- YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL
RETURN Among TriNet Group, Inc., the S & P 500 Index, and a Peer Group (1) (1) The Peer Group Index used in the chart
above consists of the following companies: Automatic Data Processing, Inc. Insperity, Inc. Paychex, Inc. Barrett Business
Services, Inc. Intuit, Inc. FRINEF332023-FORMI6-K-The following table provides information about our purchases of
TriNet common stock during the fourth quarter of 2023-2024 : PeriodTotal Number ofShares Purchased (2) Weighted Average
PricePaid Per ShareTotal Number ofSharesPurchased as Part of PubliclyAnnounced Plans (1) Approximate Dollar Valueof
Shares that May Yet Be PurchasedUnder the Plans (in millions) (3) October 1- October 31, 262398-2024101 , 722-248 $ 169-86
. 789856 101 , 396-106 $ 435-270 November 1- November 30, 2023772024142 , 937-117 $ +69-92 . 2824-93 95 | H7959 §
433-261 December 1- December 31, 2023752024183 , 899-153 $ 90. 91 118, 674 —96—F5 433-251 Fetal25+-Total426 , 65&
+23-518 315 , 467739 (1) In May 2014, our board of directors approved a stock repurchase program pursuant to which we are
authorized to repurchase our common stock in privately negotiated and / or open market transactions, including under plans
complying with Rule 10b5- 1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. From time to time, our board of directors authorizes
increases to our stock repurchase program and has approved an aggregate total of $ 2, 715 million as of December 31, 2823
2024 . The total remaining authorization for future stock repurchases under our stock repurchase program was $ 433-251 million
as of December 31, 2023-2024 . The program does not have an expiration date. (2) Includes shares surrendered by employees to
us to satisfy tax withholding obligations that arose upon vesting of restricted stock units granted pursuant to approved plans. (3)
We repurchased a total of approximately $ 43-28 million of our outstanding stock during the three months ended December 31,
2623-2024 . We use our stock repurchase program to return value to our stockholders and to offset dilution from the issuance of
stock under our equity- based incentive plans and employee purchase plan. As part of our stock repurchase program, we
repurchased approxrmately $ 182 +—-bithen-million of our common stock in 2623-2024 . We plan to use current cash and cash

generated frorn ongorng operatrng activities to fund our stock repurcha%e program Under-otrprevioushy-announeed-tender-offer

repurchases are subject to certarn restrictions under the terms of our credrt facility. F or more 1nformatron about our stock
repurchases and the restrictions imposed by our credit facility, refer to Note 8 and Note 11 in Part II, Item 8. Financial



Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K. FRINET34-TRINET35 2023-2024 FORM 10- K MANAGEMENT' S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISItem 7. Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations Operational Highlights Our consolidated results for 2623-2024 reflect our continuing efforts to serve our clients,
attract new clients and invest in our platform. During 2623-2024 we: * impreved-increased PEQ sales performance and
improved customer retention, * continued to grow total revenues rmanage-with disciplined cxpense prudentlyand-grow

e&r&mgs—pe%sh&re—management in hght of r1s1ng 1nsurance costs , ° contlnued ttt-rhzed—ettrsea—le—&nd—kneﬁdeégﬁe-asﬂst—eﬂf

eempleted—appre*rmately%—l—bﬂhon—m—sh&re—shares -repﬂ-rehases—of :l“—ﬂNet—our common stock tl]IOLth our ex1st1ng stock

repurchase program, * welcomed Mike Simonds as our new Pres1dent and CEO . opened a new buslness publ-re—teﬂdef
offer-inrAugustand technological innovation center a-priva Arg ;

-Septefnbenyderabad Indla, and began several strategic restructurlng 1n1t1at1ves tohested—t-he—4t-h—'P1=1Net—Peep-leFefee—

v d tgration-of-our general-business-applieations-to-core value proposition, growing
ASO and the elettd—efﬁclency and effectlveness of our operations . TRINEF352623- FORMI6-K-Performance Highlights

Our results for 2623-2024 when compared to 2022-2023 are noted below: § 4-5 . 9B-1B § 469M84-226M90 % Total

reventesOperating-ineomelnsuranee-revenuesIncome before taxInsurance cost ratiol % increase (6-55 ) % deereased

decrease6 % flatincrease $ 375M-173M §$ 6-3 . 56-43 § 446MNet-269MNet incomeDiluted EPSAdjusted Net income * 6-(54)
% %nefease-l—7—decrease (48) % merease@-decrease (40) % ﬂat—33—l—decrease 352 42—3—34%’—681360 681Average 542—2—15—

GAAP measure. See detmmons below under the heading" Non- (JAAP Financial Measmes” ** Total WSEs and Average

WSEs fneludes» 1nclude ﬂapfexnﬁatel-y—l—z—eee—mcremental WSEs fe%BeeernbeH—l,—Z—GQ%—andﬁ*er&ge—\VS-Es—rnel&des

, / &
plattmm user access fee and %ddfﬁeﬂ&HHetal—W%E&ﬁ&ht&e&&ppfeﬂﬁmtelyH@@-muemenm 3v’vLS-Es—fer—Beeeﬁ‘l-beir—}l—,

0 v tetes—apP 4560 ftia e—faHyear20 additional
service 1ec1plents These were 1dent1f1ed asa 1esu1t of our ongoing ettort to ensure thdt our b111m<y pldCtlLeS best match the
expectations of our customers. For details, refer to the heading" Operating Metrics — Worksite Employees (WSEs). ” Our total
revenues increased 1 %, primariy-driven by inflattenary-higher Average co- employed WSEs and rate increases, partially
offset by lower health plan enrollment. velume-dueto-deereasesirAverage WSEs —Our-Average-WSEs-deereased-5-%-and
Total WSEs was-approximately-flat-year-over-year—The-deerease-increased 6 % and 4 %, respectively, compared to the
same perlod n 202 Avefage—\‘vLS-Es—was—pl 1mdnly due to add1t10nal PEO Platform Users and addltlonal servnce reclplents

e 0 0 0 re-was— as paﬁ-ta-l-ly—e-ffset—a result of our ongomg effort to
ensure that our bllhng practlces best match the expectatlons of our customers. TRINET36 2024 FORM 10- K Our results

are hlghly 1nﬂuenced by health care cost streﬁger—ﬂew—eheﬂ-t—add-rt-teﬂs—dnd utilization trends retention-during-the-year- Our
h-insuranee-costs—g a-faster-6 points higher compared to the same
perlod in 2023, drlven by more severe medlcal service utlhzatlon, hlgher rate-rates than-health-ISR-paid for services , and
increasing specialty drug utilization which collectively outpaced the rates we charge our clients. The increase in ICR was
partially offset by favorable workers' compensation prior period claims development during the second quarter of 2024. For
further discussion on the effect of health care costs and utilization trends on our results of operations, refer to the
heading" Insurance Cost Ratlo (ICR)" ch her feveﬁues—lnsurance costs and mterest tneeme—expense partially offset by
higher revenues hea atre-o g€ § ments S-aM ng-, resulted in
decreases of t-he—é—%—rnefease-rn—net imncome —and Ad]usted Net imncome W&s—ﬂat—of 54 % and 40 %, respectlvely, as compared
to the same period in 2023. The inrerease-decrease in net income was offset-also driven by impairment tewer-transaetionand
integration-eosts-severance charges recognized as eompared-part of our efforts to 2622-realign our strategy . TRENET36
2023 FORM10-K-The following table summarizes our results of operations for the three years ended December 31, 2024, 2023
sand 2022 and2024-. For details of the critical accounting judgments and estimates that could affect the Results of Operations,
see the Critical Accounting Judgments and Estimates section within MD & A. As illustrated below, we have adjusted the
presentation of our income statement to include interest income into Total revenues and interest expense, bank fees and
other into expenses. This has the effect of simplifying the presentation by removing a separate subtotal of Other income /
expense, which is not a measure of profitability used by management. Ycar Ended December 31, % Change (in millions,
except operating metrics data) 2023202220212623-2024202320222024 vs. 26222022-20232023 vs. 202 Hneome-2022Income
Statement Data: Professional service revenues $ 765 $ 756 $ 754 $-639-1 % — %18-% Insurance service revenues4, 224 4, 166
4, 131 3;96+1 6-1 Interest income64 72 22 (11) 227 Total reventes4-revenuess , 922-053 4, $85-994 4, 546-907 | §-2
Insurance costs3, 797 3, 513 3, 463 8 1 Operating expenses968 940 923 3 ;-339-1+4-Operating-expensesd46-923-746-2 24
Interest expense, bank fees and 0ther62 40 3955 3 Total costs and eper&t—rng—e\pensesél 453—827 4, 3-86—493 4, 985—425 7 2 -7’-

meeme—?’%%—é%%’;’%é%’—lncome beto1e tax226 501 pfeﬁs-teﬂ—for—rneofne—taxesé@-l—482 44-1—(55) 4 9—lncome taxest26-taxesS3
126 127 483-(58) (1) 23-Net income $ 173 $ 375 $ 355 $338-(54) % 6 %5"% Cash Flow Data: Net cash provided by operating



aetivitiesS45-activities279 562248-539 497 ( 3-48 ) % +58-8 % NeteashusedHrinvesting-aetivities (70226 )-(135(69H-67
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities153 (70) (226) (319) (69) Net cash used in financing activities ( $46-207 ) (
536-540 ) 122 471 4;-567) (62) 15 Non- GAAP measures (1): Adjusted EBIFDA697EBITDA485 697 688 565-(30) % | %
22-% Adjusted Net ineeme446-income269 446 448 376-(40) — +9—Ge¥pe¥&te—9p&&tmg—€ash—ﬂew§39—497—4l§—8—29—0peratmg
Metrics: Insurance Cost Ratte84-Ratio90 % 84 % 86-84 % 6 % — % 23%-Average WSEs (2) 352, 681 331,423 348,543 6
340-067-(5) 2Total WSEs (2) 360, 681 347, 542 348, 652 4 364;946-

33 NFAA(1) Refer to Non- GAAP measures definitions and reconciliations from GAAP measures under the headmg” Non-
GAAP Financial Mea@ureq" (2) Total WSE@ and Average WSEs -rnel-uées» 1nclude a-ppfe*m&afel-y—l—z—eee—mcremental WSEs

4;-506-incremental W verage-W

%%—Hﬁ@@—bﬁﬂie—faﬂ—ye&r—lle%a—addmonal service rec1plent% These were identified as a reqult of our ongoing effort to ensure
that our billing practices best match the expectations of our customers. For details, refer to the heading" Operating Metrics —
Worksite Employees (WSEs). ” (3) For the year ended December 31, 2022, reflects HRIS Users from February 15, 2022, the
date on which we acquired Zenefits, to the end of the period. TRINET37 2024 FORM 10- K The following table summarizes
our balance sheet data as of December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and262+. Year Ended December 31, % Change (in millions)
2023202226242623-2024202320222024 vs. 26222622-20232023 vs. 2624 Batanee-2022Balance Sheet Data: Cash and cash
equivalents $ 360 $ 287 $ 354 $-6142-25 % (19 3%42-) % Working eapitalHt5-capital199 115 338 7686-73 % (66 Y%52-) %
Total assets3-assets4 , 119 3 , 693 3, 443 12 % 3;369-7 % Debt983 1 4-%Debtl-, 093 496 495-(10) % 120 %—"% Total
stockholders’ equity78-equity69 78 775 88+(12) % (90) % G2 %TFRINEF3IF2023-FORMI6-K-A discussion regarding our
financial condition and results of operations for 2023 compared to 2022 eemparedte262+-—can be found under Part II, Item 7.
Management' s Discussion and Analysis in our Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 ,
filed with the SEC on February 15, 2823-2024 . In addition to financial measures presented in accordance with GAAP, we
monitor other non- GAAP financial measures that we use to manage our business, to make planning decisions, to allocate
resources and to use as performance measures in our executive compensation plan. These key financial measures provide an
additional view of our operational performance over the long- term and provide information that we use to maintain and grow
our business. The presentation of these non- GAAP financial measures is used to enhance the understanding of certain aspects of
our financial performance. It is not meant to be considered in isolation from, superior to, or as a substitute for the directly
comparable financial measures prepared in accordance with GAAP. Non- GAAP MeasureDefinitionHow We Use The
MeasureAdjusted EBITDA ¢ Net (loss) income, excluding the effects of:- income tax provision,- interest expense, bank fees
and other,- depreciation,- amortization of intangible assets,- stock based compensation expense,- amortization of cloud
computing arrangements, afid— transaction and integration costs, and- restructuring costs. * Provides period- to- period
comparisons on a consistent basis and an underqtandlng as to how our management evaluates the effectiveness of our business
strategies by excluding certain non- recurring costs, which include restructuring transaetion-and-integration-costs, as well as
certain non- cash charges such as depreciation and amortization, and stock- based compensation and certain impairment charges
recognized based on the estimated fair values. We believe these charges are either not directly resulting from our core operations
or not indicative of our ongoing operations. * Enhances comparisons to the prior perteds— period and, accordingly, facilitates
the development of future projections and earnings growth prospects. ¢ Provides a measure, among others, used in the
determination of incentive compensation for management. « We also sometimes refer to Adjusted EBITDA margin, which is the
ratio of Adjusted EBITDA to total revenues. Adjusted Net Income  Net (loss) income, excluding the effects of:- effective
income tax rate (1),- stock based compensation,- amortization of intangible assets, net,- non- cash interest expense 2¥-,-
transaction and integration costs,- restructuring costs, and- the income tax effect (at our effective tax rate (1) of these pre- tax
adjustments. )  Provides information to our stockholders and board of directors to understand how our management evaluates
our business, to monitor and evaluate our operating results, and analyze profltablhty of our ongomg operatlonq and trendq ona
con%l@tent basl@ by excludlng certain non- caqh chargeq g OW - v by-{(used-n

Non GAAP effectlve tax rate is 25 6 % for 2024 and 2023 and 25 5 % for 2022 ﬁnd—292—l— Wthh excludes the income tax
impact from stock- based compensation, changes in uncertain tax positions, and nonrecurring benefits or expenses from federal
legislative changes. In 2024, we changed our presentation method in our Consolidated Statements {2y Nen—eash-interest
expense-represents-amortization-and-write—off- of of our-debtissuanee-eosts-Cash Flows to classify changes in WSE and tess
oirTriNet Trust assets and liabilities as financing activities instead of operating activities. As a terminated-derivative-result
of this change, we will no longer use Corporate Operating Cash Flows as a non- GAAP financial measure . TRINET38
2623-2024 FORM 10- K Reconciliation of GAAP to Non- GAAP Measures The table below presents a reconciliation of Net
income to Adjusted EBITDA: Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 202326222024 Net-202420232022Net income $ 173 $
375 $ 355 $338-Provision for income taxest26-taxes53 126 127 +83-Stock based eompensation59- compensation65 59 62 56
Interest expense, bank fees and other (1) 62 40 39 28-Depreciation and amortization of intangible assets 75 )72 64 54
Amortization of cloud computing arrangements® 8 4 Transaction and integration costs — 17 Fransaetionand-integration



eostst7-37 Restructuring costs49 — — Adjusted EBITDA $ 485 $ 697 $ 688 $565-Adjusted EBITDA Margin 9.6 % 14.2 %
14. 1 %+2-5% (1) 2022 Interest expense, bank fees and other 1nclude§ $ 17M ofreahzed 1nve%t1nent§ losqe% on sales and
impairments related to AFS securities = A A . The table
below presents a reconciliation of Net income to Adju%ted Net Income Year Ended December 31 (1n mrlhon%)

202320222021 Net-202420232022Net income $ 173 $ 375 § 355 $338-Effective income tax rate adjustment ( 5) (2) 5 6
Stock based eompensation59-- compensation65 59 62 56-Amortization of other intangible assets, net-net19 {5-20 18 +2-Non-
cash interest expense2-expense3 2 | 3-Transaction and integration eestst7—- costs — 17 37 Restructuring costs49 — —
Income tax nnpact of pre tax adJu%trnenti ( 35) ( 25) (30 9—61—7—) Adju%ted Net Income $ 269 $446 3 448 -$—3—7’-6—6H—A:meuﬂt

(WSE) Average WSE change is a volume measure we use to monitor the performance of our PEO bu%lne@i Our PEO chent%
generally change their payroll service providers at the beginning of the payroll tax and benefits enrollment year; as a result, we
have historically experienced our highest volumes of new PEO clients joining and existing clients terminating in the month of
January. PEO client attrition, new PEO client additions and changes in employment levels within our installed PEO client base
all impact our Average WSEs and Total WSEs as we move through a calendar year. We support WSEs from the date on which
their co- employment with TriNet commences through the end of their co- employment with TriNet and also after their co-
employment period. We define WSEs to include co- employees and other individuals receiving PEO services, such as
individuals who receive COBRA benefits pestee—employment-or are subject to partnership &—tax reporting as well as
individuals who utilize our PEO platform on behalf of TriNet PEO clients. As part of an ongoing effort to ensure that our billing
practices best match the expectations of our customers, in the third quarter of 2023 we determined that certain individuals such
as those described above and certain co- employees were not previously or consistently counted in Total WSEs and Average

WSEs. $+This resulting adjustment inereased-otrreportee-is reflected in Total WSEs by-approxtmatety4;-5606-for both
December 31,2024 and 2023 , and increased Average WSEs by approximately 4-5 , 866-400 and 1, 500 related to COBRA

users for the fourth-gquarterof2023-and-the-full-year-years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. We intend to
continue our ongoing effort to ensure that our billing practices best match the services we provide and the expectations of our
customers and in the future we may identify additional individuals that should be included in Total WSEs and Average WSEs.
In December 2023, we implemented a platform user access fee to charge clients for those users of our PEO platform that may
not be co- employed by us and to charge clients for co- employees for whom payroll may not be regularly run. In addition to co-
employees for whom payroll may not be regularly run, such as partners in a partnership, this also includes individuals
authorized by our chents to access and use the PEO platform for functions such as bookkeeping and benefits management. Fhe
AROHH h s-eomparab h charg 3 platform—While the amount of revenue we
recognized #2023-for this service was-to date has not been significant, the%e users of the PEO platform for whose access we
charged this fee increased our reported Total WSEs by approximately +2-30 , 886-600 as of December 31, 2623-2024 and
Average WSEs by approximately 4-20 , 666-200 and 1, 000 for the fourth-quarter-of2023-and-the-full-year-years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The effect of this new fee is that we are now receiving revenue from two types of
users on our PEO platform, those that are co- employed in our PEO business and those that are utilizing our PEO platform,
albeit in a more limited fashien-capacity . The table below illustrates how those two components comprise our Total WSE and
Average WSE metrics. Year Ended December 31, % Change2623262226212023-Change2024202320222024 vs. 20222622
20232023 vs. 2024+Average-2022Average WSEs33+-WSEs352, 681 331 , 423 348, 543 6 340;-067-(5) 2-Co- Empleyed336
Employed332 , 456 330 , 423 348, 543 1 340;-667-(5) 2-PEO Platform Hsers+Users20 , 2251, 000 N / ANFAN+AN-An. m.
N / ATotal WSEs347-WSEs360, 681 347 , 542 348, 652 4 364:-940-— (4)-Co- Employed335-Employed330 , 104 335 , 543
348, 652 364;7946-(4-2 ) (4) PEO Platform YsersH-Users30, 577 11 , 999 N / ANFAN+AN-An. m. N/ A Average WSEs
deereased-increased 5-6 % when comparing 2024 to 2023 t6-2022-, primarily due to ewerhiring-the additional co- employed
and PEO platform users described above. From a vertical perspective, declines in our instaled-base-aerossmost

Technology, Professwnal Serv1ces and Llfe Sc1ences verticals were largely during-the-past-twelve-months;espeetally-within
otr-Fechnole &y alty-offset by increases strongnew-ehient-additions-and-improved-ehent

retention-in %92—3—0ur Maln Street F manclal Servrces and Non- Profit verticals . Total WSEs can be used to estimate our
beginning WSEs for the next period and, as a result, can be used as an indicator of our potential future success in generating
revenue, growing our business and retaining clients. Total WSEs svas-flatincreased 4 % when eemparing-compared to the
same perlod in 2023 fe—292—2— prlmarlly due to hrgher PEO Platform Users as the PEO platform user access fee combined

fully 1mplemented durlng 2024 . Ant1c1pated revenues for future periods can drverge from the revenue expectatron derived
from Average WSEs or Total WSEs due to pricing differences across our HCM solutions and services and the degree to which
clients and FRINEF46-2023-FORMI6-—K—-W SEs elect to participate in our solutions during future periods. In addition to
focusing on growing our Average WSE and Total WSE counts, we also focus on pricing strategies, benefit participation and
service differentiation to expand TRINET40 2024 FORM 10- K the value we provide to our clients and our resulting revenue
opportunities. We report the impact of client and WSE participation differences as a change in mix. We continue to invest in
efforts intended to enhance client experience, improve our new sales per formance and manage chent attrltron through product
development as well as operational and process improvements. As eontn reombining




In addmon to focu@mg on retaining and growmg our WSE base we continue to review acquremon opportumtre@ that would

expand our product oﬁermg and provide turther scale.

Gest—R&ﬁe—&GR%—lCR 1sa performance measure calculated as the ratio of insurance costs to insurance service revenues. We
believe that ICR promotes an understanding of our insurance cost trends and our ability to align our relative pricing to risk
performance. We purchase workers' compensation and health benefits coverage for our WSEs. Under the insurance policies for
this coverage, we bear claims costs up to a defined deductible amount. Our insurance costs, which comprise a significant portion
of our overall costs, are significantly affected by our WSEs’ health and workers' compensation insurance claims experience. We
set our insurance service fees for workers’ compensation and health benefits in advance for fixed benefit periods. As a result,
any increases in insurance costs above our projections, will be reflected as a higher ICR, and result in lower net income. Any
-Beefeases—decreases n mquranee costs below our prOJeetronﬂ w1ll be reflected as a lower ICR —and reqult in hrgher net income

fully- mqured Workers compensation insurance policies, we assume the rrek for lome@ up to $ 1 million per claim occurrence
(deductible layer). The ultimate cost of the workers’ compensation services provided cannot be known until all the claims are
settled. Our ability to predict these costs is limited by unexpected increases in frequency or severity of claims, which can vary
due to changes in the cost of treatments or claim settlements. Under our risk- based health insurance policies, we assume the risk
of variability in future health claims costs for our enrollees. This variability typically results from changing trends in the
volume, severity and ultimate cost of medical and pharmaceutical claims, due to changes to the components of M&Fmedical
cost trend , which we define as changes in participant use of services, including the introduction of new treatment options,
changes in treatment guidelines and mandates, and changes in the mix, cost of providing treatment and timing of services
provided to plan participants. These trends change, and other seasonal trends and variability may develop. As a result, it is
difficult for us to predict our insurance costs with accuracy and a significant increase in these costs could have a material adverse
effect on our business. (in millions) 20232022262 Hnasuranee—--- 202420232022Insurance costs $ 3, 797 $3, 513 $ 3, 463 $35
339-Insurance service revenues4, 224 4, 166 4, 131 3;:964+Insurance Cost Ratio84-Ratio90 % 84 % 86-84 % TRINET41 2024
FORM 10- K ICR increased for the year ended December 31, 2024 swas-- as compared to approximately-flat-when
eomparing-2023 te—2-(-)2—2—as—hea-l-t-h—, prlmanly drlven by higher i insurance costs outpacmg the growth in grew-at-afasterrate

7 v . Insurance costs
increased due to more severe medlcal service utlhzatlon in all categorles (1npat1ent outpatlent and professional services),
higher eests-assoetated-with-medieal-rates paid for those services utilization, as well as in-partienlar-ottpatient-Serviees-and
pharmacy costs including specialty drugs, particularly medications for diabetes and obesity . During the year ended
December 31 2024 :Ph'l'S-thlS was partlally ofrset by favorable prror perrod development in workers' compenqatron aﬁd—}ewef

fee}ueﬂen—fe}afed-te-etn%e%}eredﬁs- Total Revenues Our revenues conmt or PSR&nd— ISR and 1nterest income . PSR
represents fees charged to clients for processing payroll- related transactions on behalf of our PEO and HRES-ASO clients,
access to our HR expertise and technology , employment and benefit law compliance services, other HR- related and tax credit
filing services and fees charged to access our cloud- based HRES-ASO services. ISR consists of insurance- related billings and
administrative fees collected from PEO clients and withheld from WSEs for workers' compensation insurance and health benefit
insurance plans provided by third- party insurance carriers. Monthly tetebrevenues per co- employed Average WSE is a
measure we use to monitor our PEO pricing strategies. This measure increased 6-1 % in 2024 compared to 2023 eempared-to
2622-. We also use the following measures to further analyze changes in total revenue: * Volume- the percentage change in
period over period co- employed Average WSEs, ¢ Rate- the combined weighted average percentage changes in service fees for
each vertical service and changes in service fees associated with each insurance service offering, * Mix- the change in
composition of co- employed Average WSEs within our verticals combined with the composition of our enrolled co- employed
WSEs within our insurance service oﬁermgs and the Compomtron of product% and services our clients receive, ineluding-Clarus
RB-such as PEO Platform Users , 1S54
HRIS- ineremental HRIS-cloud services revenue , whlch 1ncludes our new ASO services revenue, and ¢ Interest i 1ncome
FRINEF422023-FORMO-K-PSRISR- % represents proportion of insurance service revenues to total revenues * Total
revenues generated from PEO services only , excluding interest income The increase in total revenue for the year ended
December 31 2024 was prrmanly drrven by tn-ﬂaﬁenaﬁ'—hlgher co- employed Average WSEs and rate Increases —I-n—aéd-'r&eﬁ




eests—$—469%92—3—9perat—rﬁg—l-ﬁeeﬂ‘te—P10fess1onal Sel\ ice Re\ enues OLII PEO and H-RI—S—ASO Cllents are prlmanly bllled ona
fee per WSE or HRIS User per month per transaction. Our vertical approach provides us the flexibility to offer our PEO clients
in different industries with varied services at different prices, which we believe potentially reduces the value of solely using
Average WSE and Total WSE counts as indicators of future potential revenue performance. FRENEF43-2623FORMI6-K-PSR
from PEO Services customers and HRIS elewd-services clients was as follows: (in millions) 20232022PE6G-20242023PEO
Services $ 723 § 704 $FHE-HRIS €loud-Scrvices 42 52 43-Total § 765 $ 756 $F54-We also analyze changes in PSR with the
following measures: * Rate- the weighted average percentage change in fees for each vertical, « Mix- the change in composition
of co- employed Average WSEs across our verticals and the composition of products and services our clients receive, including
PEO Platform Users TriNet-Clarus RD-, and * HRIS- cloud services revenue, which includes our new ASO services
revenue. The increase in PSR for the year ended December 31, 2024 was flat-for-the-year-as-primarily driven by higher co-
employed Average WSEs and increases in rate . The decrease in inereasesfrom-ourPEO-serviees;-as-weH-as-the-higher-HRIS
revenue from-compared to the prior periods was due to a fullyear-decrease in HRIS Users in 2024 and an acceleration of
revenue in 2023 eempared—related to a termmatlon agreement teﬁ—meﬂt-h-peﬂed—m a broker partner whlch dld not recur in

th-h-rn—eu-ﬁns’fa-l-}ed-base- TRINET43 2024 FORM 10- K lnsuldnce Ser\lce Re\ enues ISR consists of insurance services-
related billings and administrative fees collected from PEO clients and withheld from WSE payroll for health benefits and
workers' compensation insurance provided by third- party insurance carriers. We use the following measures to analyze changes
in ISR: < Rate- the weighted average percentage change in fees associated with each of our insurance service offerings, and
Mix- all other changes including the composmon of our enrolled co- employed WSEs within our msumnw service offerings

Average WSEs . aspartofo v d v v 0
feeuﬁn%%.—"[—his—was—partmlly offset by ]owe1 health pldn enrollment Interest Income Interest income prlmarlly includes
interest income earned from cash held for our PEO and ASO clients as a result of the requirement of our clients to
prefund their payroll and related taxes and other withholding liabilities before payroll is processed or due for payment.
The decrease in interest income for the year was primarily driven by lower velime-due-cash and investment holdings
during 2024 as compared to tewerAverage-W-SEs-2023 as well as decreases in interest rates in the second half of 2024 .
TRINET44 2024 FORM 10- K Insurance Costs Insurance costs include insurance premiums for coverage provided by
insurance carriers, payments for claims costs and expenses for other risk management and administrative services,
reimbursement of claims payments made by insurance carriers or third- party administrators below a predefined deductible limit,
and changes in accrued costs related to contractual obligations with our workers' compensation and health benefit carriers. We
use the follovx ing measures to analyze chdns_es in 1nsu1dnce costs: ¢ Rate- the w els_hted average percentdoe chans_e in cost trend

drweﬂ—by—due to more severe medlcal serv1ce utlllzatlon, higher rates paid for all categorles of service (1npat1ent outpatlent
and professional services ) and increased specialty drugs utilization , particularly medications for diabetes and obesity.
ThlS trend was pmtlally offset by favorable workers compensatlon prior perlod clalms development J:ewe%hea—l-t-h—p-}&n

eperat-mg—Expenses eE—Expenses tnel-u&es» include COPS, S & M, G & A, SD &P, a-nd—D & A, collectively referred to as
OE, as well as IE . We had approximately 3, 600 colleagues as of December 31, 2623-2024 prlmanly across the U. S. but also
in India and Canada. Compensation costs for our colleagues include payroll, payroll taxes, SBC, bonuses, commissions and
other payroll- and benefits- related costs. Compensation- related expense represented 65-%-and-63 % and 66 % of our OE
expenses in 2024 and 2023 ard-2822-, respectively. Transaction and integration costs associated with our 2022 acquisitions of
Zenefits and TriNet Clarus R D are included in G & A for 2023 . These costs include advisory, legal, and employee retention
costs tied to ongoing employment. In the fourth quarter of 2024, we began implementing a realignment of our strategy
designed to simplify and strengthen TriNet’ s operational focus. As part of these restructuring efforts, we incurred
higher asset impairment and severance expenses than in 2023 . In 2024 , we experienced ©E-expense growth of 2-5 %
compared to 2022-2023 . This increase was primarily driven by severance costs and non- cash impairment charges related
to our restructuring efforts as well as higher interest expense related to our debt instruments issued in 2023 . The ratio of
OFE-expenses to total revenues was +9-20 % in 2024 and 2023 and-2022-. % represents portion of compensation related expense
included in eperatingexpenses TRINET46 2024 FORM 10- K We analyze and present our ©E-expenses based upon the
business-funettons-functional categories of COPS, S & M, G & A and~, SD & P and~, D & A and IE . The charts below provide
a view of the expenses of the business functions. Dollars are presented in millions and percentages represent year- over- year
change. FRINET46-2623-FORMH0-K—(in millions) $ 9802023 9232622-OperatingExpense-Expenses - 3COPS decreased
primarily due to lower compensation and professional fees, partially offset by higher tax and licenses expenses. 4COPS
4S & M increased primarily due to higher compensation to support our sales force, partially offset by lower advertising
costs and lower conferences and events expenses. 21G & A increased primarily due to restructuring costs in the fourth



quarter, partially offset by lower consulting and transaction and integration costs. 3SD & P increased primarily due to
hlgher compensation, partlally offset by lower hostmg and external software costs. 3D & A increased, driven primarily by

e-to-highereapitalization-of internally-dev d thea-merﬁz&t—teﬂ—thlrdquarteronOZS
iﬂt&ﬂgi-b-}&assefs—feeegﬂi-zed—feﬁﬂ&e—zeﬂeﬁts-and the draw down of the 2021 Revolver ClarasRD-aequisitions-as-well-as

vare-. $ 9462023-Operating-1, 0302024 Expenses The primary spend type
drlvms to the chanoes in our GE—expenses are presented below: TRINET47 %92—3—2024 FORM 10-K Gt-her—l-ﬁeeﬁr&GE*peﬁse}

¥aHey—B&fﬂefa1-1-ure—Pfeﬂs-teﬂ—fer—lncome ques Our ef-feet—rve—ta*rafe—&ETR )—W'ls 23 % and 25 % aﬂd%é%fm 2024 and
2023 and2022-, respectively. The decrease in the rates— rate was primarily due-attributable to an increase in tax benefits

related to excludable income for state tax purposes and an-tax credits, offset by a inerease-decrease in tax benefits for related
to-stock —based compensation. Liquidity and Capital Resources Liquidity is a measure of our ability to access sufficient cash
flows to meet the short- term and long- term cash requirements of our business operations. Our principal source of liquidity for
operations is derived from cash provided by operating activities. We rely on cash provided by operating activities to meet our
short- term liquidity requirements, which primarily relate to the payment of corporate payroll and other operating costs, and
capital expenditures. Our cash flow related to WSE payroll and benefits is generally matched by advance collection from our
PEO clients. To minimize the credit risk associated with remitting the payroll and associated taxes and benefits costs, we require
PEO clients to prefund the payroll and related payroll taxes and benefits costs. Included in our balance sheets are assets and
liabilities resulting from transactions directly or indirectly associated with WSEs, including payroll and related taxes and
withholdings, our sponsored workers' compensation and health insurance programs, and other benefit programs. Although we
are not subject to regulatory restrictions that require us to do so, we distinguish and manage our corporate assets and liabilities
separately from those current assets and liabilities held by us to satisfy our employer obligations associated with our WSEs . In
December of 2023, TriNet created a trust for the purpose of holding funds provided by HRIS clients for the remittance to
HRIS Users, tax authorities and other recipients. This trust is consolidated into our financial statements. During the first
quarter of 2024, TriNet Trust assumed ownership and responsibility of certain bank accounts that hold ASO client
funds. The associated cash is reflected on our balance sheet as folows-TRINET48-2023-FORMt6-K-restricted cash and
the associated liabilities are classified as accrued wages, payroll tax liabilities and other payroll withholdings, and client
deposits and other client liabilities and assumed related liabilities. As of December 31, 26232622-2024, the balance of
restricted cash in TriNet Trust was $ 87 million. Beginning in the second quarter of 2024, we include the assets and
liabilities related to the TriNet Trust in the" WSE & TriNet Trust" category because the underlying cash flows of TriNet
Trust are related to the same type of payroll and payroll related liabilities as our WSE cash flows. This trust structure
will continue to be used as we transition our HRIS services to ASO services. December 31, 20242023 (in millions)
Corporate W-SETetalCorporate W-SETotalCurrent- Corporate WSE & TriNet TrustTotalCorporateWSE & TriNet
TrustTotalCurrent asscts: Cash and cash equivalents $359 $1 $ 360 $ 287 § — § 287 Investments $354-$— — $354
Investmentsé5-— 65 76~ 7#6-65 Restricted cash, cash equivalents and vestments22-investments23 1,390 1, 413 22 1, 247 1,
269 22+24++-263-Other current assets73-assets95 1, 312 1, 407 73 884 957 78-555-633-Total current assets $ 477 $ 2, 703 $
3,180$447$2,131 $ 2, 578 $536-5+Total current liabilities278 2 , 796-703 § 2, 326-Fotal-eurrenttabilities332-981 § 332
$2,131$ 2,463 $H92-$+H796-5+988-Working capital $199 $ — $ 199 $115%—$ 115 $338$—9$338-As of December
31,20623-2024 , we did not have any material off- balance sheet arrangements that are reasonably likely to have a current or
future effect on our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources. Working capital
for WSEs and TriNet Trust related activities We designate funds to ensure that we have adequate current assets to satisfy our
current obligations associated with WSEs. We manage our WSE payroll and benefits obligations through collections of
payments from our clients which generally occur two to three days in advance of client payroll dates. We regularly review our
short- term obligations associated with our WSEs (such as payroll and related taxes, insurance premium and claim payments)
and designate funds required to fulfill these short- term obligations, which we refer to as PFC. PFC is included in current assets
as restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments. TRINET48 2024 FORM 10- K We manage our sponsored benefit and
workers' compensation insurance obligations by maintaining collateral funds in restricted cash, cash equivalents and
investments. These collateral amounts are generally determined at the beginning of each plan year and we may be required by
our insurance carriers to adjust our collateral balances when facts and circumstances change. We regularly review our collateral
balances with our insurance carriers and anticipate funding further collateral in the future based upon our capital requirements.
We classify our restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments as current and noncurrent assets to match against the
anticipated timing of payments to carriers. The following table summarizes our workers' compensation obligations, gross of
collateral, as of December 31, 2623-2024 , Payments Due by Period (in millions) TotalLess than 1 yearl- 3 years3- 5 yearsMore



than 5 yearsWorkers' compensation obligations (1) $ +75-158 $§ 5445 § 54-48 $ 23-20 $ 47-45 (1) Represents estimated
payments that are expected to be made to carriers for various workers' compensation programs under the contractual obligations.
These obligations include the costs of reimbursing the carriers for paying claims within the deductible layer in accordance with
the workers' compensation insurance policy . Because the liabilities of the TriNet Trust are largely driven by how much in
cash has been deposited into the trust, there is generally no significant working capital in that entity . Working capital for
corporate purposes Corporate working capital as of December 31, 2023-2024 deereased-increased S 223-84 million from

December 31, 20222023 , primarily dae-to-the-driven by a $ -1-99—72 million increase #eurrenttabilittesfromour-borrowings
ttnée%etu%@%&—Revel-ve%aﬁdﬁhe%—é?—rmﬂieﬂ-deefeas&m corporate unreqtrlcted Caqh and cash equlV"llenti —T—hts—deefease—lﬂ

ﬁsuanees—’l:ms—was—partlally oﬁqet by peﬂﬁve—eash—ﬂews—ffeﬁrepef&&eﬁs—evefa $ 65 mllllon decrease in the yefnecurrent
portion of our unrestricted investment portfolio and a $ 54 million decrease in corporate current liabilities, mostly

driven by the $ 34 million reduction in the current portion of our outstanding debt . We use our available cash and cash
equivalents to satisfy our operational and regulatory requirements and to fund capital expenditures. We believe that we can meet
our present and reasonably foreseeable operating cash needs and future commitments through existing liquid assets, continuing
cash flows from corporate operating activities and the potential issuance of debt or equity securities. We hold both corporate
cash and cash associated with WSEs across multiple financial institutions to reduce concentrations of counterparty risk. We
believe our existing corporate FRINEF49-2023-FORM10-K—cash and cash equivalents and positive working capital will be
sufficient to meet our working capital expenditure needs for at least the next twelve months. The following table summarizes our
purchase obligations as of December 31, 2623-2024 , Payments Due by Period (in millions) TotalLess than 1 yearl- 3 years3- 5
yearsMore than 5 yearsPurchase obligations (1) $ 426-110 $ #9-71 $ 46-39 § +—$ — (1) Our purchase obligations primarily
consist of software licenses, consulting and maintenance agreements, and future sales and marketing events . TRINET49 2024
FORM 10- K In 2024, we changed the presentation method in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows to classify
changes in WSE and TriNet Trust related assets and liabilities, formerly included in operating activities, as financing
activities . The following table presents our cash flow activities for the stated periods: Year Ended December 31, (in millions)
26232622Corporate W-SETotalCorporate W-SETotalNet-20242023CorporateWSE & TriNet TrustTotalCorporateWSE &
TriNet TrustTotalNet cash provided by (used in): Operating activities $ 279 $ — $279 $ 539 § 6— § 545-$497-$-539
Investing activities148 5 153 ( 65 $-562Investingaetivittes{65-) (5) (70 H2IHH2)H226-) Financing activities ( 346) 139
(207) (546) —6 (546-540 ) Net increase ( 536-decrease ) in —(536)Effeet-ofexchangerate-ehanges-on-cash and cash

equivalents ———H—(HNet-inerease(deereaseytreash-and-eashequivalents-, unrestricted and restricted $ 81 $ 144 $
225 $(72) $ 18 (71) $-2541$53-$206H-Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted and restricted: Beginning efperted-$406-$1;
13151537 $-666-$1-0678-$ 1738 End-of period $ 334 § 1, 132§ 1,466 $406 $ 1, 131 $ 1, 537 End of period $ 415 $ 1,276
$1,691 $334% 1,132 $ 1,466 Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents: Unrestricted $ 72$1$73 8 (67) $— 3§
(67) $258$—$ 258 Restrieted-Restricted9 143 152 (5) | (4) 453-57Operating Activities Compenents-of The year-
over- year change in net caqh prov1ded by operatmg actlvmes afe—as—fel-}eﬁﬁ#eaﬁEﬂded—Beeembeﬁ-l—ém—nﬂHiens-}

-rﬁefease-decrease in our net income and the timing of our payment% of corporate obhgatlom FRENETS6-2623-FORM10-K
Investing Activities Cash provided by (used in ) investing activities for the periods presented below primarily consisted of
purchases of investments, capital expenditures and acquisition of business, partially offset by proceeds from the sale and
maturity of investments. Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 20232622nvestments—--- 20242023 Investments : Purchases
of investments $ ( 190) $ (281 3$4+8-) Proceeds from sale and maturity of irvestments286-investments421 286 469
Aequisitionofsubstdiartes—229)-Cash provided by faseddn)-investments § 231 $ 5 $3F)-Capital expenditures: Software
and hardware $ ( 73) $ ( 70 }¥$-&47) Office furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements (5) (9-5 ) Cash used in capital
expenditures $ ( 78) $ (75) $56)-Cash provided by (used in ) investing activities $ 153 $ (70) $-226)-In 2024, we liquidated
the unrestricted portion of our investment portfolio and used the funds to pay down our outstanding debt and for
additional operational liquidity. We invest a portion of available cash in investment- grade securities with effective maturities
less than five years that are classified on our balance sheets as investments. We consider industry and issuer concentrations in
our investment policy. TRINETS0 2024 FORM 10- K We also invest funds held as collateral to satisfy our long- term
obligation towards workers' compensation liabilities. These investments are classified on our balance sheets as restricted cash,
cash equivalents and investments. We review the amount and the anticipated holding period of these investments regularly in
conjunction with our estimated long- term workers' compensation liabilities and anticipated claims payment trend. At December
31,2023-2024 , our investments had a weighted average duration of less than two years and an average S & P credit rating of
AA . As of December 31, 2023-2024 , we held approximately $ 1. 9 billion in restricted and unrestricted cash, cash equivalents
and investments, of which $ 284-360 million was unrestricted cash and cash equivalents and-$-208-million-wastunrestrieted
tvestrents-. Refer to Note 2 in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplemental Data, in this Form 10- K for a summary
of these funds. Capital Expenditures During the twelve months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2022-, we continued to
make investments in software and hardware as we enhanced our existing service offerings and technology platform. We expect
capital investments in our software and hardware to continue in the future. FRINEFSH2023-FORMI6-—K-Financing Activities



Net cash used in financing activities in the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-consisted of our debt and equity-
related activities. Year Ended December 31, (in millions) %92—3%92%Fmaﬁemg—~——— 20242023Financing aetivitiesRepurehase
act1v1t1esChange in WSE and TriNet Trust related assets and liabilities, net $ 139 $ 6 Repurchase of common stock, net of
issuance costs $-(199) (1, 137 3$4536-) Proceeds from issuance of 2031 Netes406—-- Notes — 400 Payment of long- term
financing fees and debt issuance costs — (9) Proceeds —PBraw-dows-from revolving credit agreement berrowings695—--
borrowings — 695 Repayment of borrowings under revolving credit agreement-facility (110) (495 ) Dividends paid (37 ) —
Cash used in financing activities $ (546207 ) $ (536540 ) In February 2023, our board of directors authorized a $ 300 million
incremental increase to our ongoing stock repurchase program initiated in May 2014. In July 2023, our board of directors
authorized a further $ 1 billion incremental increase to this stock repurchase program. We use this program to return value to our
stockholders and to offset dilution from the issuance of stock under our equity- based incentive plan and employee purchase
plan. On August 28, 2023, we completed a public tender offer through which we repurchased 5, 981, 308 shares of common
stock at a price of § 107. 00 per share, for total consideration of approximately $ 640 million. On September 13, 2023, we
repurchased 3, 364, 486 shares of common stock at a price of $ 107. 00 per share, for total consideration of approximately $ 360
million, through a private repurchase from our largest stockholder, Atairos Group, Inc. During the year ended December 31,
2023-2024 , we repurchased $8-1 , 734-771 , 798-254 shares of our common stock for approximately $ 182 454H2-million
through our existing stock repurchase program in addition to +28-110 , 55+-779 shares acquired to satisfy tax withholding
obligations related to SBC vesting. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , approximately $ 433-251 million remained available for
repurchase under all authorizations by our board of directors. We plan to use current cash and cash generated from ongoing
operating activities to fund this stock repurchase program. In March 2023, to ensure that we maintained liquidity during the
regional banking liquidity challenges, we drew down the available $ 495 million of capacity under our 2021 Revolver. As
concerns about market liquidity subsided, we repaid $ 200 million in March and $ 295 million in April. In September of 2023,
we drew down $ 200 million under our 2021 Revolver to partially fund our share repurchases in the third quarter of 2023 noted
above. In 2024, we repaid $ 110 million of the outstanding balance. TRINETS1 2024 FORM 10- K In August 2023, we
issued $ 400 million aggregate principal amount of our 2031 Notes to partially fund share repurchases in the third quarter of
2023. In August 2023, concurrently with the issuance of the 2031 Notes, we amended certain provisions of our 2021 Credit
Agreement, dated February 26, 2021, as amended, to, among other things (1) increase the aggregate capacity under our 2021
Revolver from $ 500 million to $ 700 million and (2) extend the maturity date of our 2021 Revolver to August 16, 2028. We
initiated InFebruary-of2024;-our-board-of direetors-deelared-a eash-common stock dividend of § 0. 25 per share in April , for
atotalpayment-July and October 2024 and declared common stock dividends of appreximately-$ 43-miltien-0. 25 per share
to be paid in the first quarter of 2025 . As of December 31, 2023-2024 , $ 500 million and $ 400 million aggregate principal of
our 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes was outstanding, respectively. The indenture governing our 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes each
includes restrictive covenants limiting our ability to: (i) create liens on certain assets to secure debt; (i) grant a subsidiary
guarantee of certain debt without also providing a guarantee of the 2029 Notes or 2031 Notes, as applicable; and (iii) consolidate
or merge with or into, or sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets to, another person, subject, in each case,
to certain customary exceptions. Our 2021 Credit Agreement includes a § 700 million revolver. In September of 2023, we drew
down $ 200 million of this revolver to partially fund our third quarter of 2023 share repurchases. The 2021 Credit Agreement
includes negative covenants that limit our ability to incur indebtedness and liens, sell assets and make restricted payments,
including dividends and investments, subject to certain exceptions. In addition, the 2021 Credit Agreement also TRINEF52-2023
FORM16-K-—contains other customary affirmative and negative covenants and customary events of default. The 2021 Credit
Agreement also contains a financial covenant that requires the Company to maintain certain maximum total net leverage ratios.
We were in compliance with all financial covenants under our 2021 Credit Agreement, 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes at December
31,2023-2024 . Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP, which require us to make
estimates, judgments, and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and the related
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. These estimates are based on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Some of the assumptions are highly uncertain at the time
of estimation. To the extent actual experience differs from the assumptions used, our consolidated financial statements could be
materially affected. For additional information about our accounting policies, refer to Note 1 in Part II, Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K. The following items require significant estimation or judgment:
Insurance Costs We purchase workers' compensation and health benefits coverage for our colleagues and WSEs. As part of
these insurance policies, we bear claims costs up to a defined deductible amount and as a result, we establish accrued insurance
costs including both known claims filed and estimates for incurred but not reported claims. We use qualified actuaries to
evaluate, review and recommend estimates of our accrued workers' compensation and health insurance costs. The accrued costs
studies performed by these qualified actuaries analyze historical claims data to develop a range of our potential ultimate costs
using loss development, expected loss ratio and frequency / severity methods in accordance with Actuarial Standards of Practice.
These methods are applied to classes of the claims data organized by policy year and risk class. Key judgments and evaluations
in arriving at loss estimates by class and the accrued costs selection overall include: ¢ the selection of method used and the
relative weights given to selecting the method used for each policy year, ¢ the underlying assumptions of LDF used in these
models, ¢ the effect of any changes to the insurers' claims handling and payment processes, TRINETS2 2024 FORM 10-K -
evaluation of medical and indemnity cost trends, costs from changes in the risk exposure being evaluated and any applicable
changes in legal, regulatory or judicial environment. We review and evaluate these judgments and the associated
recommendations in concluding the adequacy of accrued costs. Our quarterly reserving process involves the collaboration of our
internal qualified actuaries and our actuarial and finance departments to approve a single point best estimate. In selecting this
best estimate, management considers the actuarial estimates and applies informed judgment regarding qualitative factors that



may not be fully captured in these actuarial estimates. Such factors include but are not limited to: the timing, volume, severity
and complexity of claims, social and judicial trends, medical treatment trends, the extent of our historical loss data versus
industry information, rates of participant turnover, the impact of MCT and seasonal trends, the impact of setting prices in
advance of benefit periods, and the impact of unanticipated events. Where adjustments are necessary these are recorded in the
period in which the adjustments are identified. These accrued costs may vary in subsequent quarters from the amount estimated.
Certain assumptions used in estimating these accrued costs are highly judgmental. Our accrued costs, results of operations and
financial condition can be materially impacted if actual experience differs from the assumptions used in establishing these
accrued costs. Accrued Workers' Compensation Costs Under our policies, we are responsible for reimbursing the insurance
carriers for workers' compensation losses up to $ 1 million per claim occurrence (Deductible Layer). As workers' compensation
costs for a particular period are not known for many years after the losses have occurred, these costs represent our best estimate
of unpaid claim FRENEF53-2623-FORMH0-IK-losses and loss adjustment expenses within the Deductible Layer in accordance
with our insurance policies. We use actuaries to evaluate, review and recommend accrued workers' compensation costs on a
quarterly basis. The data is segmented by class and state and analyzed by policy year, and states where we have small exposure
are aggregated into a single grouping. We use a combination of loss development, expected loss ratio and frequency / severity
methods which include the following inputs, assumptions and analytical techniques: « Histerteat-historical volume and severity
of workers' compensation cost experience, exposure data and industry loss experience related to TriNet” s insurance policies, ®
inputs of WSEs’ job responsibilities and location, ¢ estimates of future cost trends, * expected loss ratios for the latest accident
year or prior accident years, adjusted for the loss trend, the effect of rate changes and other quantifiable factors, and ¢« LDFs to
project the reported losses for each accident year to an ultimate basis. Final cost settlements may vary materially from the
present estimates, particularly when payments do not occur until well into the future. In our experience, plan years related to
workers' compensation programs may take 10 years or more to be fully settled. We believe that our estimate of accrued workers'
compensation costs is most sensitive to LDFs given the long reporting and paid development patterns for our workers'
compensation loss costs. Our methods of estimating accrued workers' compensation costs rely on these LDFs and an estimate of
future cost trend. The following table illustrates the sensitivity of changes in the LDFs on our year end estimate of insurance
costs (in millions of dollars): Change in loss development factorChange in insurance costs- 5. 0 % ($ 3429 )- 2. 5 % ($ 4817 )
2.5%$49-18 5. 0 % $ 3836 TRINET53 2024 FORM 10- K Accrued Health Insurance Costs We sponsor and administer a
number of employee benefit plans for our WSEs, including group health, dental, vision and life insurance as an employer plan
sponsor under section 3 (5) of the ERISA. Approximately $6-87 % of our group health insurance costs relate to risk- based plans
in which we agree to reimburse our carriers for any claims paid within an agreed- upon per- person deductible layer up to a
maximum aggregate exposure limit per policy. These deductible dollar limits and maximum limits vary by carrier and year.
Costs covered by these insurance plans generally develop on average within three to six months so insurance costs and accrued
health insurance costs include estimates of claims IBNP. Data is grouped and analyzed by insurance carrier. To estimate accrued
health benefits costs we use a number of inputs, assumptions and analytical techniques: « historical loss claims payment patterns
and MCT rates related to TriNet’ s insurance policies, ¢ current period claims costs and claims reporting patterns (completion
factors), and  plan enrollment. MCT rates are a significant factor we use in developing our accrued health insurance costs. MCT
are developed through an analysis of claims incurred in prior months, provider pricing and indicators of health care utilization,
including pharmacy utilization trends, and outpatient and inpatient utilization. Many factors may cause MCT to vary from our
estimates. Such factors include, but are not limited to: the timing of the emergence of claims, volume, FRINEF54-2023-FORM
+o-¥K=severity and complexity of claims, social and judicial trends, medical treatment trends, the extent of our historical loss
data versus industry information, rates of participant turnover, the impact of MCT and seasonal trends, the impact of setting
prices in advance of benefit periods, new treatment options, and the impact of unanticipated events. The following table
illustrates the sensitivity of changes in the MCT on our year end estimate of insurance costs (in millions of dollars): Change in
medical cost trendChange in insurance costs 3. 0 % $24232. 0% $44161.0% $F8-1.0%$ (F8)-2.0% $ (3416 )- 3.0
% $ (2423 ) Completion factors are an actuarial estimate based on historical experience and analysis of current trends, of paid
costs to carriers as a percentage of the expected ultimate costs to carriers. Many factors may cause actual claims submissions
rates from our carriers to vary from our estimated completion factors, including carrier claims processing patterns, the mix of
providers and the mix of electronic versus manual claims submitted to our carriers. TRINET54 2024 FORM 10- K The
following table illustrates the sensitivity of changes in completion factors on our year end estimate of insurance costs (in
millions of dollars): Change in completion factorSChange in 1nsurance costs- 0.75 % $ -1-9-21 0 50 % $ -1-3—14 0.25 % $ 6—7 0.
25%$(6—7)0 50%$(-1—3—14)O 75%$(-1-9—21) ; ;




Pronouncements Refer to Note 1 in Part II, ltem 8, F 1nanc1a1 Statement% and Supplementary Data of this Form 10- K for
additional information related to recent accounting pronouncements. FRINEFS6-TRINETSS5 2623-2024 FORM 10- K
QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURESItem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market
Risk We are exposed to market risks in connection with our business, which primarily relate to fluctuations in interest
rates. Our exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to our investment portfolio and outstanding borrowings
under our floating rate 2021 Revolver . Changes in B—S—interest rates affect the interest earned on the Company' s cash, cash
equivalents and the fair value of our investments as well as the cost of borrowing under our 2021 Revolver . Our cash
equivalents consist primarily of money market mutual funds, which are not significantly exposed to interest rate risk. Our
investments are subject to interest rate risk because these securities generally include a fixed interest rate. As a result, the market
values of these securities are affected by changes in prevailing interest rates. We attempt to limit our exposure to interest rate
risk and credit risk by investing in instruments that meet the minimum credit quality, liquidity, diversification and other
requirements of our investment policy. Our investments consist of liquid, investment- grade securities. The risk of interest rate
changes on investment balances was not material at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-. In February 26222021 , we issued $
500 million aggregate principal of 3. 50 % senior unsecured notes maturing in March 2029 (our 2029 Notes) and in
August 2023, we issued $ 400 million aggregate principal of 7. 125 % senior unsecured notes maturing in August 2031
(our 2031 Notes). Our 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes are carried at their cost, net of issuance costs. Since our 2029 Notes and
2031 Notes bear interest at fixed rates, we have no financial statement risk associated with changes in interest rates.
However, the fair value of our 2029 Notes and our 2030 Notes fluctuates when interest rates change . As of December 31,
2023-2024 , we had drawn down $ 200-90 million under our floating rate 2021 Revolver. The impact of a 100 basis point
increase or decrease in market interest rates to interest expense on our 2021 Revolver as of December 31, 2023-2024 over the
next twelve months was approximately $ 2-1 million increase or decrease to interest expense for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2025 . FRINETSZTRINETS6 2623-2024 FORM 10- K FINANCIAL STATEMENTSItem 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data TRINET GROUP, INC. Consolidated Financial Statements Reports of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID No. 34) 59Censelidated-58Consolidated Statements of Income and
Comprehensive Ineemeé62Consotdated-Income61Consolidated Balance Sheets63Consolidated-Sheets62Consolidated
Statements of Stockholders’ Equityé4Conseotidated-Equity63Consolidated Statements of Cash Flewsé5Netes-Flows64Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements66Note 1. Description of Business and Significant Accounting Policies66Note 2. Cash, Cash
Equivalents and Investments74Note-Investments76Note 3. Investments7>Note-Investments77Note 4. Property, Equipment and
Software, Net7Nete-Net79Note 5. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets7Note-Assets79Note 6. Accrued Workers'
Compensation €ests78Nete— Costs80Note 7. Eeases7ONote-Leases81Note 8. Long- term Debt86Nete-Debt82Note 9.
Commitments and Centingenetes§HNote-Contingencies83Note 10. Stock Based Compensation$tHNote-Compensation83Note
11. Stockholders' Equity84Nete-Equity85Note 12. Income Faxes86Note-Taxes87Note 13. Earnings Per Share89Note 14. 401
(k) Plan89Note 15. Related Party Fransaettons89Nete-- Transactions90Note | 6. Aequisitton88-Restructuring91Note 17.
Segment91 FRENETSS-TRINETS7 2623-2024 FORM 10- K REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of TriNet Group, Inc. Opinion on the Financial
Statements We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of TriNet Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (the"
Company") as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2623-2024 , and the
related notes (collectively referred to as the" financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-20822-, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023-2024 , in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have also audited, in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company' s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2023-2024 , based on criteria established in Internal Control- Integrated Framework
(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February +5-13
, 20242025 , expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company' s internal control over financial reporting. Basis for Opinion
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company' s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company' s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audits in accordance with
the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing
procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. Critical Audit Matter The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter
arising from the current- period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the
audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our



especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way
our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below,
providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates. Accrued Workers’
Compensation and Health Insurance Costs- Refer to Note 1 and Note 6 to the financial statements Critical Audit Matter
Description The Company offers its clients and worksite employees (WSEs) workers' compensation insurance and health
insurance coverage through insurance policies provided by third- party insurance carriers. The Company is obligated to
reimburse the insurance carriers for losses up to defined deductible limits, in accordance with the insurance policies. Accrued
workers’ compensation and health insurance costs are established to provide for the estimated unpaid costs of reimbursing the
carriers. TRINEFS9-TRINETS8 2623-2024 FORM 10- K The accrued workers’ compensation costs include estimates for
reported and incurred but not reported losses, accrued costs on reported claims, and expenses associated with settling the claims.
The estimates are based on the Company’ s historical and industry loss experience, exposure data, an estimate of future cost
trends, expected loss ratios, and loss development factors. The accrued health insurance costs include estimates for claims
incurred but not paid. The estimates are based on the Company’ s historical claim payment patterns and medical cost trends,
current period claim costs and claim reporting patterns, and plan enrollment. Both the accrued workers’ compensation and
health insurance costs are established using actuarial methods followed in the insurance industry and the Company uses
qualified actuaries to develop these estimates. Given the subjectivity of estimating the value of the accrued workers’
compensation and health insurance costs, performing audit procedures to evaluate whether accrued workers’ compensation and
health insurance costs recorded for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 required a high degree of auditor judgment and an
increased extent of effort, including the need to involve our actuarial specialists. How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed
in the Audit Our audit procedures related to the accrued workers” compensation and health insurance costs included the
following, among others: « We tested the effectiveness of controls related to accrued workers’ compensation and health
insurance costs. « We tested the underlying data that served as inputs into the actuarial analyses, including testing historical
claims and enrollment data and recreating the claim loss triangles. « With the assistance of our actuarial specialists, we
evaluated the methods and key assumptions used by management to estimate the accrued workers” compensation and health
insurance costs: ° Compared management’ s prior- year assumptions of expected development and ultimate loss to actuals
incurred during the current year to identify and evaluate potential bias in the determination of the accrued workers’
compensation and health insurance costs.  Developed an independent range of estimates of the accrued costs, utilizing loss
development factors and future cost trends for accrued workers’ compensation costs and claim payment patterns and medical
trend rates for accrued health insurance costs. We compared our estimated ranges to management’ s estimates. / s / DELOITTE
& TOUCHE LLP San Francisco, California February +5-13 , 2624-2025 We have served as the Company' s auditor since 2016.
FRINET66-TRINETS9 2623-2024 FORM 10- K Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting We have audited the
internal control over financial reporting of TriNet Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (the" Company ) as of December 31, 2623-2024
, based on criteria established in Internal Control- Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2623-2024 , based on criteria established in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO. We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2623-2024 , of the Company and our report dated February +5-13 , 2624-2025 , expressed an unqualified opinion
on those financial statements. The Company’ s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management’ s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with
the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws
and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting A company’ s internal
control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’ s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’ s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. FRINEF6+TRINET60 2623-2024 FORM 10- K CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Year Ended December 31, (in millions except per share



data) 202320222624 Prefessional----- 202420232022Professional service revenues $ 765 $ 756 § 754 $-639-Insurance service
revenues4, 224 4, 166 4, 131 3;-96+-Interest income64 72 22 Total reventes4-revenuesS , 522-053 4, 885994 4, 546-907
Insurance costs3, 797 3, 513 3, 463 3;339-Cost of providing serviees367-services304 307 303 264-Sales and matrketing285
marketing289 285 242 262-General and administrative2HH-administrative232 211 241 +76-Systems development and
pfegfa-m-rmﬁgéé—programmmg68 6573 59—Depremat10n and amortization of 1ntang1ble assets72-assets75 72 64 54-Fotal-eosts
o€ Operating-ineome469-499-455-Otherineome{expense —Interest expense, bank fees
and et-heﬁother62 40 )—639 )—(—29)—I-ntefest—meeme7—2—2—2—6—lncome before tax226 501 pfevmeﬂ—fer—meeme—ta*es%@H& 44+
Income taxesi26-taxes53 126 127 493-Net income $ 173 $ 375 $ 355 $338-Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of income
taxes3— taxes (1) 3 (4 35) Comprehensive income $ 172 $ 378 $ 351 $333-Net income per share: Basic $3.47$6. 61 $5. 66
Diluted $ 5-3 . 43 13 Biluted-$ 6. 56 § 5. 61 $5-07Weighted average shares: Baste57-Basic50 57 63 66Diuted57Diluted50
57 64 67FSee accompanying notes. FRINEF62Z-TRINET61 2623-2024 FORM 10- K CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, December 31, (in millions, except share and per share data) 20232022ASSEFSCurrent-----
20242023ASSETSCurrent asscts: Cash and cash equivalents $ 360 § 287 $354Jnvestments65—- Investments 76— 65
Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments1, 413 1, 269 5263-Accounts receivable, net32 18 Payroll funds
receivable349 447 neti819-Unbiedreventenetd47-375-Prepaid expenses, reté7net64 767 Other payroll assets38+
assets916 +22-381 Other current assets44-assets46 46-44 Total current assets2-assets3 , 180 2 , 578 2;326-Restricted cash, cash
equivalents and investments, reoneurrenrt-58— noncurrent145 +53-158 [nvestments, ﬁeﬁeuﬁeﬁt—l-%—~—— noncurrent 54— 143
Property and equipment, sretd#netl0 24-17 Operating lease right- of- use asset24 3424 Goodwill 462-461 462 Software and
other intangible assets, retH-72463-net156 172 Other assetsi39-- assets143 433-139 Total assets $ 3-4 , 693-119 § 3, 443-693
Liabilities and stockholders' equityCurrent liabilities: Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 89 $ 87 $98-Revolving
credit agreement berrowitgsto9-borrowings75 —109 Client deposits and other client habilities65— liabilities76 +66-65
Accrued wages5t5-wagesS80 437515 Accrued health insurance costs, nett75+74-net189 175 Accrued workers' compensation
costs, ret58-54-netd4 50 Payroll tax liabilities and other payroll withholdings1, 906 1, 438 4-8870Operating lease habtitiest4
liabilities13 +5-14 [nsurance premiums and other payablesto-payables9 +7-10 Total current liabilities2, 981 2, 463 988
Long- term debt, nereurrentd84— noncurrent908 496-984 Accrued workers' compensation costs, noncurrent, aetd26-net110
428-120 Deferred taxest3-taxes11 8-13 Operating lease liabilities, noneutrrent39-noncurrent26 430 Other non current
habilitiesS-liabilities 14 7-5 Total Jabilittes3-liabilities4 , 050 3 , 615 2,668-Commitments and contingencies (see Note 9)
Stockholders' equity: Preferred stock — — ($ 0. 000025 par value per share; 20, 000, 000 shares authorized; no shares issued or
outstanding at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-) Common stock and additional paid- in eapital976-capitall 899-, 056
976 ($ 0. 000025 par value per share; 750, 000, 000 shares authorized; 49, 527, 506 and 50, 664, 471 and-60;-555-661<hares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively) Retained earnings (Accumulated deficit) ( 984)
(896 HH9-) Accumulated other comprehensive loss ( 3) (2 H5-) Total stockholders' eqaity7?8-equity69 775-78 Total liabilities
& stockholders' equity $ 34 ,693-119 $ 3, 443-693 FRINEF63-TRINET62 2623-2024 FORM 10- K CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 262320222021 Tetal—---
202420232022Total Stockholders' Equity, beginning balance $ 78 $ 775 $ 881 $667Common Stock and Additional Paid- In
Capital: Beginning batanee899-- balance976 899 808 #47Issuance of common stock from exercise of stock eptieris4-- options
+—4 1 Issuance of common stock for employee stock purchase ptant-planl2 +6-11 10 Issuance of common stock for the
acquisition of Zenefits — — 17 —Repurchase of common stock — — 1 —Stock based compensation expenseé62-expense68
62 56-62 Ending batanee976-balancel , 056 976 899 868-Retained Earnings (Accumulated Deficit): Beginning balance ( 896) (
119) 74 (H44>-Net nreeme3#5—- incomel73 375 355 338-Common stock dividends (50) — — Repurchase of common stock (
183) (1, 122) (524 394-) Awards effectively repurchased for required employee withholding taxes ( 28) ( 30) (24 3+26-) Ending
balance ( 984) (896) (119) #4-Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income: Beginning balance ( 2) (5) (1) 4-Other
comprehensive (loss) ineeme3-- income (1) 3 (4 35-) Ending balance ( 3) (2) (593) Total Stockholders' Equity, ending
balance $ 69 $ 78 $ 775 $-88+TFRINET64-TRINET63 2023-2024 FORM 10- K CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH
FLOWS Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 20232622262+Operating—--- 2024202320220perating activitiesNet income $
173 $ 375 $ 355 $338-Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: Depreciation and
amortization of intangible assets72-assets75 72 64 54-Amortization of deferred eests46-costs44 40 38 3+-Amortization of ROU
asset, lease modification, impairment, and abandenment9-abandonment11 9 25 +2-Stock based eompensation59-—
compensation65 59 62 56-Accretion of discount rate on lease liabilities2 2 2 Provision for doubtful aeceetnts3-accounts2 3 2 —
Deferred income taxes5— taxes (2) 5 (22 H9-) Losses from disposition of assetst— assets — 1 6 —Losses and impairment on
tvestmentst— investments (1) 1 18 Impairment of intangibles25 — —— Changes in operating assets and liabilities: Accounts
receivable, net (2) —( 3 UnbiHedreventernet(72-) 4 (5HF8)-Prepaid expenses, retd— net (2-18 ) 4 19 (5)-Other payroll
assets-assets3 ( 259-3 ) — (F210-Accounts payable and other current liabilities ( 8-7) (10 ) (13) 33-Client deposits and other
client liabilities (46-10 ) 23 — 9+3H-Accrued wages?+-- wages 65-66-(5) 7 14 Accrued health insurance costs, nett— net (2) 7
— 2-Accrued workers' compensation costs, net (4+2-11 ) (8) (7) Payroll taxes payable and other payroll swthhotdings354—--
withholdings +58-( +66-3 ) 8 2 Operating lease liabilities ( 15) ( 17) (17 33-) Other assets (3852 ) (5535 ) (66-54 ) Other
habtities-liabilities7 ( 71 ) ( 1 2+2-) Net cash provided by operating aetivitiesS45-activities279 562248-539 497 Investing
activitiesPurchases of marketable securities ( 190) (276) (410 3444-) Proceeds from sale and maturity of marketable
seeurities286-securitiesd21 286 469 349-Acquisitions of property and equipment and projects in process ( 78) (75) (56 346-)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired — — (229) —Other Investments — (5) Net cash provided by (used in
) investing aetivittes-activities153 (70) (226) (35 -Financing aetivittesRepurehase-activitiesChange in WSE and TriNet
Trust related assets and liabilities, net139 6 65 Repurchase of common stock ( 183) (1, 122) (523 3494-) Proceeds from
issuance of common stock 12 15 +11 Payment of long- term financing costs and debt issuance costs — (9) —Proeeeds




fromrissuanee-of 203+ Notes400—— Proceeds from issuance of 2629-2031 Notes — 400 — 566-Repayment-ofborrowitgs—
—3#0)Proceeds from revolving credit agreement borrowings — 695 Repayment of borrowings under revolving credit
agreement ( 110) (495) Awards effectively repurchased for required employee withholding taxes ( 28) (30) (24)

Dividends paid ( 26-37 ) — — Net cash provided-by-used in yfinancing activities ( 546-207 ) ( 536-540 ) +2-(471) Effect of
exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents — — (1) —Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents,

unrestricted and restrieted-restricted225 (71) (201) 95-Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted and restricted: Beginning of
periodl, 466 1, 537 1, 738 1,643-End of period $ 1, 691 $ 1, 466 $ 1, 537 $4-738-Supplemental disclosures of cash flow
informationInterest paid $ 59 $ 25 $ 18 $42-Income taxes paid, retH4-net76 114 128 +29-Supplemental schedule of noncash
investing and financing aetivittesPayabte-activitiesCash dividend declared, but not yet paid $ 12 $ — $§ — Payable for
purchase of property and equipment $ 2 $ 4 $ 6 $3-Acquisitions of subsidiaries paid in stock § — $ — § 17 $—TRINET64
2024 FORM 10- K TRINET65 2623-2024 FORM 10- K NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTE
1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TriNet Group, Inc. (TriNet, or the
Company, we, our and us) provides comprehensive HCM solutions for small and medium- size businesses under both a PEO
model and an HRIS services model. These HCM solutions include multi- state payroll processing and tax administration,
employee benefits programs, including health insurance and retirement plans, workers' compensation insurance and claims
management, employment and benefit law compliance, and other HR- related services. Through our PEO service model, we are
the employer of record for certain employment- related administrative and regulatory purposes for WSEs, including: ¢
compensation through wages and salaries, ¢ certain employer payroll- related tax payments, * employee payroll- related tax
withholdings and payments, * employee benefit programs, including health and life insurance, and ¢ workers' compensation
coverage. Our PEO clients are responsible for the day- to- day job responsibilities of the WSEs. Through our HRIS services
model, we provide cloud- based HCM services to SMBs that allows them to manage hiring, onboarding, employee information,
payroll processing, payroll tax administration, health insurance, and other benefits, from a single cloud- based software platform.
We are not the co- employer or employer of record for such employees. We operate in one reportable segment. All of our service
revenues are generated from external clients. Less than 1 % of our revenue is generated outside of the U. S. Basis of
Presentation Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States of America (GAAP). All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
When entering into contractual arrangements with other entities, we assess whether we have a variable interest. If we
determine that we have a variable interest, we then determine whether the arrangement is with a variable interest entity
(" VIE"). If the arrangement is with a VIE, we assess whether we are the primary beneficiary of the VIE by identifying
the most significant activities and determining who has the power over those activities and who has the obligation to
absorb the majority of the losses or benefits of the VIE. We consolidate a VIE when we have the power to direct activities
that most significantly affect the economic performance of the VIE and have the obligation to absorb the majority of
their losses or benefits, making us the primary beneficiary. Periodically, we assess whether any changes in our interest or
relationship with the entity affect our determination of whether the entity is a VIE and, if so, whether we are the primary
beneficiary. In December 2023, we created a trust ("' TriNet Trust'") for the purpose of holding HRIS clients' payroll
funds for the remittance to HRIS Users, tax authorities and other recipients. TriNet Trust' s assets are restricted and can
only be used for payments on behalf of HRIS clients, repayments of any advances from TriNet, or payments to TriNet of
interest income earned on the balances of TriNet Trust. In the event of any losses, creditors to the Trust have recourse to
TriNet Trust' s property and not that of TriNet overall. The risks associated with the Trust are similar to those that
currently exist for the Company such as banking losses in excess of FDIC insurance levels, interest rate and market
conditions. We determined that TriNet Trust meets the definition of a variable interest entity and as the primary
beneficiary we have both the power to direct TriNet Trust’ s activities that most significantly affect its performance and
we have the right to receive benefits from TriNet Trust, in the form of interest income. As a result, TriNet Trust is
consolidated into our financial statements. During the first quarter of 2024, TriNet Trust assumed ownership and
responsibility of certain bank accounts that hold HRIS client funds and assumed related liabilities. TRINET66 2024
FORM 10- K The following table presents the assets and liabilities of TriNet Trust which are included in our
consolidated balance sheet. These amounts on any particular date can vary due to timing of cash receipts and
remittances. December 31, 2024 (in millions) TriNet TrustASSETSCurrent assets: Cash and cash equivalents $ 1
Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments87 Total current assets88 Total assets $ 88 LIABILITIESCurrent
liabilities: Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 1 Accrued wages18 Payroll tax liabilities and other payroll
withholdings69 Total current liabilities88 Total liabilities $ 88 Reclassifications Certain prior year amounts on the
Consolidated Statement of Income have been reclassified to conform to current period presentation. Specifically, interest
income previously included in the former Other income (expense) category is now classified as a component of Total
revenue. Similarly, Interest expense, bank fees and other has been reclassified as part of total expenses. These
reclassifications eliminate the profitability measure of Operating Income on our Consolidated Statement of Income,
which is not a key measure of profitability used by management. Statement of Cash Flows Certain prior year amounts
on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows have also been reclassified to conform to current period presentation, with
no impact on the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Balance
Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equlty In partlcular, changes in WSE related assets and llabllltles




operating activities excluding the impact of Deferred-client cash flows. Year Ended December 31, 20232022 (in millions)
As previously reportedReclassifiedamountsAs revisedAs previously reportedReclassifiedamountsAs revisedOperating
activitiesChanges in operating assets and liabilities: Accounts receivable, net (2) (1) (3) — 4 4 Payroll funds receivable
(72) 72 — (51) 51 — Prepaid expenses, net4 — 4 (2) 21 19 Other payroll assets (259) 256 (3) (72) 72 — Accounts payable
and other current liabilities (8) (2) (10) (13) — (13) Client deposits and other client liabilities (40) 63 23 9 (9) — Accrued
wages77 (70) 7 65 (51) 14 Accrued health insurance Costs-costs —, netl 6 7— — — Accrued workers' compensation
costs, net (12) 4 (8) (8) 1 (7) Payroll taxes payable and other payroll withholdings351 (343) 8 158 (156) 2 Other assets (38)
3 (35) (55) 1 (54) Other liabilities (7) 6 (1) (2) 1 (1) Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (5) (6) (11) 29 (65)
(36) Financing activitiesChange in WSE and TriNet Trust related assets and liabilities, net— 6 6 — 65 65 Net cash
provided by financing activities — 6 6 — 65 65 Use of Estimates TRINET67 2024 FORM 10- K The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
related disclosures. These estimates are based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be
reasonable from the facts available to us. Some of the assumptions are highly uncertain at the time of estimation. To the extent
actual experience differs from the assumptions used, our consolidated financial statements could be materially affected. Revenue
Recognition Revenues are recognized when the promised services are transferred to our clients, in an amount that reflects the
consideration that we expect to receive in exchange for services. We generate all of our revenue from contracts with clients. We
disaggregate revenues into professional services revenues and insurance services revenues as reported on the consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In the majority of our contracts, both the client and the Company may
terminate the contract without penalty by providing a 30- day notice. FRINEF662623FORMI0-I-Performance Obligations
At contract inception, we assess the services promised in our contracts with clients and identify a performance obligation for
each distinct promise to transfer to the client a service or bundle of services. We determined that the following distinct services
represent separate performance obligations: ¢ Payroll and payroll tax processing, « Health benefits services, « Workers’
compensation services, and ¢ A right to receive future services at a discount through a Recovery Credit. Payroll and payroll tax
processing performance obligations include services to process payroll and payroll tax- related transactions on behalf of our PEO
and HRES-ASO clients. Revenues associated with this performance obligation are reported as professional service revenues and
recognized using an output method in which the promised services are transferred when a client' s payroll is processed by us and
WSEs and users are paid. Professional service revenues are stated net of the gross payroll and payroll tax amounts funded by
our clients. Although we assume the responsibilities to process and remit the payroll and payroll related obligations, we do not
assume employment- related responsibilities such as determining the amount of the payroll and related payroll obligations. As a
result, we are the agent in this arrangement for revenue recognition purposes. Health benefits and workers' compensation
services include performance obligations to provide TriNet- sponsored health benefits and workers' compensation insurance
coverage through insurance policies provided by third- party insurance carriers and settle deductible amounts on those policies.
Revenues associated with these performance obligations are reported as insurance services revenues and are recognized using
the output method over the period of time that the client and WSEs are covered under TriNet- sponsored insurance policies. We
control the selection of health benefits and workers' compensation coverage made available. As a result, we are the principal in
this arrangement for revenue recognition purposes and insurance services revenues are reported gross. In previous years, we
created our Recovery Credits to assist in the economic recovery of our existing PEO clients and enhance our ability to retain
these clients. These credits were based on the performance of our insurance costs and were recorded as a reduction to insurance
services revenues and included in client deposits and other client liabilities on the balance sheet. The change in balance for the
hablhty for credits prev10usly accrued is the followmg (1n mllhons) %92—3%92%Ba}aﬁee-20242023Balance at beginning of

e 6 at-end-of period $ 7 $ 75 () Accruals — — (=)
Dlstrlbutlons to clients (7) (68) Balance at end of period $ —$7 We generally charge new clients a nominal upfront non-
refundable fee to recover our costs to set them up on our TriNet platform for payroll processing and other administrative
services, such as benefit enrollments. These fees are accounted for as part of our transaction price and are allocated among the
performance obligations based on their relative standalone selling prices. Client Deposits and Other Client Liabilities
TRINET68 2024 FORM 10- K Client deposits and other client liabilities represents our contractual commitments and payables
to clients, including indemnity guarantee payments received from clients, amounts prefunded by clients for their payroll and
related taxes and other withholding liabilities before payroll is processed or due for payment, as well as service fee consideration
received for unsatisfied performance obligations. Variable Consideration and Pricing Allocation From time to time, we may
offer credits to our clients considered to be variable consideration. Incentive credits related to contract renewals are recorded as a
reduction to revenue as part of the transaction price at contract inception and are allocated among the performance obligations
based on their relative standalone selling prices. FRINEF672023-FORM10-I-We allocate the total transaction price to each
performance obligation based on the estimated relative standalone selling prices of the promised services underlying each
performance obligation. The transaction price for the payroll and payroll tax processing performance obligations is determined
upon establishment of the contract that contains the final terms of the arrangement, including the description and price of each
service purchased. The estimated service fee is determined based on observable inputs and includes the following key
assumptions: target profit margin, pricing strategies including the mix of services purchased and competitive factors, and client
and industry specifics. The fees for access to health benefits and workers' compensation insurance performance obligations i
are determined during the-pew-client on- boarding and annually through the enrollment processes based on the types of
benefits coverage the WSEs have elected and the applicable risk profile of the client. We estimate our service fees based on
actuarial forecasts of our expected insurance premiums and loss sensitive premium costs and amounts to cover our costs to
administer these programs. We require our clients to prefund payroll and related taxes and other withholding liabilities before
payroll is processed or due for payment. Under the provision of our contracts with clients, we generally will process the




payment of a client’ s payroll only when the client successfully funds the amount required. As a result, there is no financing
arrangement for the contracts. However, certain contracts to provide payroll and payroll tax processing services permit the client
to pay certain payroll tax components ratably over periods of up to 12 months rather than as payroll tax is otherwise determined
and due, which may be considered a significant financing arrangement under FASB ASC Topic 606 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. However, as the period between our performing the service under the contract and when the client pays for the
service is less than one year, we have elected, as a practical expedient, not to adjust the transaction price. Bnbilled-We
recognize interest income as Revente-revenue because the collection and processing of funds held for the benefit of our
clients are critical components of providing these services. Interest income is recognized when earned. Payroll Funds
Receivable For our PEO clients, we recognize WSE payroll and payroll tax liabilities in the period in which the WSEs perform
work. When clients' pay periods cross reporting periods, we accrue the portion of the unpaid WSE payroll where we assume,
under state regulations, the obligation for the payment of wages and the corresponding payroll tax liabilities associated with the
work performed prior to period- end. These estimated payroll and payroll tax liabilities are recorded in accrued wages. The
associated receivables to pay those wages , including estimated revenues, offset by advance collections from clients and an
allowance for credit losses, are recorded as unbilledrevente-payroll funds TRINET69 2024 FORM 10- K receivable . As of
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, advance collections included in unbiHedrevente-payroll funds receivable were $ 171
million and $ 8 mithenand-$-9-million, respectively. Contract Costs We recognize as deferred commission expense the
incremental cost to obtain a contract with a client for certain components under our commission plans for sales representatives
and channel partners that are directly related to new clients onboarded as we expect to recover these costs through future service
fees. Such assets are amortized over the estimated average client tenure. These commissions are earned on the basis of the
revenue generated from payroll and payroll tax processing performance obligations. When the commission on a renewal
contract is not commensurate with the commission on the initial contract, any incremental commission will be capitalized and
amortized over the estimated average client tenure. If the commission for both the initial contract and renewal contracts are
commensurate, such commissions are expensed in the contract period. The below table summarizes the amounts capitalized and
amortized during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-262+: Year Ended December 31, (in millions)
202320222024 Peferred—-- 202420232022Deferred commission expense: Capitalized $ 38 $ 33 § 32 -$%8—Ameft—tzed3§
Amortized38 35 31 25-Certain commission plans pay a commission on estimated professional service revenues over the first 12
months of the contract with clients. The portion of commission paid in excess of the actual commission earned in that period is
recorded as prepaid commission. When the prepaid commission is considered earned, it is classified as a deferred commission
expense and subject to amortization. We did not have material contract liabilities as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-.
FRINEF682023-FORM0-K-Our insurance plans are provided by third- party insurance carriers under risk- based or
guaranteed- cost insurance policies. Under risk- based policies, we agree to reimburse our carriers for any claims paid within an
agreed- upon per- person deductible layer up to a maximum aggregate exposure limit per policy. These deductible dollar limits
and maximum limits vary by carrier and year. Under guaranteed- cost policies, our carriers establish the premiums and we are
not responsible for any deductible. Insurance costs include insurance premiums for coverage provided by insurance carriers,
expenses for claims costs and other risk management and administrative services, reimbursement of claims payments made by
insurance carriers or third- party administrators below a predefined deductible limit, and changes in accrued costs related to
contractual obligations with our workers' compensation and health benefit carriers. At policy inception, annual workers'
compensation premiums are estimated by the insurance carriers based on projected wages over the duration of the policy period
and the risk categories of the WSEs. We initially pay premiums based on these estimates. As actual wages are realized,
premium expense recorded may differ from estimated premium expense, creating an asset or liability throughout the policy
year. Such asset or liability is reported on our consolidated balance sheets as prepaid expenses or insurance premiums and other
payables, respectively. TRINET70 2024 FORM 10- K We have secured workers' compensation insurance policies with
insurance carriers to administer and pay claims for our clients and WSEs. We are responsible for reimbursing the insurance
carriers for losses up to $ 1 million per claim occurrence (deductible layer). Insurance carriers are responsible for administering
and paying claims. We are responsible for reimbursing each carrier up to a deductible limit per occurrence. Accrued workers'
compensation costs represent our liability to reimburse insurance carriers for our share of their losses and loss adjustment
expenses. These accrued costs are established to provide for the estimated ultimate costs of paying claims within the deductible
layer in accordance with workers' compensation insurance policies. These accrued costs include estimates for reported and
incurred but not reported (IBNR) losses, accrued costs on reported claims, and expenses associated with settling the claims. In
establishing these accrued costs, we use an external actuary to pr0V1de an estimate of undlscounted future cash payments that
Would be made to settle the clalrns based upon: =+ : ate-an 7

eaeh—aeetdeﬂt—yeaﬁe—aﬁ—u-l-t—rm&te—baﬂs—We assess the accrued Workers compensatron costs ona quarterly basrs F or each

reporting period, changes in the actuarial methods and assumptions resulting from changes in actual claims experience and other
trends are incorporated into the accrued workers' compensation costs. Adjustments to previously established accrued costs
estimates are reflected in the results of operations for the period in which the adjustment is identified. Such adjustments could
be significant, reflecting any variety of new adverse or favorable trends. Accordingly, final claim settlements may vary
materially from the present estimates, particularly when those payments may not occur until well into the future. In our
experience, plan years related to workers' compensation programs may take ten years or more to be settled. We do not discount
accrued workers' compensation costs. Costs expected to be paid within one year are recorded as accrued workers' compensation
costs. Costs expected to be paid beyond one year are included in accrued workers' compensation costs, less current portion.
FRINET69-2623-FORMIO-K-\We have collateral agreements with various insurance carriers where either we retain custody of



funds in trust accounts which we record as restricted cash and cash equivalents, or remit funds to carriers. Collateral whether
held by us, or the carriers, is used to settle our insurance and claim deductible obligations to them. Collateral requirements are
established at the policy year and are re- assessed by each carrier annually. Based on the results of each assessment, additional
collateral may be required for or paid to the carrier or collateral funds may be released or returned to the Company. In instances
where we pay collateral to carriers and the agreement permits net settlement of obligations against collateral held, we record our
accrued costs net of that collateral (Carrier Collateral Offset). We offset Carrier Collateral Offset against our obligation due
within the next 12 months before applying against long- term obligations. Collateral balances in excess of accrued costs are
recorded in other assets. We sponsor and administer a number of employee benefit plans for our PEO WSEs, including group
health, dental, and vision as an employer plan sponsor under section 3 (5) of the ERISA. In 2623-2024 , the majority of our
group health insurance costs were related to risk- based plans. Our remaining group health insurance costs were for guaranteed-
cost policies. Accrued health insurance costs are established to provide for the estimated unpaid costs of reimbursing the carriers
for paying claims within the deductible layer in accordance with risk- based health insurance policies. These accrued costs
include estimates for claims incurred but not paid. We assess accrued health insurance costs regularly based upon actuarial
studies that include other relevant factors such as current and historical claims payment patterns, plan enrollment and medical
trend rates. TRINET71 2024 FORM 10- K [n certain carrier contracts we are required to prepay our obligations for the
expected claims activity for subsequent periods. These prepaid balances by agreement permit net settlement of obligations and
offset the accrued health insurance costs. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard2022-, prepayments and miscellaneous
receivables offsetting accrued health insurance costs were $ 60 million and $ 58 miHten-and-$-5Fmillion, respectively. When
the prepaid amount is in excess of our recorded liability the net asset position is included in prepaid expenses. As of December
31,2024 and 2023 and-2622- accrued health insurance costs offsetting prepaid expenses were $ 90 million and $ 68 mithen
and-$-73-million, respectively. We determine if a new contractual arrangement is a lease at contract inception. If a contract
contains a lease, we evaluate whether it should be classified as an operating or a finance lease. If applicable as a lease, we record
our lease liabilities and right- of- use (ROU) assets based on the future minimum lease payments over the lease term and only
include options to renew a lease in the future minimum lease payments if it is reasonably certain that we will exercise that
option. For certain leases with original terms of twelve months or less we recognize the lease expense as incurred and we do not
recognize lease liabilities and ROU assets. We measure our lease liabilities based on the future minimum lease payments
discounted over the lease term. We determine our discount rate at lease inception using our incremental borrowing rate, which is
based on our outstanding debts that are collateralized by certain corporate assets. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-,
the weighted- average rate used in discounting the lease liability was 4. 9 % and 4. 2 %-and-3-—9-%, respectively. We measure
our ROU assets based on the associated lease liabilities adjusted for any lease incentives such as tenant improvement allowances
and classify operating ROU assets in other assets in our consolidated balance sheets. For operating leases, we recognize expense
for lease payments on a straight- line basis over the lease term. Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include
bank deposits and short- term, highly liquid investments. Investments with original maturity dates of three months or less are
considered cash equivalents. Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments Restricted cash, cash equivalents and
investments presented on our consolidated balance sheets include: ¢ cash and cash equivalents in trust accounts functioning as
security deposits for our insurance carriers, ¢ payroll funds collected representing cash collected in advance from clients which
we designate as restricted for the purpose of funding WSE and ASO User payroll and payroll taxes and other payroll related
liabilities, and FRINEFF6-2023-FORMIH0-K— amounts held in trust for current and future premium and claim obligations with
our insurance carriers, which amounts are held in trust according to the terms of the relevant insurance policies and by the local
insurance regulations of the jurisdictions in which the policies are in force. Our marketable investments are primarily classified
as available- for- sale and are carried at estimated fair value. Unrealized gains and losses are reported as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income, net of deferred income taxes. The amortized cost of debt investments is adjusted for
amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts from the date of purchase to the earliest call date for premiums or the
maturity date for discounts. Such amortization is included in interest income as an addition to or deduction from the coupon
interest earned on the investments. We use the specific identification method to determine realized gains and losses on the sale
of available- for- sale securities. Realized gains and losses are included in interest expense, bank fees, and other in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. We assess our investments for credit impairment.
We review several factors to determine whether an unrealized loss is credit related, such as financial condition and future
prospects of the issuer. To the extent that a security' s amortized cost basis exceeds the present value of the cash flows expected
to be collected from the security, an allowance for credit losses will be recognized. If management intends to sell or will more
likely than not be required to sell the security before any anticipated recovery, a write down will be recognized in earnings
measured as the entire difference between the amortized cost and the then- current fair value. We have investments within our
unrestricted and our restricted accounts. Unrestricted investments are recorded on the balance sheet as current or noncurrent
based upon the remaining time to maturity, and investments subject to restrictions are classified as current or noncurrent based
on the expected payout of the related liability. TRINET72 2024 FORM 10- K Comprehensive income consists of net income
and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive (loss) income includes those gains and losses included in
comprehensive income, but excluded from net income, in accordance with GAAP. Other comprehensive (loss) income is
primarily comprised of net unrealized gains or losses arising on available- for- sale investments, net of deferred taxes. Fair
Value of Financial Instruments Fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. As such, fair value is a
market- based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an
asset or a liability. Our financial assets recorded at fair value on a recurring basis are comprised of cash equivalents, available-
for- sale marketable securities and certificates of deposits. We measure certain financial assets at fair value for disclosure



purposes, as well as on a nonrecurring basis when they are deemed to be other- than- temporarily impaired. Our other current
financial assets and liabilities have fair values that approximate their carrying value due to their short- term nature. Assets and
liabilities recorded at fair value are measured and classified in accordance with a three- tier fair value hierarchy based on the
observability of the inputs available in the market to measure fair value, summarized as follows: ¢ Level 1 — observable inputs
for identical assets or liabilities, such as quoted prices in active markets, * Level 2 — inputs other than the quoted prices in
active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly, « Level 3 — unobservable inputs in which there is little or no
market data, which requires that we develop our own assumptions. The fair value hierarchy requires us to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. We classify our cash equivalents,
investments and long- term debt in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. FRINEFH2023-FORM1H6-—IK-Accounts Receivable Our accounts receivable represents
outstanding gross billings to clients, net of an allowance for estimated credit losses. We require our clients to prefund payroll
and related liabilities before payroll is processed or due for payment. If a client fails to fund payroll or misses the funding cut-
off, at our sole discretion, we may pay the payroll and the resulting amounts due to us are recognized as accounts receivable.
When client payment is received in advance of our performance under the contract, such amount is recorded as client deposits.
We establish an allowance for credit losses based on the credit quality of clients, current economic conditions, the age of the
accounts receivable balances, historical experience, and other factors that may affect clients’ ability to pay, and charge- off
amounts against the allowance when they are deemed uncollectible. The allowance was immaterial at December 31, 2024 and
2023 . Other Payroll Assets and Payroll Tax Liabilities and Other Payroll Withholdings Included in other payroll assets
are expected payroll tax refunds for which we have filed payroll tax returns claiming the refund with the IRS. Included
in these receivables are ERTC and other credits that we have filed returns for wages paid to our WSE’ s meeting the
requirements under the ERTC. When we file a claim for a refund that will be passed on to our clients, we recognize a
corresponding liability that is recognized in payroll tax liabilities and other payroll withholdings. We also have
receivables from the IRS for ERTC claims where we have distributed portions of the receivables to our clients. As of
December 31, 2622-2024 and 2023, total ERTC receivables are $ 831 million and $ 311 million, respectively. Of this
amount $ 72 million and $ 68 million have been distributed to our clients as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively
. Property and Equipment We record property and equipment at historical cost and compute depreciation using the straight- line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the lease terms, generally five years to seven years for office equipment,
furniture and fixtures, and the shorter of the asset life or the remaining lease term for leasehold improvements. We expense the
cost of maintenance and repairs as incurred and capitalize leasehold improvements. TRINET73 2024 FORM 10- K We
periodically assess the likelihood of unsuccessful completion of projects in progress, as well as monitor events or changes in
circumstances, which might suggest that impairment has occurred, and recoverability should be evaluated. An impairment loss
is recognized if the carrying amount of the asset is not recoverable and exceeds the future net cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset. We evaluate our long- lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. An asset is considered impaired if the carrying
amount exceeds the undiscounted future net cash flows the asset is expected to generate. An impairment charge is recognized
for the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its fair value. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the
lower of the carrying amount or fair value, less selling costs. Goodwill, Software and Other Intangible Assets Our goodwill and
identifiable intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are tested for impairment on an annual basis or
when an event occurs or circumstances change in a way to indicate that there has been a potential decline in the fair value of the
reporting unit. Goodwill impairment is determined by comparing the estimated fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying
amount, including goodwill. All goodwill is associated with one reporting unit within our one reportable segment. Annually, we
perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit has
declined below its carrying value. This assessment considers various financial, macroeconomic, industry, and reporting unit
specific qualitative factors. We perform our annual impairment testing in the fourth quarter. Based on the results of our reviews,
ne-we recognized an impairment loss of $ 24 million on intangible assets in the results of operation for the year ended
December 31, 2024. No impairment loss was recognized in the results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2023 5
and 2022 and-2021-. Intangible assets and software with finite useful lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful
lives ranging from one year to ten years using either the straight- line method or an accelerated method. Intangible assets are
reviewed for indicators of impairment at least annually and evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. We capitalize internal and external costs
incurred to develop internal- use computer software during the application development stage. Application development stage
costs include software configuration, coding, and installation. Capitalized costs are amortized on a straight- line basis over the
estimated useful life, typically ranging from three years to six years, commencing when the software is placed into service. We
expense costs incurred during the preliminary project stage, as well as general and administrative, overhead, maintenance and
training costs, and costs that do not add functionality to existing systems. FRINEF722023-FORMI6-—I-Advertising Costs We
expense the costs of producing advertisements at the time production occurs, and expense the cost of running advertisements in
the period in which the advertising space or airtime is used as sales and marketing expense. Advertising costs were $ 20 million,
$ 37 million, and $ 29 mithen,and-$2+million for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 r-and 2022 and262+,
respectively. Stock Based Compensation Our stock- based awards to employees include time based and performance based
restricted stock units and restricted stock awards, stock options and an employee stock purchase plan. Compensation expense
associated with restricted stock units and restricted stock awards is based on the fair value of common stock on the date of grant.
Compensation expense associated with stock options and employee stock purchase plan are based on the estimated grant date
fair value method using the Black- Scholes option pricing model. Expense is recognized using a straight- line amortization



method over the respective vesting period for awards that are ultimately expected to vest, with adjustments to expense
recognized in the period in which forfeitures occur. Income Taxes We account for our provision for income taxes using the asset
and liability method, under which we recognize income taxes payable or refundable for current year and deferred tax assets and
liabilities for the future tax effect of events that have been recognized in either our financial statements or tax returns. We
measure our current and deferred tax assets and liabilities based on provision of enacted tax laws of those jurisdictions in which
we operate. The effect of changes in tax laws and regulations, or interpretations, is recognized in our consolidated financial
statements in the period that includes the enactment date. TRINET74 2024 FORM 10- K We recognize deferred tax assets and
liabilities based on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and amounts used for income tax purposes, as well as the expected benefits of using net operating loss and other carryforwards.
We establish a valuation allowance when it is determined more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be realized.
Provision for income taxes may change when estimates used in determining valuation allowances change or when receipt of new
information indicates the need for adjustment in valuation allowances. Changes in valuation allowances are reflected as a
component of the provision for income taxes in the period of adjustment. We recognize a reserve for uncertain tax positions
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return when it is concluded that tax positions are not more likely than not to be sustained
upon examination by taxing authorities, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical
merits of the positions. Assumptions, judgment and the use of estimates are required in determining if the more likely than not
standard has been met when developing the provision for income taxes and in determining the expected benefit. The tax benefits
of the position recognized in the financial statements are then measured based on the largest amount of benefit that is greater
than 50 % likely to be realized upon settlement with a taxing authority. Unrecognized tax benefits due to tax uncertainties that
do not meet the minimum probability threshold are included as other liabilities and are charged to earnings in the period that
such determination is made. We recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as a component of income tax
expense. Accrued interest and penalties are included in other non- current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.
Concentrations of Credit Risk Financial instruments subject to concentrations of credit risk include cash, cash equivalents and
investments (unrestricted and restricted), accounts receivable, and amounts due from insurance carriers. We maintain these
financial assets principally in domestic financial institutions. We perform periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing of
these institutions. Our exposure to credit risk in the event of default by the financial institutions holding these funds is limited to
amounts currently held by the institution in excess of insured amounts. Under the terms of professional services agreements,
clients agree to maintain sufficient funds or other satisfactory credit at all times to cover the cost of their current payroll, all
accrued paid time off, vacation or sick leave balances, and other vested wage and benefit obligations for all their work site
employees. We generally require payment from our clients on or before the applicable payroll date. FRINEFF3-2023-FORM16-
K-For certain clients, we require an indemnity guarantee payment (IGP) supported by a letter of credit, bond, or a certificate of
deposit from certain financial institutions. The IGP typically equals the total payroll and service fee for one average payroll
period. No client accounted for more than 10 % of total revenues in the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and
2024-. Bad debt expense, net of recoveries was $ 3 million , $ 3 million and $ 2 million for the years ended December 31, 2024,
2023, and 2022 . Recently issued accounting guidance Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses In December 2024 |
respeettvely-the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2024- 03 ,
Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses, is to enhance the transparency and was-immatertat-decision- usefulness of
financial reporting by requiring public business entities to provide more detailed disclosures about the components of
certain expense captions in their income statements. The ASU is effective for the-yearended-TriNet on a prospective basis
for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2624-2027 . The Company is currently evaluating the provisions of this
ASU. In December 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU)
No. 2023- 09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, which enhances income tax
disclosure requirements. The ASU mandates additional details in the income tax rate reconciliation, including
quantitative thresholds for reconciling items, and requires disaggregation of income taxes paid by federal, state, and
foreign jurisdictions, with further breakdowns for significant individual jurisdictions. The ASU is effective for TriNet on
a prospective basis for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. The Company is currently evaluating the
prov1s1ons of thls ASU TRINET75 2024 FORM 10 K Recently adopted accountmg guidance Reeognizing-and-Measuring

: s ed-Segment Reporting In the year ended
December 31, 2024 the Company adopted Accountlng Standards Update (ASU) No. 2023- 07, Segment Reporting (Topic

280) Improvements to Reportable Segment Dlsclosures As a result Bﬂsmess—eembmaﬁen—\’v‘e-e&rbkadoﬁedﬁ%s%e%

eentfaet—habﬁ-r&es—to—t-he—hst—of exeepﬁons—to—thls adoptlon, the feeogmt-ren—&nd—meaSﬁremeﬁt—prmei-ples—Company now

discloses segment expenses that are significant apply—to-business-eombinations-and requires-that-we-reeognize-regularly
provided to the CODM. Additionally, the Company includes disclosures about the title and measure-eontraet-position of

the CODM and how segment proﬁt or loss 1nformatlon is utilized to assets» assess performance and allocate resources

Gustefﬁefs— The adoption of this ASU %92—1—-—98—d1d not have a matenal effeet—lmpact on etuethe Company s ﬁnanmal
position, results of operations, or cash flows but enhanced the disclosure of its segment reporting disclosures. Refer to
Note 17 in Part II, Item 8. Financial statements-Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K. NOTE 2.

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS- UNRESTRICTED AND RESTRICTED Under the terms of the
agreements with certain of our workers' compensation and health benefit insurance carriers, we are required to maintain
collateral in trust accounts for the benefit of specified insurance carriers and to reimburse the carriers’ claim payments within
our deductible layer. We invest a portion of the collateral amounts in marketable securities. We report the current and noncurrent



portions of these trust accounts as restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments on the consolidated balance sheets. We
require our clients to prefund their payroll and related taxes and other withholding liabilities before payroll is processed or due
for payment. This prefund , for PEO customers, as well as amounts held by our statutory trust for our HRIS Users, is
included in restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments as payroll funds collected, which is designated to pay pending
payrolls, payroll tax liabilities and other payroll withholdings. We also invest available corporate funds, primarily in fixed
income securities which meet the requirements of our corporate investment policy and are classified as AFS. Our total cash, cash
equivalents and investments are summarized below: December 31, 2023Deeember-2024December 3 1, 2022-2023 (in millions)
Cash and cash equivalentsAvailable- for- sale marketable securitiesTotalCash and cash equivalentsAvailable- for- sale
marketable securitiesTotalCash and cash equivalents $ 360 $ — $ 360 $ 287 $ — $ 287 Investments $354-$— — — $354
nvestments-— 05 65 —F6-F6-Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investmentsPayroll funds collectedl, 131 — 1, 131 1, 067
— 1, 067 ,862—1-062-Collateral for health benefits elaims3+-claims34 110 144 31 113 144 20H408439-Collateral for
workers' compensation elaims54— claims49 — 49 54 2 56 58-Trust for our HRIS Users87 — 58-87 — — — Other security
deposits2 — 2 42 — 42 Total restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments1, 303 110 1, 413 1, 154 115 1, 269 5353-H6
+263-Investments, noncurrent — — — — 143 143 —345445+Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments,
noncurrentCollateral for workers' compensation elaims25-claims28 117 145 25 133 158 29423456-Other security deposits —
— 33— —Total $1,691 $227 $ 1,918 § 1, 466 $ 456 § 1, 922 $4;:-537-$-460-51-99FFRINET74-TRINET76 2623
2024 FORM 10- K NOTE 3. INVESTMENTS The following tables summarize our financial instruments by significant
categories and fair value measurement on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2823-2024 and December 31, 2622-2023 and the
amortized cost, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses, and fair value of our AFS investments: (in millions) Fair Value
LevelAmortized CostGross Unrealized GainsGross Unrealized LossesFair ValueCash and Cash
EquivalentsInvestmentsRestricted Cash,Cash Equivalents and InvestmentsDecember 31, 2624€ash-2022Cash
equivalents:Money market mutual fundsLevel 1 § 576-314 § — § — § 576-314 § 257225 § — §$ 343-89 U.S.treasuriesLevel 2+
218 — — +1818 — — +Total cash equivalents5H-equivalents332 — — 5H257-332243 — 3+4-89 AFS Investments: Asset-
backed securitiesLevel 242 — (2 ) 40 — 40 ——————  Corporate bondsLevel 2140 235——-35——->35Ageney
seenritiesbevel 248-— (1) +7+139 — 112 27 Agency securitiesLevel 233 — +7(1) 32 — 5 27 U.S.treasuriesLevel 2229 2476
— 4 +74-229 — 62 167 Certificate of depositLevel 24212 — — +12 — — +12 Other debt securitiesLevel 2-28 —
— 8 — 71— Total AFS Investments $ 230-464 $ — $ (34 ) $ 227460 $§ — $ —226 $ 234 (in millions) Fair Value
LevelAmortized CostGross Unrealized GainsGross Unrealized LossesFair ValueCash and Cash
EquivalentsInvestmentsRestricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and InvestmentsDecember 31, 2023Cash equivalents: Money market
mutual fundsLevel 1 $ 183§ —§ —$ 183 $96 $ — $ 87 U. S. treasuriesLevel 27 — — 75 75— 2 Total cash equivalents190
——190101 — 89 AFS Investments: Asset- backed securitiesLevel 241 — (1) 40 — 40 — Corporate bondsLevel 2135 1 —
136 — 103 33 Agency securitiesLevel 240 — (1) 39 — 10 29 U. S. treasuriesLevel 2231 1 (1) 231 — 47 184 Certificate of
depositLevel 22 — — 2 — — 2 Other debt securitiesLevel 28 — — 8 — 8 — Total AFS Investments $ 457 $2 $ (3) $456 $
— $ 208 $ 248 (in millions) Fair Value LevelAmortized...... 460 $§ — $ 226 $ 234 We use an independent pricing source to
determine the fair value of our securities. The independent pricing source utilizes various pricing models for each asset class,
including the market approach. The inputs and assumptions for the pricing models are market observable inputs including trades
of comparable securities, dealer quotes, credit spreads, yield curves and other market- related data. We have not adjusted the
prices obtained from the independent pricing service and we believe the prices received from the independent pricing service are
representative of the prices that would be received to sell the assets at the measurement date (exit price). FRENEFFS
TRINET77 2623-2024 FORM 10- K The carrying value of the Company' s cash equivalents and restricted cash equivalents
approximate their fair values due to their short- term maturities. We did not have any Level 3 financial instruments recognized in
our balance sheets as of December 31, 2023-2024 and December 31, 20222023 . There were no transfers between levels as of
December 31, 2623-2024 and December 31, 2022-2023 . Sales and Maturities The fair value of debt investments by contractual
maturity are shown below: (in millions) December 31, 26236re-20240ne year or less $ 93-21 Over one year through five
years332-years199 Over five years through ten yearsH-yearsS Over ten years26- years2 Total fair value $ 456-227 The gross
proceeds from sales and maturme% of AFS @ecurme% for the year% ended December 31, 2024 2023, and 2022 —&ﬂd—292—l—are
presented below —We OSStea g A S f S e

2062+ Year Ended December 31 (1n mrlhon%) %92—3%92—2—292—1—61%&3»——— 202420232022Gross reahzed -k-)sses—galns $2 (—H—$ —
H8)-5 — Gross proeeeds-from-salest50-2271+62-realized losses (1) (1) (18) Gross proceeds from sales287 150 227 Gross
proceeds from maturities}37-maturities135 137 253 48F-Total $ 423 $ 286 $ 462 $349-Unrealized Losses on AFS
Investments Unrealized losses on fixed income securities are principally caused by changes in market interest rates and the
financial condition of the issuer. In analyzing an issuer' s financial condition, we consider whether the securities are issued by
the federal government or its agencies, whether downgrades by credit rating agencies have occurred, and industry analysts'
reports. Actual maturities may drffer from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the rrght to prepay obhgatrons

unreatizedHoss-posttionwere-$4-mitien—Gross unrealized losses were immaterial at December 31, 2623-2024 and December
31,2624-2023 . Fair Value of Long- Term Debt The fair value of our 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes was obtained from a third-
party pricing service and is based on observable market inputs. As such, the fair value of the senter-Senior netes-Notes is
considered Level 2 in the hierarchy for fair value measurement. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , our 2029 Notes and 2031
Notes were carried at their cost, net of issuance costs, and had a fair value of $ 443-453 million and $ 4+4-408 million,
respectively. As of December 31, 2022-2023 , our 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes were carried at their cost, net of issuance costs,



and had a fair value of § 443-443 million and $ 414 million, respectively . Our 2021 Revolver is a floating rate debt. At
December 31, 2023-2024 , the fair value of our 2021 Revolver approximated its carrying value (exclusive of issuance costs).
The fair value of our floating rate debt is estimated based on a discounted cash flow, which incorporates credit spreads, market
interest rates and contractual maturities to estimate the fair value and is considered Level 3 in the hierarchy for fair value
measurement. FRINET76-TRINET78 20623-2024 FORM 10- K NOTE 4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET Property and
equipment, net, consists of the following: (in millions) December 31, 2023Deeember-2024December 3 |, 26220fftee
20230ffice cquipment, including data processing equipment $ 22 § 37 $36-Leaschold imprevententsi9-improvements18 21-19
Furniture, fixtures, and egquipmenti4-equipment10 +6-14 Projects in progress2— progress 4-Total72-77— 2 Total50 72 Less:
Accumulated depreciation ( 37) (55 3€56-) Less: Impairments (1) $ (3) — 3)-Property and equipment, net $ 10 $ 17 $24-(1)
Amount includes impairment of leasehold improvements in leased office space that we have exited. Refer to Note 7 in Part II,
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K. Depreciation of property and equipment was $ 7
million, $ 9 million, and $ 10 mithef;and-$-9-million for years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;and2021+-,
respectively. NOTE 5. GOODWILL, SOFTWARE AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET Changes in goodwill for the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-are as follows: (in millions) AmountBalance atDeeember31;202+-$294
Additionst68Balanee-at December 31, 2022 $ 462 Additions — Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 462 Impairment (1) Balance
at December 31, 2024 $ 461 As part of our 2024 restructuring discussed in Note 16, we have classified approximately $ 7
million of assets and an immaterial amount of liabilities as held for sale and compared the carrying value of those assets
to their estimated fair value, which is based on their estimated selling price. This resulted in a $ 1 million goodwill
impairment for 2024. The following summarizes software and other intangible assets: December 31, 2023Deeember
2024December 31, 2622-2023 (in millions) Weighted Average Amortization PeriodGross Carrying AmountAccumulated
Amemf&ﬁeﬁNe’eG&ﬁymg—AmornzatlonImpalrment LossNetCarrying AmountGross Carrying AmountAccumulated
AmortizationNet Carrying AmountAmortizable intangibles: Seftware3-Softwared years356-- years423 (303) — 120 350 (255)
95 278213y-65-Customer relationshipsé-relationships3 years45-years45 (20) (24) 149 (18) 31 435+93)42-Developed
technology6 years65 (30) — 35 65 (19) 46 65+49)-56-Total $ 533 $(353) $ (24) $ 156 $ 464 § (292) $ 172 $478-$3+5-51+63
Amortization of intangible assets during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and2624+-was $ 68 million, $ 63
million ;-and $ 54 million , and-$-50-millienrespectively. We evaluate the remaining useful life of intangible assets annually to
determine whether events and circumstances warrant a revision to the estimated remaining useful life. In During-the-year-ended
Deeember3+-2621+-2024 , in connection with our restructuring discussed in Note 16 , we recognized an impairment charge
of $ 24 million related to customer relationships assets, which was classified in G & A in our Consolidated statement of
income and comprehensive income. This impairment charge was determined using o $7F-mithonimpairment-ofa-eustomer
relationship-intangible-due-discounted cash flows model and Level 3 fair value inputs related to the higherthan-cxpected

attrition rate of the cohort of clients acquired in previous business combinations . There were no impairment charges
recognized for the years ended December 31, 2023 , and 2022. FRINEFF+TRINET79 2623-2024 FORM 10- K The following
table summarizes our capitalized internally developed software costs and related depreciation expense. Year Ended December
31, (in millions) 20232622262 Capitatized—--- 202420232022 Capitalized internally developed software eests69-costs78 69 48
33-Depreciation expense for capitalized internally developed software eests42-costs48 42 35 33-Expense related to intangibles
amortization in future periods as of December 31, 2623-2024 is expected to be as follows: Year ending December 31: Amount
(in millions) 2624-2025 $ 54 59-202546202631+202641 262723-202728 26287202813 2629-202910 2030 and thereafter3
thereafterd Total $ +69-150 NOTE 6. ACCRUED WORKERS' COMPENSATION COSTS The following table summarizes
the accrued workers’ compensation cost activity for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ard-2024+: Year
Ended December 31, (1n mllhom) %92—3%922%92—1—"1366&1»——— 202420232022T0tal accmed costs, beglnnlng ef—ye&r—$—1—8-9—$—1—98—$

W&Wﬁ%&%@%ﬁmﬁe&ﬁ—eﬁdﬂf year $ 175 $ 189 $ 198 IncurredCurrent year54 66 68
Prior years (26) (36) (32) Total incurred28 30 36 PaidCurrent year (9) (10) (10) Prior years (36) (34) (35) Total paid (45)
(44) (45) Total accrued costs, end of year $ 158 $ 175 $ 189 The following tables summarize workers' compensation liabilities
on the consolidated balance sheets: (in millions) December 31, 2023Deeember-2024December 3 |, 2022Total-2023Total
accrued costs, end of year $ 158 $ 175 $489-Collateral paid to carriers and offset against accrued costs ( 4) (5 3HF) Total
accrued costs, net of carrier collateral offset § 154 $ 170 $182-Payable in less than 1 year (net of collateral paid to carriers of $
| and-$2-as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022;respeetively-) § 50-44 54Payable-50Payable in more than 1 year (net of
collateral paid to carriers of $ 3 and $ 4 and-$-5-as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard2022-, respectively) 110 120 +28-Total
accrued costs, net of carrier collateral offset $ 154 $ 170 $382-FRINEF782623— TRINETS802024 FORM 10- K Incurred
claims related to prior years represent changes in estimates for ultimate losses on workers' compensation claims. For the years
ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2824-, the favorable development is due to lower than expected reported claim
frequency and severity for the more recent years. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, we had $ 26 million and $ 32
mittenand-$43-million of collateral held by insurance carriers of which $ 4 million and $ 5 mienand-$Fmillion,
respectively, was offset against accrued workers' compensation costs as the agreements permit and are net settled of insurance
obligations against collateral held. NOTE 7. LEASES Our leasing activities predominantly consist of leasing office space that
we occupy, which we have classified as operating leases. Our leases are comprised of fixed payments with remaining lease
terms of 1 to 6-5 years. As of December 31, 2823-2024 , we have not included any options to extend or cancel in the calculation
of our lease liability or ROU asset. We do not have any significant residual value guarantees or restrictive covenants in our
leases. In 2024, the Company executed an operating lease agreement to lease new office space in Hyderabad, India. The
lease commenced in the third quarter of 2024 and expires in 2029. We recognized operating lease expense of $ 15 million, $
11 millionyand $ 15 mitherand-$43-million for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and202+, respectively.



For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 aad2022-, we recognized $ 5 million and $ 6 mithenand-$26-million,
respectively, of lease impairment due to the closing of several offices. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, the
weighted average remaining lease term on our operating leases was 3. 8 years aﬂd—4—4—yeafs—fes-peeﬁve1—y— Future minimum
lease payments as of December 31, 2023-2024 were as follows: (in millions) December 31, 26232024-20242025 $ 14 202610 15
%925—1—3—292—&‘3—292—7—7—292—85—292-9—20279 20288 20292 2030 and thereafter — Total future minimum lease payments $ 48-43
Less: imputed interest (4) Total operating lease liabilities $ 44-39 Current pertterrt4-portion13 Non- current pertien36
portion26 TRENEF792623-TRINET812024 FORM 10- K NOTE 8. LONG- TERM DEBT AND REVOLVING CREDIT
AGREEMENT BORROWINGS The following table summarizes our long- term debt and revolving credit agreement
borrowings as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622- (Dollars in millions) Annual contractual interest rateEffective interest
ratePrincipal amountDeferred issuance costsLess: current portionLong- term debt, noncurrentDecember 31, 2023Deeember
2024December 3 1, 26222624-20232021 Revolver6-Revolvers . 58-67 % 76 . 6742 % $2060-90 § — $ (409-75)$15591 &
—2029 Notes3. 50 % 3. 67 % $ 500 $ (3) § — $ 497 $ 496-497 2031 Notes7. 13 % 7.30 % $ 400 $ (4) $ — $ 396 $ —396 In
March 2023, as a precaution to ensure we maintained liquidity during the uncertainty of the banking crisis that followed the
failure of Silicon Valley Bank, we drew down the available $ 495 million of capacity under our 2021 Revolver. As concerns
about market liquidity subsided, we repaid $ 200 million in March and the remaining $ 295 million in April. In September of
2023, we drew down $ 200 million of this revolver to partially fund our third quarter of 2023 share repurchases . In 2024, we
repaid $ 110 million of the outstanding balance . In February 2021, we issued $ 500 million aggregate principal of 3. 50 %
senior unsecured notes maturing in March 2029 (our 2029 Notes). In August 2023, we issued $ 400 million aggregate principal
of 7. 125 % senior unsecured notes maturing in August 2031 (our 2031 Notes). Interest payments on the 2031 Notes are due
semi- annually in arrears on February 15 and August 15, beginning on February 15, 2024. We used the net proceeds to fund an
equity tender offer and a private share repurchase, each of which were executed in the third quarter of 2023 (including the
related fees and expenses). We may voluntarily redeem all or a part of the 2031 Notes on or after August 15, 2026, on any one or
more occasions, at the redemption prices set forth in the indenture governing the 2031 Notes, plus, in each case, accrued and
unpaid interest thereon, if any, to, but excluding, the applicable redemption date. In addition, at any time prior to August 15,
2026, we may on any one or more occasions redeem up to 40 % of the aggregate principal amount of the 2031 Notes
outstanding under the indenture governing the 2031 Notes with the net cash proceeds of one or more equity offerings at a
redemption price equal to 107. 125 % of the principal amount of the 2031 Notes then outstanding, plus accrued and unpaid
interest thereon, if any, to, but excluding the applicable redemption date. At any time prior to August 15, 2026, we may also
redeem all or a part of the 2031 Notes at a redemption price equal to 100 % of the principal amount of the 2031 Notes redeemed
plus a “ make- whole ” premium as of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to, but excluding, the applicable redemption date.
In February 2021, concurrently with the closing of the 2029 Notes offering, we entered into a new $ 500 million revolving
facility (our 2021 Revolver) under a new credit agreement (our 2021 Credit Agreement) and our 2018 Credit Agreement was
terminated. Letters of credit issued pursuant to the revolving facility reduce the amount available for borrowing under the 2021
Revolver. In August 2023, concurrently with the issuance of the 2031 Notes, we amended certain provisions of our credit
agreement, dated February 26, 2021, as amended, to, among other things (1) increasing the aggregate capacity under our 2021
Revolver from $ 500 million to $ 700 million and (2) extending the maturity date of our 2021 Revolver to August 16, 2028. The
annual interest rate for borrowings under our 2021 Revolver was previously calculated based on an applicable LIBOR tenor of
our choosing, plus a margin of 1. 25 % to 2. 00 %, or, at our option, the alternative base rate (ABR), plus a margin of 0. 25 % to
1. 00 %. In the second quarter of 2023, we replaced the interest rate based on LIBOR and related LIBOR- based mechanics with
an interest rate based on the forward- looking Secured Overnight Financing Rate (Term SOFR). Term SOFR loans will be
charged interest at the Term SOFR rate (subject to a 0. 00 % floor), plus a margin between 1. 25 % and 2. 00 %, depending on
the Company’ s total net leverage ratio, plus a credit adjustment spread of 10 basis points for all tenors (such Term SOFR rate
plus the credit adjustment spread, the" Adjusted Term SOFR Rate"). The applicable Term SOFR or ABR margin is based on our
Total Leverage Ratio, as defined in the 2021 Credit Agreement. The ABR is the highest of (a) the applicable Federal Reserve
Bank of New York rate in effect on such day (which rate is the greater of the Federal funds Effective Rate in effect on such day
and the Overnight Bank Funding Rate in effect on such day), as defined in our 2021 Credit Agreement plus 0. 50 % (b) the
prime rate in effect on such day, and (c) the Adjusted Term SOFR Rate for a one month interest period, as published by two U.
S. Government Securities Business Days prior to such day daily plus 1. 00 %. The interest rate TRENEF862023
TRINET822024 FORM 10- K for 2623-2024 borrowings under our 2021 Revolver was 5. 669 %- 6. 398 582-%—8—125%. As
of December 31, 2623-2024 , we had remaining capacity of $ 494-606 million under our 2021 Revolver. In the event TriNet
Group, Inc. receives a Corporate Issuer Credit Rating that is one level below investment grade rating or higher from at least two
Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations, then rating based pricing applies and, for so long as rating- based
pricing applies, irrespective of the Total Leverage Ratio, the Term SOFR margin will be 1. 125 % and the ABR margin will be
0. 125 %. The 2021 Credit Agreement includes negative covenants that limit our ability to incur indebtedness and liens, sell
assets and make restricted payments, including dividends and investments, subject to certain exceptions. In addition, the 2021
Credit Agreement also contains other customary affirmative and negative covenants and customary events of default. The 2021
Credit Agreement also contains a financial covenant that requires the Company to maintain certain maximum total net leverage
ratios. We were in compliance with all financial covenants under the 2021 Credit Agreement, 2029 Notes and 2031 Notes at
December 31, 2623-2024 . NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES Contingencies Oa-September29,2026;a




become 1nvolved in various htlgatlon matters, legal proceedmg% regulatory lnvestlgatlons and claims arising in the ordinary
course of our business, including disputes with our clients or various class action, collective action, representative action, and
other proceedings arising from the nature of our co- employment relationship with our clients and WSEs in which we are named
as a defendant. In addition, due to the nature of our co- employment relationship with our clients and WSEs, we could be subject
to liability for federal and state law violations, even if we do not participate in such violations. While our agreements with our
clients contain indemnification provisions related to the conduct of our clients, we may not be able to avail ourselves of such
provisions in every instance. We have accrued our current best estimates of probable losses with respect to these matters, which
are individually and in aggregate immaterial to our consolidated financial statements. While the outcome of the matters
described above cannot be predicted with certainty, management currently does not believe that any such claims or proceedings
will have a materially adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows. However, the
unfavorable resolution of any particular matter or our reassessment of our exposure for any of the above matters based on
additional information obtained in the future could have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows. NOTE 10. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION Equity Based Incentive Plans Our 2019 Equity
Incentive Plan and as amended and restated (the 2019 Plan), approved in May 2019, provides for the grant of stock awards,
including stock options, RSUs, RSAs, and other stock awards. There were approximately 5 million shares available for grant
under the 2019 Plan as of December 31, 2623-2024 . The 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2009 Plan), was replaced by the 2019
Plan, except that any outstandmg awards granted under the 2009 Plan remaln in effect pur%uant to thelr terms. T—R—I—N-E—’PS—I%GQ—Z»-

exeretsed4-+-1-Restricted Stock Unlts (RSU% Tlme based RSU% generally vest over a four— year term. Pelformance based
RSUs are subject to vesting requirements and are earned, in part, based on certain financial performance metrics as defined in
the grant notice. Actual number of shares earned may range from 0 % to 200 % of the target award. Performance- based awards
granted in 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2824-are earned based on a single- year performance period subject to subsequent multi-
year time- based vesting with 50 % of the shares earned vesting in one year after the performance period and the remaining
shares in the year after. RSUs are generally forfeited if the participant terminates service prior to vesting. TRINET832024
FORM 10- K The following tables summarize RSU activity for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 : Total Numberof
RSUsWeighted- AverageGrant DateFair ValueNonvested at December 31, 2022420231 , 498-229 , 564202 $ 80. #5-88
Granted769-GrantedS91 , 286-78-514 121 . 27-65 Vested (6—1—7—93—79—7-6—25—625 117) 86. 72 Forfelted (12695 , 708)-82-58
598 ) 94. 66 Nonvested at December 31, 2023420241 , 229-100 , 262-001 $ 86-97 . 88-21 Year Ended December 31, Additional
Disclosures for equity- based plans %92—3%92%%92—1—?6&1-1»——— 202420232022Total grant date fair value of shares granted (in
millions) $ 72 $ 60 $ 85 $4F-Total grant date fair value of shares vested (in millions) $ 54 $ 47 $ 42 $34-Shares withheld to
settle payroll tax liabilities related to vesting of shares held by employees243-employees216 , 523 213 , 569 204, 191 267663
FRINEF822623-FORMH0-IK-Performance- based RSUs Total Number SharesWeighted- AverageGrant DateFair
ValueNonvested at December 31, 2622202-2023223 , 586-011 $ $6-81 . 82-08 Grantedt77-Granted138 , 66779-882 124 . 65
48 Vested (456-133 , 642-620 ) 86-81 . 22-98 Forfeited (48, 366) 97. 18 Nonvested at December 31, 2023223-2024179 , 6++
907 $ 84106 . 88-50 Yecar Ended December 31, Additional Disclosures for equity- based plans 202320222024 Fetal-—---
202420232022Total grant date fair value of shares granted (in millions) (1) $ 17 $ 14 $ 20 $36-Total grant date fair value of
shares vested (in millions) $ 11 $ 14 $ 17 $8-Shares withheld to settle payroll tax liabilities related to vesting of shares held by
employees74-employees64 , 290 74 , 923 119, 901 74-787-(1) Amount includes fair value of finalized additional grant related to
the most recently ended performance period. Employee Stock Purchase Plan Our 2014 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP)
offers eligible employees an option to purchase shares of our common stock through payroll deductions. The purchase price is
equal to the lesser of 85 % of the fair market value of our common stock on the offering date or 85 % of the fair market value of
our common stock on the applicable purchase date. Offering periods are approximately six months in duration and will end on
or about May 15 and November 15 of each year. The plan is considered to be a compensatory plan. As of December 31, 2023
2024 , approximately 5 million shares were reserved for future issuances under the ESPP. In applying the Black Scholes option
valuation model for the ESPP options, we use the following assumptions: TRINET842024 FORM 10- K Year Ended
December 31, (in millions) 202320222024 Expeeted-—--- 202420232022Expected Term (in Years) 0. 50. 50. 5Expected
Volatiity29-Volatility28 - 37 % 29 - 35 % 21- 39 % 24=359%Risk- Free Interest Rate5-Rate4 . 4-5.4 % 5 . 3-5.49%0.7-4.5
% 84—0—"F%Expected Dividend ¥4eldd-Yield1 % 0 % 0 % Shares Issued under ESPPHFS-ESPP148, 157 175 , 446 158, 134
+36;-86+-Stock based compensation expense is measured based on the fair value of the stock award on the grant date and
recognized over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the stock award. Stock based compensation
expense and other disclosures for stock based awards made to our employees pursuant to the equity plans were as follows: Year



Ended December 31, (in millions) 202320222024 Cest---- 202420232022Cost of providing services $ 16 $ 14 $ 13 $42-Sales
and marketing&-marketingl2 8 7 6-General and administrative33-administrative31 33 38 29-Systems development and
programming eests4-costs6 4 34 Total stock based compensation expense $ 65 $ 59 $ 62 $50-Total stock based compensation
capitalized $ 3 $ +3 $ 1 Income tax benefit related to stock based compensation expense $ 14 $ 13 § 13 $30-Tax benefit
realized $ 15 $ 19 § 14 $F6-FRINEFE32023 FORMIO-IK-The table below summarizes unrecognized compensation expense
for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 associated with the following: Amount (in millions) Weighted- Average Period (in
Years) Nonvested time based RSUs $ 92-96 2. 4Nenvested-31Nonvested performance based RSHsH9-RSUs3 1. 66-67 NOTE
11. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY The following table shows the beginning and ending balances of our issued and outstanding
common stock for the year-years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;and2624— Year EndedDecember 31,
202320222624-Shares—--- 202420232022Shares issued and outstanding, beginning batanee66-balance50 , 664, 471 60 , 555,
661 65, 968, 224 66;456;-663-Issuance of common stock from vested restricted stock waits7#4-units758 , 737 774 , 579 841,
861 F48;:88+-Issuance of common stock from exercise of stock eptienst82-—- options8, 208 182 , 067 116, 592 F3;H8-[ssuance
of common stock for employee stock purchase ptant#5-planl48, 157 175 , 446 158, 134 436;86+[ssuance of common stock
for the acquisition of Zenefits — — 193, 221 —Repurchase of common stock ( 1, 771, 254) ( 10, 734, 790) (6, 398, 279 +5
+6+5-909-) Awards effectively repurchased for required employee withholding taxes ( 280, 813) ( 288, 492) (324, 092 H285;356
) Shares issued and outstanding, ending balaree56-balance49 , 527, 506 50 , 664, 471 60, 555, 661 65;968;224
TRINETS852024 FORM 10- K Stock Repurchases In February 2020, our board of directors authorized a $ 300 million
incremental increase to our ongoing stock repurchase program. In February 2022 and November 2022, our board of directors
authorized a further $ 300 million and $ 200 million, respectively, incremental increase to this stock repurchase program. In
February 2023 and July 2023, our board of directors authorized a further $ 300 million and $ 1 billion, respectively, incremental
increase to this stock repurchase program. This repurchase authorization has no expiration. On March 17, 2022, we completed a
tender offer through which we repurchased 3, 653, 690 shares of common stock at a price of $ 86. 50 per share, for total
consideration of approximately $ 319 million, which includes costs directly attributable to the purchase. On December 6, 2022.
we completed a second tender offer and purchased 1, 515, 258 shares of common stock at a price of $ 72. 00 per share, for total
consideration of approximately $ 111 million, which includes costs directly attributable to the purchase. In August 2023, we
completed a tender offer through which we repurchased 5, 981, 308 shares of common stock at a price of $ 107. 00 per share,
for total consideration of approximately $ 640 million. In September 2023, we repurchased 3, 364, 486 shares of common stock
at a price of $ 107. 00 per share, for total consideration of approximately $ 360 million, through a purchase agreement with our
largest stockholder, Atairos Group, Inc. Atairos Group, Inc. agreed to proportionally sell additional shares so as to continue to
beneficially own approximately 36 % of the outstanding Shares immediately following the completion of the Closing. We retire
shares in the period they are acquired and account for the payment as a reduction to stockholders' equity (retained deficit).
FRINEF842623-FORM10-I-The following table summarizes the share repurchases under this program for the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023 7and 2022 and202+: Year EndedDecember 31, 202320222024 Fotal—--- 202420232022 Total cost
(in millions) $ 182 $ 1, 112 $ 519 $94-Total sharest8- sharesl, 771,254 10 , 734, 790 6, 398, 279 1, 365909-Average price
per share $ 102. 84 $ 103. 59 § 81. 07 $8++43-As of December 31, 2023-2024 , $ 433-251 million remains available for
repurchase under all authorizations approved by the board of directors. Pividends-In February 2024, our board of directors
authorized a dividend of $ 0. 25 per share for an aggregate amount of approximately $ 13 million ¢e-, which was paid in April
2024. In June 2024, our board of directors authorized a dividend of $ 0. 25 per share for an aggregate amount of
approximately $ 12 million, which was paid in July 2024. In September 2024, our board of directors authorized a
dividend of $ 0. 25 per share for an aggregate amount of approximately $ 12 million, which was paid in October 2024. In
December 2024, our board of directors authorized a dividend of $ 0. 25 per share for an aggregate amount of $ 12
million, which will be paid in the seeend-first quarter of 2024-2025 . FRINEF852623-TRINET862024 FORM 10- K NOTE
12. INCOME TAXES Provision for Income Taxes We are subject to tax in U. S. federal and various state and local
jurisdictions, as well as Canada and India. We are open to federal and significant state income tax examinations for tax year
2648-2019 and subsequent years. The provision for income taxes consists of the following: Year Ended December 31, (in
millions) 202320222024 Current—-- 202420232022Current : Federal $50 $ 96 $ 112 $-86-State24— Stated 24 36 28-Fereign?
—+Fotal-Currentd 2214815 Deferred-FederaH-(HH-State3(6)3)-Foreign — 2 — Total Current54 122 148 Deferred:
Federal (2) 1 (17) Statel 3 (6) Foreign — — 2 Total Peferred4— Deferred (1) 4 (21) d2)-Total $53 $ 126 $ 127 $4083-The
U. S. federal statutory income tax rate reconciled to our effective tax rate is as follows: Year Ended December 31,
262320222624-202420232022 (in millions, except percent) Pre- Tax IncomeTax Expense / (Benefit) Percent of Pre- Tax
Income (Loss) Pre- Tax IncomeTax Expense / (Benefit) Percent of Pre- Tax Income (Loss) Pre- Tax IncomeTax Expense /
(Benefit) Percent of Pre- Tax Income (Loss) $ 226 $ 501 $ 482 $444-U. S. federal statutory tax rate $48 21 % $ 10521 % $

101 21 % $9324%-State income taxes, net of federal benefit34-benefitl4 6 34 7 34 7 32-F-Tax rate ehanget—- change — — 1
— — — {B—Nondeductible meals, entertainment and penalties2 12 — 3 1 2—Stock based eempensation-compensation3 2
(2) — 3 1 €&y—Uncertain tax pesttions-positionsl — — — — - Tax credits (7) (3) (6) (1) (8 HDF) (2) State and tax

return to provision adjustments ( 8) (4) (11) (2) (9) (2) H)2Other3— Other — — 3 — 3 —HH-Total $5323 % $ 126 25
% $ 127 26 % $H08323-%-Our effective income tax rate decreased by +2 % to 23 % in 2024 from 25 % in 2023 frem26- %1
2022~ The decrease in the rate was primarily due-attributable to an increase in tax benefits related to excludable income for
state tax purposeq and an—tax credlts, offset by a tnefease-decrease in tax beneﬁtq for fe}ated-te-qtock —based compenqanon -

fep&fehases—made—a—ffer—Beeeﬁ%ber%H@Q% Global tax development% from the Organlzatlon for Economlc Cooperatlon and

Development proposes implementation of a global minimum tax under the Pillar Two model rules. Management has determined
this development applicable to multinational businesses does not have a material impact to our business, cash flows, or financial




results. FRINEF862023-TRINET872024 FORM 10- K Deferred Income Taxes Significant components of our deferred tax
assets and liabilities are as follows: Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 20232022Deferred---- 20242023Deferred tax
assets: Net operating losses (federal and state) $ 5 § 6 $F-Accrued expensesiS-expenses15 +7-18 Accrued workers'
compensation costs9 89 Recovery eredit2— credit 26— 2 Operating lease habtitiesH-liabilities9 +4-11 Stock based
compensation2 3-2 Tax benefits relating to uncertain positions1 1 Tax credits (federal, state and foreign) #8 7 Section 174
Capitalized R & D18 D24 21 +3-Other2-Other3 3Fotal79-2Total70 93-79 Valuation allowance (8) (8) Total deferred tax
assetsFH-assets62 §5-71 Deferred tax liabilities: Depreciation and amortization ( 35) (48 3H54-) Prepaid commission expenses (
28) (26 3H24-) Operating lease right- of- use assets (5) (+6-5 ) Total deferred tax liabilities ( 68) ( 79 388-) Net deferred tax
liabilities $ ( 6) $ (8 ¥$43-) As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622- we have federal net operating loss of $ 1 million and
-$—2—rn-1-1-l-teﬂ—respeet-we}y—whlch can be carried forward indefinitely. We have capltal loss carryforwards of $ 3 million which
will expire in 2027. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, we have various gross state net operatlng loss carryforwards
of $ 82 million and $ 91 million ard-$-94-mitken, respectively, most of which, if unused, will expire in years 2624-2025
through 2043-2044 . As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, we have state tax credit carryforwards (net of federal
benefit) of $ 5 million that will begin expiring in 2026. In addition, Canada tax credit carryforwards of $ 2 million will begin
expiring in 2037. FRINEF872023-FORMI6-K-Valuation Allowance We have recorded a valuation allowance to reflect the
estimated amount of deferred tax assets that may not be realized, related to state tax credits, state net operating loss and capital
loss carryforwards. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of the valuation allowance is presented in the table
below: Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 202326222024+ Valuation—--- 202420232022Valuation allowance at January 1 $
8 $5-8 $ 5 Charged to net income — — 3 —Valuation allowance at December 318 8 5-8 TRINET882024 FORM 10- K
Uncertain Tax Positions A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits (excluding interest
and penalties) related to uncertain income tax provisions, which would affect the effective tax rate if recognized, is presented in
the table below: Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 26232622262+ dnreeognized—--- 202420232022Unrecognized tax
benefits at January 1 $ 7 $ 7 $ 87 Additions for tax positions of prier periodsl1 — — Additions for tax positions of current
period2 2 42 Reductions for tax positions of prior period: Lapse of applicable statute of limitations (2) (2) ( 2 H-Adyastments-to
tax-posttions——-) Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31 $ 78 $ 7§ 7 As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-,
the total amount of gross interest and penalties accrued were immaterial. The unrecognized tax benefit, including accrued
interest and penalties, is included in other non- current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. It is reasonably possible the
amount of the unrecognized benefit could increase or decrease within the next twelve months, which would have an impact on
net income. FRINEF882023-FORMA0-I-NOTE 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE Basic EPS is computed based on the weighted
average shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed based on those shares used in the
basic EPS computation, plus potentially dilutive shares issuable under our equity- based compensation plans using the treasury
stock method. Shares that are potentially anti- dilutive are excluded. The following table presents the computation of our basic
and diluted EPS attributable to our common stock: Year Ended December 31, (in millions, except per share data)
202320222021 Net-202420232022Net income $ 173 $ 375 $ 355 $338-Weighted average shares of common stock
ottstandingS7-outstanding50 57 63 66-Basic EPS $3.478$6. 61 $ 5. 66 $5—43-Net income $ 173 $ 375 $ 355 $338Weighted
average shares of common stock eutstandingS7-outstandingS0 57 63 66-Dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock
units — 4— 1 Weighted average shares of common stock eutstanding57-outstanding50 57 64 67Diluted EPS $3.43$ 6. 56 §
5. 61 $5-067-Common stock equivalents excluded from income perdiluted share because of their anti- dilutive effect] 12+
NOTE 14. 401 (k) PLAN The Company maintains a defined contribution 401 (k) plan for the benefit of corporate employees.
Under our 401 (k) plan, eligible employees may elect to contribute based on their eligible compensation. The Company matches
a portion of employee contributions, which amounted to $ 17 million, $ 17 million, and $ 14 millien;and-$35-million for the
years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;-ard-2624, respectively. We also maintain multiple employer defined
contribution plans, which cover WSEs for client companies electing to participate in the plan and for their internal staff
employees. We contribute, on behalf of each participating client, varying amounts based on the clients’ policies and serviced
employee elections. TRINET892024 FORM 10- K NOTE 15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS We have service
agreements with certain stockholders that we process their employees' payrolls and payroll taxes. From time to time, we also
enter into sales and purchases agreements with various companies that have a relationship with our executive officers or
members of our board of directors. The relationships are typically equity investment firm clients on which a board member
serves in an executive role, an equity investment by those firms in a client / vendor company, or other clients / vendors on which
our executive officer or board member serves as a member of the client / vendor company' s board of directors. We have
received $ 13 million, $ 12 million, and $ 16 miienand-$34-million in total revenues from such related parties during the
years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2024-, respectively. We have also entered into various software license
agreements with software service providers who have board members in common with us. We paid the software service
providers § 5 million, $ 3 milten; $2-million, and $ 2 million during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and
2024, for services we received, respectively. FRINEF892623- TRINET902024 FORM 10- K NOTE 16. ACQUISHHONSOn
February1+5-RESTRUCTURING During the fourth quarter of 2622-2024 , we completed a detailed review of our
strategy and made several decisions that will narrow and intensify our focus on our U. S. PEO business. This will
include winding down the software- only HRIS product as well as other immaterial products not directly related to our
U. S. PEO business. In place of our software- only HRIS product, we will focus our ASO services to include both the
software component, but also a significant service component similar to the types of services we provide to PEO clients.
In conjunction with this adjustment to our product offerings, we have implemented changes to our operating expense
structure, 1nclud1ng our stafﬁng and ofﬁce footprlnt As part of the restructurlng 1n1tlat1ves the Company mcurred




e%stoeleHe}def&e-ﬁtﬁwested—Zemﬁtﬁes&wtedﬁeekreeeﬂfed—thetﬁ—— the pre-—rata—followmg table These expenses s-hare—
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ca i esting—Thisa S J&Ae*peﬂse—oveﬁhe—l-&ﬁeﬂt-h—seﬁﬂee—peﬂod-mour

Consohdated statement of income and comprehenswe income . Year Aequisition—related-eosts-arereeorded-as-G-&A
expense-for-the-yearsended-Ended December 31, 2023-and2622-and-were-notmaterial—TRINET962023-FORM16-(in

millions) 2024Cash restructuring costs: Severance costs $ 14 Professional fees3 Total cash restructuring costs17 Non - k&
cash restructuring costs: Intangible asset and goodwill impairments25 Fixed asset and ROU impairments7 Total non-
cash restructuring costs32 Total restructuring costs $ 49 Severance costs include payments to colleagues, estimated
reimbursements for COBRA payments and outplacement services. Thc ollm\ ing table is a summary summaﬂzes—the—faﬁ
watie-of changes then priee:
costs mcluded within mith
accounts reeetvab Op o 3
aeqmred—l%é—]:tabﬁt&es—ﬁsstﬂﬁedﬁeeeﬂﬂts—mmblc and olhu current llabllmcx -$—9—Beferred—reveﬂue+3—9peratrng—}e&se—and
accrued wages: Year Ended December 31 (in mllhons) 2024Accounts payable and other current-l-r&bﬂ-rﬁes—lé— hab1ht1es1
Accrued wages14 Balance B Ne 3
Measuremeﬂt—peﬂed—adjﬁstments—éi—Geed-w%dl Dcccmbu 71 %922—2024 $ 15 We-l-%é—Geodwa-l—l—repfesen-ts—ftrtttre-eeeﬂem-te
benefits-we-cxpect to achieve-make payments for these liabilities during 2025. We expect the restructuring efforts to
continue through 2026 and may recognize additional expenses as a-result-ofthe-they are incurred. NOTE 17. SEGMENT
INFORMATION We operate in one reportable segment. Our chief operating decision maker for segment reporting
purposes is our CEQO, who uses the profitability and significant expense detail to allocate resources and assess
performance based on key functlons such as customer dcqmsmon ineludingrevente-customer service, and indirect eest
costs syne 0 models-. The restlts-primary measure of profit Zenefits-have-been-inetuded
Hrout—- or eeﬁsehdated—ﬁﬁaﬁer&l—st&temeﬁts-smee—loss that the CEO uses is net income. The significant expenses used in the
these etosing-ofprofit or loss reports align with the aequisition—Pro-forma-finanetatinformation-primary functions of the

corresponding teams, with the exception of non- cash expenses such was-- as depreciation, amortization and stock based

compensation as these expenses are not necessarily indicative presented-beeause-the-effeetof the-aequisition-our ongoing

operations. In this expense reporting methodology, overhead- type expenses, such was— as facilities and technology
support for colleagues, are class1ﬁed conslstent with the prlmary functlon of the correspondmg teams and not matertat

aeqﬂ-rred-&ﬂd—l-tabrl-t&es—aﬁsttmed-at—&tetﬁ—— the prlmary fafﬁal-ue—as—e%t-he—d&te—e—ﬁ&eqtﬁsrﬁeﬁ—We—mcdsulc geedw-l-l—as—t-he
exeess-of profitability the-eash-and detail regarding steck-e e
1c slgmﬁcant expenses rev1ewed by our CEO e

peﬂed—has—eﬂded-Ended as—e-ﬁDcccmbc 3 (1n mllllons) 202420232022Profess1onal service revenues %92—3—"[—he—tota-}

$ 48-mitlion—Aequisition-765 $ 756 $ 754 Insurance service revenues4,
224 4, 166 4, 131 Interest mcome64 72 22 Total revenuesS, 053 4, 994 4, 907 Workers' compensation costs61 68 81 Health

insurance costs3, 736 3, 445 3, 382 Sales & marketing259 254 226 Client support costs184 186 192 Corporate
administration146 165 191 System support & development190 187 151 Depreciation and amortization of intangible
assets75 72 64 Stock based compensation6S 59 62 Other49 17 37 Interest expense, bank fees and other62 40 39 Income
TaxesS53 126 127 Net Incomel73 375 355 Other includes certain costs that are considered non - recurring such as
restructuring costs and transaction and integration costs rclated to acquisitions in previous eests-are-reeorded-as-G-&A

expense-for-the-ycars ended-Deeember3+,2023-and-2022-and-were-notmaterial-. Ineonneetion-with-the-aequisition;-we-issued




ﬁaﬂgl-b}e-assefs—$—1-4—'PRI-N-E5P92%9%3—TRINET922024 FORM 10- K DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURESltem
9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure. Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures We have, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief
Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2023-2024 , as
defined in Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act). Based
on the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2623-2024 , our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’ s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December
31,2023-2024 in ensuring that i. information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under
the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the Company’ s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and ii. such information is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission' s rules and forms. We
are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a- 15 (f)
and 15d- 15 (f) promulgated under the Exchange Act to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of the financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP. Due to inherent
limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended to provide absolute assurance that a misstatement of our
financial statements would be prevented or detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with
policies or procedures may deteriorate. We have performed an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2023-2024 based upon criteria set forth in Internal Control- Integrated Framework (2013)
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, we determined
that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2823-2024 . Deloitte & Touche LLP, our
independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an audit report on the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2023-2024 . This audit report appears in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data, of this Form 10- K. Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting There were no changes in our
internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the three months ended December 31, 2023-2024 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. Item 9B. Other
Information. On November 6-26 , 2623-2024 , Paul Chamberlain, a member of the Board of Directors, adopted a new written
trading plan intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5- 1 (¢) under the Exchange Act (the
Chamberlain Plan ). The first possible trade date under the Chamberlain Plan is February 26-25 , 2624-2025 , and the end date
of the Chamberlain Plan is November +8-26 , 2624-2025 (subject to customary exceptions), for a duration of a—ppfe*rmafe}y—
year. The aggregate number of shares currently expected to be sold pursuant to the Chamberlain Plan is pfeﬂdes—feﬁ-he
sale-ofupto-2, 400845—sh&fes—ef—t-he—€eﬂapaﬁy—s—eeﬁnﬁeﬂ—steele FRINETF932623-TRINET932024 FORM 10- K Item 9C.
Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections. Not applicable. FRINEF942623-TRINET942024 FORM
10- K MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERSPART III Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and
Corporate Governance. Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Our board of directors has adopted a Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics (the" Code') that applies to all of our employees, executive officers and directors, including those
executive officers responsible for financial reporting. Our Code is available on our website: investor. trinet. com /
investor- relations. We intend to disclose any amendments to this Code or any waivers of its requirements on our website
to the extent permitted or required by applicable SEC rules or stock exchange requirements. Other information required
by this item is incorporated by reference to TriNet Group Inc.” s Proxy Statement for its 2025 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the year ended December 31, 2024. Item 11.
Executive Compensation. [nformation required by this item is incorporated by reference to TriNet Group Inc.” s Proxy
Statement for its 2624-2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of the year
ended December 31, 2623-2024 —HemH-—Exeentive-Compensation-. [tem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners
and Management and Related Stockholder Matters. Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director
Independence. Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services. FRINEF352023-TRINET952024 FORM 10- K FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SCHEDULESPART IV Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules. (a) The following documents are filed
as a part of the report: (1) The financial statements filed as part of this report are listed in the ““ Index to Financial Statements ”
under Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. (2) Financial statement schedules have been omitted, since
the required information is not applicable or is not present in amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedule, or
because the information required is included in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included in this
Form 10- K. Item 16. Form 10- K Summary. FTRINET962623-TRINET962024 FORM 10- K EXHIBITSEXHIBIT INDEX
Incorporated by Reference ExhibitNo. Description of ExhibitForm File No. Exhibit Filing FiledHerewith3. 1 Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of TriNet Group, Inc. 8- KOO1- 363733. 15/30/2023 3. 2Amended and Restated Bylaws



of TriNet Group, Inc. 8- K001- 363733.4-3-1 6 / 27-24 / 2623-2024 4. 1Registration Rights Agreement, by and between TriNet
Group, Inc. and AGI- T, L. P., dated as of February 1, 2017. 8- K001- 363734. 1 2 /2 /20174. 2Description of the Registrant’ s
Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 10- K001- 363734.22 /13 /20204.
3Indenture, dated February 26, 2021, among the Company, the guarantors listed therein and U. S. Bank National Association, as
trustee. 8- KOO1- 363734.12/26/20214. 4Indenture, dated August 16, 2023, among the Company, the guarantors listed
therein and U. S. Bank Trust company, National Association, as trustee. 8- KOO1- 363734. 18 /16 /20234. 5Form of 3. 500 %
Senior Notes due 2029 (included in exhibit 4. 3). 8- KOO1- 363734. 22 /26 /20214. 6Form of 7. 125 % Senior Notes due 2031
(included in exhibit 4. 1) 8- K0OO1- 363734. 28 / 16 / 20234. 7Credit Agreement dated as of February 26, 2021, among TriNet
USA, Inc. as Holdings, the lenders from time- to- time party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N. A., as Administrative Agent.
8- K001-3637310. 12 /26 /20214. 8Third Amendment, dated as of May 22, 2023, to the 2021 Credit Agreement among the
Borrower, the Company, the other loan parties thereto, the lenders party thereto and the Administrative Agent. 8- K001-
363734.15/26/20234. 9Fourth Amendment, dated as of August 16, 2023, to the 2021 Credit Agreement among the Borrower,
the Company, the other loan parties thereto, the lenders party thereto and the Administrative Agent. 8- K001- 3637310. 18/16/
20234. 10First Supplemental Indenture, dated August 16, 2023, to Indenture dated February 26, 2021, among the guarantors
listed therein and U. S. Bank Trust Company, National Association as trustee10- Q001- 363734. 310 /25 /202310. 1 *
Amended and Restated 2009 Equity Incentive Plan. S- 1/ A333-19246510. 33 / 14 /201410. 2 * Form of Option Agreement
and Option Grant Notice under the Amended and Restated 2009 Equity Incentive Plan. S- 1/ A333-19246510.4 3 /4 /201410.
3 * Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement and Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice under the Amended and Restated
2009 Equity Incentive Plan. 10- Q001- 3637310. 1 4 /30 /2018 FRENEF972623-TRINET972024 FORM 10- K Incorporated
by Reference ExhibitNo. Description of ExhibitForm File No. Exhibit Filing FiledHerewith10. 4 * Form of Restricted Stock
Unit Award Agreement and Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice under the Amended and Restated 2009 Equity Incentive Plan.
10- Q001-3637310.24/29/201910. 5 * TriNet Group, Inc. Amended and Restated 2019 Equity Incentive Plan. DEF-
14A001- 36373 Appendix A4 /12/202210. 6 * Form of Non- Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice and Non-
Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the TriNet Group, Inc. 2019 Equity Incentive Plan effective
as of January 15, 2020. 10- Q001- 3637310. 4 4 /28 /202010. 7 * Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice under the TriNet
Group, Inc. 2019 Equity Incentive Plan effective as of March 4, 2021. 10- Q001- 3637310. 44 /26 /202110. 8 * Form of
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TRINET1022024 FORM 10- K TRANSITION AGREEMENT THIS TRANSITION AGREEMENT (the “ Agreement )
is entered into as of June 3, 2024 (the *“ Effective Date ), by and between TriNet Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation
(together with its successors and assigns, the “ Company ”), and Alexander Warren (the “ Executive ”). RECITALS
WHEREAS, the Executive is currently serving as the Senior Vice President, Chief Revenue Officer of the Company
pursuant to the employment agreement entered into by the Company and the Executive on May 1, 2020 and as amended
on November 16, 2022 (the “ Employment Agreement ’); WHEREAS, the Executive signed a Restrictive Covenants and
Invention Disclosure Agreement with the Company dated November 15, 2022 (the “ Restrictive Covenant Agreement )
(a copy which is attached hereto as Appendix A); WHEREAS, the Executive previously was granted awards of restricted
stock units and performance stock units in each case, that are outstanding as of the date hereof (each, an “ Equity Award
) subject to the terms and conditions of the applicable Company equity plan under which the Equity Award was
granted and an award agreement memorializing the Equity Award (the plan and award agreement together, the “ Stock
Agreements ”); WHEREAS, the Executive has indicated to the Company his desire to transition from his employment
with the Company on or about September 1, 2024; WHEREAS, the Executive and the Company have agreed to provide
for an orderly transition of the Executive’ s duties and responsibilities and the Executive desires to assist the Company in
realizing such an orderly transition; WHEREAS, the Executive and the Company mutually desire that the Executive’ s
employment with the Company will end no later than September 1, 2024 (the “ Separation Date ’); WHEREAS, in
furtherance of the foregoing, the Executive and the Company have negotiated and reached an agreement with respect to
all rights, duties and obligations arising between them, including, but in no way limited to, any rights, duties and
obligations that have arisen or might arise out of, or are in any way related to the Executive’ s continued employment
with the Company and the conclusion of that employment. NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and
mutual promises recited below, the parties agree as follows: 1. Transition of Duties. During the period beginning on June
3,2024 and ending on the Separation Date (such period, the “ Transition Period ”), the Executive shall continue to serve
as the Senior Vice President, Chief Revenue Officer of the Company or, at the election of the Company, as special
advisor to the Company, in either case reporting to the Company’ s Chief Executive Officer, and the Executive shall
provide transitional assistance to the Company, including by assisting the Company in developing a transition plan,
executing such plan, being available to answer the Company’ s questions and assisting with any and all other matters
reasonably requested by the Company (the “ Transition Duties ). During the Transition Period, the Executive shall
devote his best efforts and business time and attention to the performance of the Transition Duties; provided, however,
that the Executive shall not be required to report to the Company’ s offices to perform the Transition Duties or
otherwise attend business meetings, unless requested by the Company with reasonable advance notice. Notwithstanding
anything herein to the contrary, the Company may at any time prior to the Separation Date, terminate the employment
or services of the Executive for Cause and in the event the Executive is so terminated, the Company’ s obligations to
provide any additional compensation or benefits under Sections 2 and 3 of this Agreement or otherwise shall



immediately cease, except as required by applicable law. 2. Compensation. As compensation for the Executive’ s
continuing employment and service during the Transition Period, as consideration for the Releases, the Executive’ s
agreement to the Transition Period, if applicable, and the respective terms and conditions thereof, and the other
promises of the Executive contained in this Agreement, which shall be deemed to include the Executive’ s agreement to
(i) remain employed with the Company through the Transition Date and (ii) perform the Transition Duties, the
Executive will continue to receive the Executive’ s base salary as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Date hereof
at the annualized rate of $ 550, 000 per year, less all applicable withholdings, paid in accordance with the Company’ s
standard payroll practices and procedures, continue to participate in the Company’ s retirement and health and welfare
benefit plans, perquisite programs, expense reimbursement and vacation policies available to senior executives of the
Company generally, as such plans, programs and policies may be in effect, and vest in his Equity Awards in accordance
with the Stock Agreements. 3. Separation Benefits. Provided that the Executive remains in employment with the
Company through the end of the Transition Period (and is not otherwise terminated by the Company for Cause prior to
the end of the Transition Period), and remains in compliance through the end of the Transition Period with (i) the
Company’ s Business Ethics and Code of Conduct Policy and other policies relating to conduct, as in effect from time to
time and applicable to its senior management colleagues, (ii) subject to Section 10 (a) below, all covenants to which the
Executive has agreed as part of his employment with the Company and which survive the cessation of such employment,
including, but not limited to, the restrictive covenants in the Stock Agreements, and the Restrictive Covenant Agreement
and (iii) the provisions set forth in Sections 8, 11, 12, and 13 below (the covenants described in the immediately preceding
clauses (i) through (iii) of this Section 3 are collectively referred to herein as the “ Covenants ”); provided in each case
that the Executive will not be considered non- compliant unless Executive has received written notice of such non-
compliance and, in the case of non- compliance capable of cure, at least ten (10) days to cure; and provided, that the
Executive timely signs and returns this Agreement, and delivers to the Company a general release of claims in the form
attached as Appendix B (the “ Release ) and does not revoke the Release within the seven (7)- day period following
execution of such Release, the Company will provide the Executive with the following benefits (the “ Severance Benefits
”): a. Cash Severance. The Company will make a lump sum severance payment to the Executive on the 60th day after
the Separation Date in an amount equal to $ 550, 000, which represents twelve (12) months of the Executive’ s base
salary as in effect on the Effective Date, subject to any applicable withholdings and deductions. b. COBRA Benefits.
Upon the Separation Date, if the Executive timely elects continued health insurance coverage pursuant to the
Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act, Section 4980B of the Internal Revenue Code and any state law of
similar effect (“ COBRA ”), the Company will pay the COBRA premiums for the Executive and his eligible dependents
for up to the first twelve (12) months of such coverage, or until such earlier date as (A) he or his dependents are no
longer eligible for such coverage or (B) he or his dependents become eligible for health insurance coverage from another
source; provided that, if payment of such premiums would result in excise tax or other penalties imposed on the
Company, a dollar amount equal to such premiums that the Company would have paid under this Section 3 (b) during
the applicable payment period shall be paid to the Executive, instead of such premium, as additional cash severance pay.
Any payments under this Section 3 (b) are payable in equal installments in accordance with the Company’ s payroll
practices no less frequently than semimonthly. The Executive must promptly inform the Company, in writing, if he or
his dependents become eligible for health insurance coverage from another source during this period of coverage. c.
Equity Awards. On the Separation Date, the vesting of each then- outstanding, unvested time- based Equity Award held
by the Executive will accelerate as to 100 % of any then unvested shares that would have otherwise vested during the
twelve (12)- month period following such date. For clarity, Equity Awards that contain vesting criteria based wholly or
in part on the achievement of business or individual performance criteria or milestones will not be eligible for
accelerated vesting and will be forfeited on the Separation Date. d. For purposes of this Agreement, “ Cause ” means the
occurrence of any of the following events that has a material negative impact on the business or reputation of the
Company: (i) the Executive’ s commission of any felony or any crime involving fraud, dishonesty or moral turpitude
under the laws of the United States or any state thereof; (ii) the Executive’ s attempted commission of, or participation
in, a fraud or act of dishonesty against the Companys; (iii) the Executive’ s intentional, material violation of any contract
or agreement between the Executive and the Company or of any statutory duty owed to the Company; (iv) the
Executive’ s unauthorized use or disclosure of the Company’ s confidential information or trade secrets; or (v) the
Executive’ s gross misconduct. Whether or not Cause exists with regard to the Executive shall be determined by the
Company’ s board of directors (the “ Board ”) in good faith. 4. Final Paycheck. As soon as administratively practicable
on or after the Separation Date, the Company will pay the Executive all salary accrued through the Separation Date, all
accrued and unused vacation earned through the Separation Date (if any) and any unreimbursed business expenses
incurred by the Executive in accordance with the Company policy prior to the Separation Date (the “ Accrued
Obligations ). 5. Consideration. With receipt of the Accrued Obligations above, the Executive acknowledges he will
have received all payments and benefits earned by, or owed to him in connection with his employment with the
Company, and the Executive will not be entitled to any additional compensation or benefits, except as provided below,
subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Executive acknowledges that the compensation and benefits
provided below are good and valid consideration for the Release (as defined below) and the covenants set forth below. 6.
No Additional Entitlements. The Executive understands and acknowledges that he will have no further entitlements,
other than those recited in this Agreement. The Executive hereby acknowledges that the Executive has no interest in or
claim of right to reinstatement, reemployment or employment with the Company, and the Executive forever waives any
interest in or claim of right to any future employment by the Company. 7. Executive’ s Release of the Company. In



consideration of the compensation payable to the Executive under Section 3 of this Agreement, and for other good and
valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged: a. Subject to Section 10 (a), the Executive, for himself
and for his heirs, executors, administrators, trustees and legal representatives, and their respective successors and
assigns (collectively, the “ Releasors ) hereby releases, remises, and acquits the Company and its subsidiaries and
affiliates and all of their respective past, present and future parent entities, subsidiaries, divisions, affiliates and related
business entities, any of their respective assets, employee benefit plans or funds, or past, present or future directors,
officers, fiduciaries, agents, trustees, administrators, managers, supervisors, shareholders, investors, employees, legal
representatives, agents or counsel, and their respective successors and assigns, whether acting on behalf of the Company
or its subsidiaries or affiliates or, in their individual capacities (the “ Released Party ” or “ Released Parties ), from any
and all claims, known or unknown, which the Releasors have or may have against any Released Parties arising on or
prior to the date that the Executive executes this Agreement, and any and all liability which any such Released Party
may have to the Releasors, whether denominated in claims, demands, causes of action, obligations, damages or liabilities
arising from any and all bases, including but not limited to (i) the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, Section 1981 of the Civil Rights Act of 1866, the Equal Pay Act, the Lilly
Ledbetter Fair Pay Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, the Employee Retirement Income Security
Act of 1974, (excluding claims for accrued, vested benefits under any employee benefit or pension plan of the Company,
subject to the terms and conditions of such plan and applicable law), the Uniform Trade Secrets Act, the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, the Fair Labor Standards Act, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, the Unruh Civil
Rights Act, the California Family Rights Act, and the California Labor, Government, and Business and Professions
Codes, all as amended; (ii) any and all claims arising from or relating to, as applicable, the Executive’ s service as an
officer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates and the termination or resignation of such officer positions,
or the Executive’ s employment with the Company or the termination of such employment; (iii) all claims related to the
Executive’ s compensation or benefits from the Company or the Released Parties, including salary, bonuses,
commissions, vacation pay, leave pay, expense reimbursements, severance pay, fringe benefits, stock, equity awards, or
any other ownership interests in the Company or the Released Parties; (iv) all claims for breach of contract, wrongful
termination and breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing; (v) all tort claims, including claims for
fraud, defamation, privacy rights, emotional distress, and discharge in violation of public policy and all other claims
under common law; and (vi) all federal, state and local statutory or constitutional claims, including claims for
compensation, discrimination, harassment, whistleblower protection, retaliation, attorneys’ fees, costs, disbursements, or
other claims (other than claims related to the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 or the Older Workers
Benefit Protection Act) (referred to collectively as the “ Released Claims ). b. The Executive expressly waives all rights
afforded by Section 1542 of the Civil Code of the State of California, which states as follows: “ A general release does not
extend to claims that the creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of
executing the release, and that if known by him or her would have materially affected his or her settlement with the
debtor or released party. ” The Executive understands the significance of the Executive’ s release of unknown claims and
waiver of statutory protection against a release of unknown claims. The Executive expressly assumes the risk of such
unknown and unanticipated claims and agrees that this Release applies to all Released Claims, whether known,
unknown or unanticipated. c. Notwithstanding the foregoing in this Section 7, and subject to Section 10 (a), the Released
Claims shall not apply to, or include (i) the Executive’ s rights, if any, to be covered under any applicable insurance
policy with respect to any liability the Executive incurred or might incur as an employee, officer or director of the
Company, or the Executive’ s rights, if any, to indemnification under the by- laws or articles of incorporation of the
Companys; (ii) any right the Executive may have to obtain contribution as permitted by law in the event of entry of
judgment against the Executive as a result of any act or failure to act for which the Executive, on the one hand, and
Company or any other Released Party, on the other hand, are jointly liable; or (iii) the Executive’ s right to enforce this
Agreement. 8. No Actions or Claims. Subject to Section 10 (a), the Executive represents that he has not filed any charges,
complaints, grievances, arbitrations, lawsuits, or claims against the Company, with any local, state or federal agency,
union or court from the beginning of time to the date of execution of this Agreement and that the Executive will not do so
at any time hereafter, based upon events occurring prior to the date of execution of this Agreement. In the event any
agency, union, or court ever assumes jurisdiction of any lawsuit, claim, charge, grievance, arbitration, or complaint, or
purports to bring any legal proceeding on behalf of the Executive, the Executive will ask any such agency, union, or court
to withdraw from and / or dismiss any such action, grievance, or arbitration, with prejudice. 9. Acknowledgments and
Representations. The Executive acknowledges and represents that he has not suffered any discrimination or harassment
by any of the Released Parties on account of the Executive’ s race, gender, national origin, religion, marital or registered
domestic partner status, sexual orientation, age, disability, medical condition or any other characteristic protected by
law. The Executive acknowledges and represents that he has not been denied any leave, benefits or rights to which the
Executive may have been entitled under the Family Medical Leave Act or any other federal or state law, and that the
Executive has not suffered any job- related wrongs or injuries for which the Executive might still be entitled to
compensation or relief. 10. Executive Protections; Defend Trade Secrets Act. a. The release in Section 7 does not release
claims that cannot be released as a matter of law, including (i) any right to file a civil action or complaint with, or
otherwise notify, a state agency, other public prosecutor, law enforcement agency, or any court or other governmental
entity alleging claims or a violation of rights under the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, as well as any
right to file a charge with or participate in a charge by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the
Department of Labor, or any other local, state, or federal administrative body or government agency that is authorized



to enforce or administer laws related to employment, against the Company and (ii) any right to communicate directly
with the U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission, the U. S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission, the U. S.
Department of Justice or similar agency, or to cooperate with or participate in any investigation conducted by such
agency, or (iii) otherwise to make other disclosures that are protected under the whistleblower provisions of applicable
law. However, by executing this Agreement, the Executive hereby waives the right to monetary recovery of damages
from the Company in any such proceeding brought by the Executive or on behalf of the Executive. b. Pursuant to the
Defend Trade Secrets Act of 2016, the Executive and the Company acknowledge and agree that the Executive shall not
have criminal or civil liability under any federal or state trade secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret that (i) is
made (A) in confidence to a federal, state, or local government official, either directly or indirectly, or to an attorney and
(B) solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (ii) is made in a complaint or other
document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal. In addition and without limiting the
preceding sentence, if the Executive files a lawsuit for retaliation by the Company for reporting a suspected violation of
law, the Executive may disclose the trade secret to the Executive’ s attorney and may use the trade secret information in
the court proceeding, if the Executive (X) files any document containing the trade secret under seal and (Y) does not
disclose the trade secret, except pursuant to court order. 11. Return of Property. Subject to Section 10 (a) hereof, on or
prior to the Separation Date, the Executive will return all of the Company’ s property. Such property includes, but is not
limited to, the original and any copies of any confidential information or trade secrets, keys, pass cards, building identity
cards, mobile telephones, tablet devices, laptop computers, corporate credit cards, customer lists, files, brochures,
documents or computer disks or printouts, equipment and any other item relating to the Company and its business,
provided that it would not be a violation of this Section 11 for the Executive to retain copies of publicly- filed documents.
Further, other than in the performance of the Executive’ s duties and subject to Section 10 (a) hereof, the Executive will
not take, procure, or copy any property of the Company before, on, after or in anticipation of the Separation Date. 12.
Cooperation. Subject to Section 10 (a) hereof, in consideration for the promises and payments by the Company pursuant
to this Agreement, at the request of the Company, the Executive agrees to assist and cooperate with the Company (i)
concerning reasonable requests for information about the business of the Company or its affiliates or the Executive’ s
involvement or participation therein; (ii) in connection with the defense, prosecution or investigation of any claims or
actions now in existence or which may be brought in the future against or on behalf of the Company, including any
proceeding before any arbitral, administrative, judicial, legislative, or other body or agency, including testifying in any
proceeding to the extent such claims, actions, investigations or proceedings related to services performed or required to
be performed by the Executive, pertinent knowledge possessed by the Executive, or any act or omission by the
Executive; and (iii) in connection with any investigation or review by any federal, state or local regulatory, quasi- or self-
regulatory or self- governing authority or organization (including without limitation, the SEC and FINRA) as any such
investigation or review relates to services performed or required to be performed by the Executive, pertinent knowledge
possessed by the Executive, or any act or omission by the Executive. The Executive’ s full cooperation will include, but
not be limited to, being available to meet and speak with board members, officers or employees of the Company and / or
their counsel at reasonable times and locations, executing accurate and truthful documents, appearing at the Company’ s
request at depositions, trials or other proceedings without the necessity of a subpoena, and taking such other actions as
may be reasonably requested by the Company and / or its counsel to effectuate the foregoing. In requesting such
services, the Company shall reimburse the Executive for any out- of- pocket expenses reasonably related to such requests
that are approved by the Company in advance; provided, further, that, if the incurrence of such expenses is necessary
for the Executive to comply with the terms of this Section 12, the Executive shall not be required to comply with this
Section 12 until such approval is granted. 13. Confidentiality, Intellectual Property, Non- Solicitation and Non-
Disparagement. Subject to Section 10 (a) hereof, the Company and the Executive acknowledge and agree that the
provisions of the Restrictive Covenant Agreement, and all other Covenants shall continue to apply to the Executive prior
to and after the Separation Date as if fully set forth in this Agreement. In addition, and in consideration of the
compensation described in Section 3 hereof, and the Company’ s commitments hereunder, the Company and the
Executive also agree, subject to Section 10 (a) hereof, as follows: a. Non- Solicitation. The Executive acknowledges that
the provisions of the Restrictive Covenant Agreement relating to non- solicitation of employees shall apply for a period of
twelve (12) months following the Separation Date. b. Non- Disparagement. At all times on and after the Effective Date,
the Executive will not disparage, place in a false or negative light or criticize, or make any false statements that may
damage the reputation of, orally or in writing, the business, products, policies, decisions, directors, officers or employees
of the Company to any person; provided, however, that (i) this provision shall not apply to any truthful statements made
by the Executive to the Board (or a committee or subcommittee of the Board) if such statements are provided at the
request of the Board (or a committee or subcommittee thereof) in the course of carrying out its duties and responsibilities
and (ii) that the Executive may respond accurately and fully to any question, inquiry, or request for information when
required by legal process or in response to a governmental inquiry. At all times on and after the Effective Date, the
Company will direct the members of its Board and its executive officers not to disparage, place in a false or negative
light or criticize, or make any knowingly false statements that are intended to damage the reputation of the Executive,
orally or in writing, to any person, except as required by law and provided, however, that they may respond accurately
and fully to any question, inquiry, or request for information when required by legal process or in response to a
governmental inquiry. c. Injunctive Relief. It is recognized and acknowledged by the Executive that a breach of the
covenants contained in this Section 13 will cause irreparable damage to the Company, its subsidiaries and affiliates and
their respective goodwill, the exact amount of which will be difficult or impossible to ascertain, and that the remedies at



law for any such breach will be inadequate. Accordingly, the Executive agrees that in the event of a breach of any of the
covenants contained in this Section 13, in addition to any other remedy which may be available at law or in equity, the
Company will be entitled to specific performance and injunctive relief. The Executive agrees not to raise as a defense or
objection to the request or granting of such relief that any breach of this Agreement is or would be compensable by an
award of money damages, and the Executive agrees to waive any requirements for the securing or posting of any bond in
connection with such remedy. 14. Non- Reliance. The Executive represents to the Company that in executing this
Agreement the Executive has not relied upon any representation or statement not set forth herein made by the Company
or its agents, representatives or attorneys with regard to the subject matter, basis or effect of this Agreement, or
otherwise. The Executive (i) has reviewed with his own advisors the tax and legal consequences of entering into and the
payments under this Agreement, (ii) is relying solely on such advisors and not on any statements or representations of
the Company, its agents or advisors, and (iii) understands that he (and not the Company) shall be responsible for his
own tax liability that may arise as a result of entering into and the payments under this Agreement. 15. Withholding. All
payments required to be made by the Company hereunder to the Executive during the Transition Period shall be subject
to withholding of such amounts relating to taxes as the Company may reasonably determine it should withhold pursuant
to any applicable law or regulation. 16. Section 409A Compliance. It is intended that any amounts payable under this
Agreement and the Company’ s and the Executive’ s exercise of authority or discretion hereunder shall be exempt from
or otherwise comply with the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 409A and the treasury regulations and
guidance thereunder (“ Section 409A ), in either case, so as not to subject the Executive to the payment of interest and
tax penalty which may be imposed under Section 409A. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, if, at
the Executive’ s separation from service, (i) the Executive is a specified employee as defined in Section 409A and (ii) any
of the payments or benefits provided hereunder constitute deferred compensation under Section 409A, then, and only to
the extent required by such provisions, the date of payment of such payments or benefits otherwise provided shall be
delayed for a period of six (6) months following the separation from service, and any amounts so delayed shall be paid
during the seventh (7th) month following separation from service. Any reimbursement amounts payable under this
Agreement shall be paid promptly after receipt of a properly documented request for reimbursement from the
Executive, provided no amount shall be paid later than December 31 of the year following the year during which the
reimbursable amounts were incurred by the Executive. 17. Assignability. The rights and benefits under this Agreement
are personal to the Executive and such rights and benefits shall not be subject to assignment, alienation or transfer,
except to the extent such rights and benefits are lawfully available to the estate or beneficiaries of the Executive upon
death. The Company may assign this Agreement to any parent, affiliate or subsidiary and shall require any entity which
at any time becomes a successor whether by merger, purchase, or otherwise acquires all or substantially all of the assets,
stock or business of the Company, to expressly assume this Agreement. 18. Entire Agreement. The Executive
acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement, together with the Appendices hereto constitute the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties and supersedes any prior agreements, written or oral, with respect to the subject
matter hereof, including the termination of the Executive’ s employment after the Effective Date and all amounts to
which the Executive shall be entitled, other than as specifically provided in this Agreement; provided further and for the
avoidance of doubt, that the Executive remains subject to the Company’ s Executive Compensation Clawback Policy, as
it may hereinafter be amended in accordance with its terms. The Executive acknowledges and agrees that this
Agreement supersedes the terms regarding the Executive’ s termination of employment set forth in the Employment
Agreement, including without limitation the severance benefits set forth therein. 19. Severability / Reasonable Alteration.
In the event that any part or provision of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions thereof shall nevertheless continue to be valid and enforceable as
though the invalid or unenforceable part or provision had not been included therein. Further, in the event that any part
or provision hereof shall be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to exceed the maximum time period, scope or
activity restriction that such court deems reasonable and enforceable, then the parties expressly authorize the court to
modify such part or provision so that it may be enforced to the maximum extent permitted by law. 20. No Strict
Construction. The language used in this Agreement will be deemed to be the language chosen by the Executive and the
Company to express their mutual intent, and no rule of strict construction will be applied against the Executive or the
Company. 21. Insurance. The Company presently maintains general liability insurance on an occurrence basis which
covers the professional activities of professionals of the Company. The Company will continue to provide such coverage
for the past activities of the Executive to the same extent as such coverage is provided with respect to the past activities of
other former professionals of the Company. 22. Applicable Law, Venue and Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California, without regard to conflicts of laws
principles, rules or statutes of any jurisdiction. The parties irrevocably agree that all actions to enforce an arbitrator’ s
decision pursuant to Section 24 of this Agreement may be instituted and litigated in federal, state or local courts sitting in
Santa Clara County, California and each of such parties hereby consents to the jurisdiction and venue of such court,
waives any objection based on forum non conveniens and any right to a jury trial as set forth in Section 23 of this
Agreement. 23. Waiver of Jury Trial. EACH OF THE EXECUTIVE AND THE COMPANY HEREBY WAIVES,
RELEASES AND RELINQUISHES ANY AND ALL RIGHTS HE /IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY WITH
RESPECT TO ANY ACTIONS ARISING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY AS A RESULT OR IN CONSEQUENCE OF
THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY CLAIM OR ACTION TO REMEDY ANY
BREACH OR ALLEGED BREACH HEREOF, TO ENFORCE ANY TERM HEREOF, OR IN CONNECTION WITH
ANY RIGHT, BENEFIT OR OBLIGATION ACCORDED OR IMPOSED BY THIS AGREEMENT. 24. Arbitration.



To provide a mechanism for rapid and economical dispute resolution, the Executive and the Company agree that any
and all disputes, claims, or causes of action, in law or equity, arising from or relating to this Agreement (including the
Release) or its enforcement, performance, breach, or interpretation, or arising from or relating to the Executive’ s
employment with the Company or the termination of the Executive’ s employment with the Company, will be resolved, to
the fullest extent permitted by law, by final, binding, and confidential arbitration held in Santa Clara County, California
and conducted by JAMS, Inc. (“ JAMS ”), under its then applicable JAMS Employment Arbitration Rules and
Procedures. By agreeing to this arbitration procedure, both the Executive and the Company waive the right to resolve
any such dispute through a trial by jury or judge or by administrative proceeding. The Executive will have the right to
be represented by legal counsel at any arbitration proceeding at his expense. The arbitrator will: (a) have the authority
to compel adequate discovery for the resolution of the dispute and to award such relief as would otherwise be available
under applicable law in a court proceeding; and (b) issue a written statement signed by the arbitrator regarding the
disposition of each claim and the relief, if any, awarded as to each claim, the reasons for the award, and the arbitrator’ s
essential findings and conclusions on which the award is based. The Company will bear all fees for the arbitration,
except for any attorneys’ fees or costs associated with the Executive’ s personal representation. The arbitrator, and not a
court, will also be authorized to determine whether the provisions of this paragraph apply to a dispute, controversy or
claim sought to be resolved in accordance with these arbitration procedures. Notwithstanding the provisions of this
paragraph, the parties are not prohibited from seeking injunctive relief in a court of appropriate jurisdiction to prevent
irreparable harm on any basis, pending the outcome of arbitration. Any awards or orders in such arbitrations may be
entered and enforced as judgments in the federal and the state courts of any competent jurisdiction. The parties agree
that the arbitration shall be kept confidential. The existence of the arbitration, any non public information provided in
the arbitration, and any submissions, orders or awards made in the arbitration (together, the “ Confidential Arbitration
Information ”) shall not be disclosed to any non- party except the tribunal, JAMS, the parties, their counsel, experts,
witnesses, accountants and auditors, insurers and reinsurers, and any other person necessary to the conduct of the
arbitration. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a party may disclose Confidential Arbitration Information to the extent that
disclosure may be required to fulfill a legal duty, protect or pursue a legal right, or enforce or challenge an award in
bona fide legal proceedings. This confidentiality provision survives termination of the contract and of any arbitration
brought pursuant to the contract. 25. Counterparts and Facsimiles. This Agreement may be executed in several
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed as an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same
instrument. Signed copies of this Agreement may be delivered by. pdf,. jpeg or fax and will be accepted as an original. 26.
Expenses. Each of the Company and the Executive shall bear its / his own costs and expenses in connection with the
negotiation and documentation of this Agreement. 27. No Reliance Upon Other Statements. This Agreement is entered
into without reliance upon any statement or representation of any party hereto or parties hereby released other than the
statements and representations contained in writing in this Agreement. 28. Amendment / Waiver. This Agreement may
not be modified without the express written consent of the parties hereto. Any failure by any party to enforce any of its
rights and privileges under this Agreement shall not be deemed to constitute waiver of any rights and privileges
contained herein. 29. Notice. Any notice to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed given when mailed
by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows: To the Executive at: The most recent address provided
by the Executive to the Company To the Company at: One Park Plaza 6th Floor Dublin, California 94568 Attn:
Samantha Wellington, EVP & Chief Legal Officer 30. Company Subsidiaries, Affiliates and Divisions. For purposes of
this Agreement, references to the “ Company ” in Sections 2, 3, 4, 5, 11, 12, 13, and 15, shall include the Company, its
subsidiaries and affiliates. References to “ subsidiaries, ” “ affiliates > or “ divisions ” of the Company shall mean and
include those entities or persons publicly identified by the Company to a subsidiary, affiliate or division of the Company
and such other entities or persons actually known by the Executive to be a subsidiary, affiliate or division of the
Company. [ Signature Page Follows | IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has duly executed this
Transition Agreement as of the date and year first set forth above. By: / s / Michael Q. Simonds Its: President & Chief
Executive Officer By: / s / Alexander Warren Alexander Warren (Signature Page to Transition Agreement)
RESTRICTIVE COVENANT AGREEMENT RELEASE AGREEMENT This Release Agreement (this “ Agreement )
is entered into by Alexander Warren (the “ Executive ), on the one hand, and TriNet Group, Inc. (the “ Company ), on
the other hand (the Executive and the Company are referred to collectively as the “ Parties ”). 1. Release. In
consideration of the compensation payable to the Executive under the terms and conditions of the Transition Agreement
dated September ___ , 2024, by and between the Executive and the Company (the “ Transition Agreement ), and for
other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Executive, for himself and for his
heirs, executors, administrators, trustees and legal representatives, and their respective successors and assigns
(collectively, the “ Releasors ), hereby releases, remises, and acquits the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates and
all of their respective past, present and future parent entities, subsidiaries, divisions, affiliates and related business
entities, any of their respective assets, employee benefit plans or funds, or past, present or future directors, officers,
fiduciaries, agents, trustees, administrators, managers, supervisors, shareholders, investors, employees, legal
representatives, agents or counsel, and their respective successors and assigns, whether acting on behalf of the Company
or its subsidiaries or affiliates or, in their individual capacities (the “ Released Party ” or “ Released Parties ), from any
and all claims, known or unknown, which the Releasors have or may have against any Released Parties arising on or
prior to the date that the Executive executes this Release, and any and all liability which any such Released Party may
have to the Releasors, whether denominated in claims, demands, causes of action, obligations, damages or liabilities
arising from any and all bases, including but not limited to (a) any claim under the Age Discrimination in Employment



Act of 1967 (including the Older Workers Benefit Protection Act) (the “ ADEA ), the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990, the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, Section 1981
of the Civil Rights Act of 1866, the Equal Pay Act, the Lilly Ledbetter Fair Pay Act, the Immigration Reform and
Control Act of 1986, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, (excluding claims for accrued, vested
benefits under any employee benefit or pension plan of the Company, subject to the terms and conditions of such plan
and applicable law), the Uniform Trade Secrets Act, the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, the Fair Labor Standards Act, the
California Fair Employment and Housing Act, the Unruh Civil Rights Act, the California Family Rights Act, and the
California Labor, Government, and Business and Professions Codes, all as amended; (b) any and all claims arising from
or relating to, as applicable, the Executive’ s service as an officer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates
and the termination or resignation of such officer positions, or the Executive’ s employment with the Company or the
termination of such employment; (c) all claims related to the Executive’ s compensation or benefits from the Company
or the Released Parties, including salary, bonuses, commissions, vacation pay, leave pay, expense reimbursements,
severance pay, fringe benefits, stock, stock options, or any other ownership interests in the Company or the Released
Parties; (d) all claims for breach of contract, wrongful termination and breach of the implied covenant of good faith and
fair dealing; (e) all tort claims, including claims for fraud, defamation, privacy rights, emotional distress, and discharge
in violation of public policy and all other claims under common law; and (f) all federal, state and local statutory or
constitutional claims, including claims for compensation, discrimination, harassment, whistleblower protection,
retaliation, attorneys’ fees, costs, disbursements, or other claims (referred to collectively as the “ Released Claims ”).
Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Release does not release claims that cannot be released as a matter of law, including
(i) any right to file a civil action or complaint with, or otherwise notify, a state agency, other public prosecutor, law
enforcement agency, or any court or other governmental entity alleging claims or a violation of rights under the
California Fair Employment and Housing Act, as well as any right to file a charge with or participate in a charge by the
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the Department of Labor, or any other local, state, or federal
administrative body or government agency that is authorized to enforce or administer laws related to employment,
against the Company and (ii) any right to communicate directly with the U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission, the
U. S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission, the U. S. Department of Justice or similar agency, or to cooperate with
or participate in any investigation conducted by such agency, or (iii) otherwise to make other disclosures that are
protected under the whistleblower provisions of applicable law. However, by executing this Release, the Executive
hereby waives the right to monetary recovery of damages from the Company in any such proceeding brought by the
Executive or on behalf of the Executive. In addition, this Release shall not apply to (a) the Executive’ s rights, if any, to
be covered under any applicable insurance policy with respect to any liability the Executive incurred or might incur as
an employee, officer or director of the Company, or the Executive’ s rights, if any, to indemnification under the by- laws
or articles of incorporation of the Company; (b) any right the Executive may have to obtain contribution as permitted by
law in the event of entry of judgment against the Executive as a result of any act or failure to act for which the Executive,
on the one hand, and Company or any other Released Party, on the other hand, are jointly liable; or (c) the Executive’ s
right to enforce the Transition Agreement. 2. ADEA Waiver. The Executive acknowledges that he is knowingly and
voluntarily waiving and releasing any rights the Executive may have under the ADEA, as amended. The Executive also
acknowledges that the consideration given for the waiver and release herein is in addition to anything of value to which
the Executive was already entitled. The Executive further acknowledges that he has been advised by this writing, as
required by the ADEA, that: (a) the Executive’ s waiver and release do not apply to any rights or claims that may arise
after the execution date of this Agreement; (b) the Executive has been advised hereby that he has the right to consult
with an attorney prior to executing this Agreement; (c) the Executive has had at least twenty- one (21) days from the
date of the Transition Agreement to execute it (although he may choose to voluntarily execute this Agreement earlier);
(d) the Executive has seven (7) days following the execution of this Agreement by the parties to revoke the Agreement;
and (e) this Agreement will not be effective until the date upon which the revocation period has expired, which will be
the eighth (8th) day after this Agreement is executed by the Executive, provided that the Company has also executed this
Agreement by that date (“ Effective Date ”). In the event of any changes to this Agreement, whether or not material, the
Executive waives the restarting of the twenty- one (21) day period indicated in the immediately preceding sentence. 3. No
Actions or Claims. Subject to Section 10 (a) of the Transition Agreement, the Executive represents that he has not filed
any charges, complaints, grievances, arbitrations, lawsuits, or claims against the Company, with any local, state or
federal agency, union or court from the beginning of time to the date of execution of this Agreement and that the
Executive will not do so at any time hereafter, based upon events occurring prior to the date of execution of this
Agreement. In the event any agency, union, or court ever assumes jurisdiction of any lawsuit, claim, charge, grievance,
arbitration, or complaint, or purports to bring any legal proceeding on behalf of the Executive, the Executive will ask
any such agency, union, or court to withdraw from and / or dismiss any such action, grievance, or arbitration, with
prejudice. 4. Acknowledgements and Representations. The Executive acknowledges and represents that he has not
suffered any discrimination or harassment by any of the Released Parties on account of the Executive’ s race, gender,
national origin, religion, marital or registered domestic partner status, sexual orientation, age, disability, medical
condition or any other characteristic protected by law. The Executive acknowledges and represents that he has not been
denied any leave, benefits or rights to which the Executive may have been entitled under the Family Medical Leave Act
or any other federal or state law, and that the Executive has not suffered any job- related wrongs or injuries for which
the Executive might still be entitled to compensation or relief. S. Miscellaneous. a. Assigns. The terms of this Agreement
are binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties named herein and their respective successors and permitted



assigns. b. Governing Law. This Agreement is, and disputes arising under it are, governed by the laws of the State of
California without regard to the principles of conflicts of law that would apply the laws of another jurisdiction. All
disputes regarding this Agreement shall be resolved pursuant to the dispute resolution procedures set forth in the
Transition Agreement. c. Severability. Each provision in this Agreement shall be interpreted in such a manner as to be
effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this Agreement is held to be prohibited by or invalid
under applicable law, such provision is ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without prohibiting or
invalidating the remainder of such provision or the remainder of this Agreement. d. Entire Agreement; Each Party the
Drafter. This Agreement, together with the Transition Agreement, constitutes the entire agreement and complete
understanding of the Parties with regard to the matters set forth herein and, except as otherwise specifically set forth in
this Agreement and the Transition Agreement, supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements,
understandings, and discussions, whether written or oral, between the parties with regard to such matters. No other
promises or agreements are binding unless in writing and signed by each of the parties after the date hereof. Should any
provision of this Agreement require interpretation or construction, the entity interpreting or construing this Agreement
should not apply a presumption against one party by reason of the rule of construction that a document is to be
construed more strictly against the party who prepared the document. e. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed
in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. Any executed counterpart returned by facsimile or
electronic transmission shall be deemed an original executed counterpart. TO BE EXECUTED NO EARLIER THAN
THE SEPARATION DATE AND NO LATER THAN SEPTEMBER 6, 2024. Date: By: Samantha Wellington Its: EVP
and Chief Legal Officer (Signature Page to Release Agreement) EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT THIS
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this" Agreement ”) is entered into by and between Timothy (Tim) N. Nimmer (the “
Executive, ”" you" or “ your ) and TriNet USA, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the'" Company ”) (each a “ Party ” and
collectively the “ Parties ), as of June 24, 2024 (the “ Effective Date ). NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the
promises and the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 1. EMPLOYMENT BY THE
COMPANY 1. 1 Title and Responsibilities. Subject to the terms set forth herein, and effective on the date on which you
commence your employment with the Company, which shall be no later than June 24, 2024 (the “ Effective Date ), you
will be an employee of the Company, and, among other things, you shall serve as the Senior Vice President, Risk
Products and Operations of TriNet Group, Inc. (“ TriNet, ” which is the parent of the Company), and you will report to
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. During your employment with the Company, you will devote your best
efforts and substantially all of your business time and attention (except for vacation periods and reasonable periods of
illness or other incapacity permitted by the Company' s general employment policies) to the business of TriNet and its
subsidiaries including the Company (the “ TriNet Group ). Within this relationship, you shall be expected to perform
those duties the Company requires, within the bounds of its policies and the law, to the highest professional and ethical
standards. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is acknowledged and agreed that you may engage in civic and not- for-
profit activities and / or serve on the boards of directors of non competitive private or public companies; provided,
however, in each case that such activities do not materially interfere with the performance of your duties hereunder and,
for service on any board of directors, prior approval shall be obtained from the Chief Legal Officer of the Company. 1. 2
At- Will Employment. Your relationship with the Company is at- will, which means that you and the Company both
have the right to terminate your employment with the Company at any time with or without cause, reason, or advance
notice, subject to any notice requirement provided in any other agreement with the Company. In addition, the Company
retains the discretion to modify the terms of your employment, including but not limited to position, duties, reporting
relationship, office location, compensation, and benefits, at any time; provided, however, that any such modification will
not affect your rights under the Severance Plan in accordance with its terms (as defined below). You also may be
removed from any position you hold in the manner specified by the Bylaws of the Company and applicable law. 1. 3
Company Employment Policies. The employment relationship between the Parties will be governed by this Agreement
and the standard employment terms and conditions as set forth in in the Company’ s Colleague Guidebook, the Terms
and Conditions Agreement (TCA) and other form agreements, policies and procedures of the Company, including those
relating to the mandatory arbitration provisions relating to employment- related disputes, the protection of confidential
information and the assignment of inventions, except that when the terms of this Agreement differ from or are in conflict
with the Company' s general employment policies or procedures, this Agreement will control. Your failure or refusal to
complete any of the Company’ s aforementioned standard form agreements or acknowledgement of the Company’ s
standard employment policies and procedures will result in the automatic termination of your employment without
triggering any severance benefits, notwithstanding section 2. 4 (b) below or the Severance Plan (as defined below). 2.
COMPENSATION. 2. 1 Salary. You will earn a base salary that is established in accordance with Company policy and
subject to review and approval by the Compensation and Human Capital Management Committee (the “ Committee )
of the Board of Directors of TriNet (the “ Board ) and that is payable semi- monthly on the Company’ s standard
payroll dates, less any payroll deductions and all required taxes and withholdings. Your annualized base salary starting
on the Effective Date is Five Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($ 550, 000. 00). You will be considered for annual
adjustments in base salary in accordance with Company policy and subject to review and approval by the Committee.
This is a full- time, exempt position and you are expected to work the Company’ s normal business hours and such
additional time as may be required by the nature of your work assignments (for which you will not be eligible for
overtime compensation). 2. 2 Equity Award. The parties agree that, in exchange for acceptance of the offer of
employment and the execution of this Agreement, after the Effective Date, the Chief Executive Officer will recommend to
the Committee an equity grant with a grant date value of One Million Dollars ($ 1, 000, 000) (the" RSU Award'')



comprised of time- vested restricted stock units to be settled in shares of TriNet common stock (" RSUs'"') and an equity
grant with a grant date value of One Million Dollars ($ 1, 000, 000) (the" PSU Award'') comprised of performance- based
restricted stock units to be settled in shares of TriNet common stock (" PSUs"'). The RSU and PSU Awards shall be
made pursuant to TriNet' s 2019 Equity Incentive Plan and shall be subject to the terms and conditions set forth in
TriNet' s forms of grant notice and award agreements. Approval of the recommendation of each Equity Award is in the
sole and unreviewable discretion of the Committee. The number of RSUs and PSUs actually awarded under the RSU
Award and the PSU Award, respectively, shall be determined based on the closing market price on the Grant Date, as
defined under the Committee' s standard award resolution language, following approval by the Committee. The RSUs
under the RSU Award shall, if and when granted by the Committee, be subject to a four- year vesting schedule for new
hires, with one- fourth of the total shares subject to the RSU Award (rounded down to the nearest whole share) vesting
on the first anniversary of the Grant Date, and thereafter one- sixteenth of the total shares vesting on the 15th day of the
second month of each calendar quarter after the first anniversary of the Grant Date (rounded down to the nearest whole
share, except for the last vesting installment which will be rounded up or down, as necessary, to account for any prior
fractional shares), in each case provided that you are an Employee, Non- Employee Director or Consultant (each as
defined in TriNet' s 2019 Equity Incentive Plan) of the Company or TriNet on such vesting date. The PSUs under the
PSU Award shall, if and when granted by the Committee, be determined based on the Committee’ s evaluation of the
Performance Criteria for the pertinent performance period (in this case, the 2024 calendar year) set forth in the PSU
Award, and shall be subject to a two- year vesting schedule with one- half vesting on December 31, 2025 and one- half
vesting on December 31, 2026, in each case provided that you are an Employee, Non- Employee Director or Consultant
(each as defined in TriNet' s 2019 Equity Incentive Plan) of the Company or TriNet on such vesting date. You will be
considered for annual or periodic “ refresh ” equity awards at the same time as the other executives, which will be
subject to the terms and conditions of the Company’ s equity incentive plan and the grant agreements. Approval of the
recommendation of any equity award is in the sole and unreviewable discretion of the Committee or its subcommittee,
the Equity Award Committee (the “ EAC ”). 2. 3 Target Variable Compensation. Each year, you will be eligible to earn
an annual performance- based variable compensation amount based on the achievement of corporate performance goals
established by the Company and subject to approval by the Committee and individual performance goals and objectives,
with the target amount for such variable compensation established in the Company' s annual executive bonus plan (the «
Target Variable Compensation"). For 2024, your Target Variable Compensation shall be 100 % of your annual base
salary prorated from the Effective Date, subject to the achievement of the corporate and individual performance goals
and objectives. Achievement against goals and the actual amount of the Target Variable Compensation earned will be
determined by the Company, in its sole discretion, and will be subject to the approval of the Committee. In order to earn
and be paid such variable compensation, you must remain an active employee throughout the full- time period for which
the Target Variable Compensation is paid, and for which time period the Company and the Committee assesses
performance and the related compensation amounts, and you must be employed and in good standing on the date of
Target Variable Compensation distribution. Any earned Target Variable Compensation shall be paid within thirty (30)
days following its determination and approval by the Committee. 2. 4 Sign- On Bonus. You will be eligible for a cash
bonus in the amount of Two Hundred Seventy Five Thousand Dollars ($ 275, 000. 00) less applicable taxes, deductions
and withholdings, to be paid in one lump sum on or before July 31, 2024 (the" Sign- On Bonus"), provided you remain
employed with the Company on that date and have not indicated intent to terminate your employment. In the event you
voluntarily terminate your employment within two years of the Effective Date, you will be responsible for immediate
repayment of a pro- rated amount of the Sign- On Bonus to the Company. 2. 5 Company Benefits. (a) Standard
Company Benefits. You will be eligible to participate in the Company' s standard employee benefits plans that are
available to employees generally in the U. S., as in effect from time to time, subject to the terms and conditions of such
plans. (b) Severance Benefits. The Committee has designated you as a Participant in the TriNet Group, Inc. Amended
and Restated Executive Severance Benefit Plan (the “ Severance Plan ), a copy of which is attached hereto as Annex A,
which shall be the only severance benefits from the Company to which you shall be entitled. 2. 6 Expense
Reimbursements. You will be eligible for reimbursement of eligible business expenses in accordance with the Company’ s
expense reimbursement program. For the avoidance of doubt, to the extent that any reimbursements payable by the
Company to you under this Agreement or otherwise are subject to the provisions of Section 409A of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the" Code"), any such reimbursements will be paid no later than December 31 of
the year following the year in which the expense was incurred, the amount of expenses reimbursed in one year will not
affect the amount eligible for reimbursement in any subsequent year, and the right to reimbursement will not be subject
to liquidation or exchange for another benefit. 3. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION / RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS.
As a condition of your continued employment, you must sign and comply with the Restrictive Covenants and Invention
Disclosure Agreement (the “ RCAIDA ”) attached hereto as Annex B. 4. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 4. 1 Notices. Any
notices provided hereunder must be in writing and will be deemed effective upon the earlier of personal delivery
(including, personal delivery, email and facsimile transmission), delivery by express delivery service (e. g. Federal
Express), or the third day after mailing by first class mail, to the Company at its primary office location and to Executive
at their address as listed on the Company payroll (which address may be changed by either Party by written notice). 4. 2
Severability. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement will be interpreted in such manner as to be effective
and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in
any respect under any applicable law or rule in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability will not
affect any other provision or any other jurisdiction, and such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision will be reformed,



construed and enforced in such jurisdiction so as to render it valid, legal, and enforceable consistent with the intent of
the Parties insofar as possible. 4. 3 Waiver. If either Party should waive any breach of any provisions of this Agreement,
they or it will not thereby be deemed to have waived any preceding or succeeding breach of the same or any other
provision of this Agreement. 4. 4 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including its annexes and exhibits, constitutes the
entire agreement between Executive and the Company regarding the subject matter hereof. As of the Effective Date, this
Agreement supersedes and replaces any and all other agreements, promises, or representations, written or otherwise,
between Executive and the Company with regard to this subject matter. This Agreement is entered into without reliance
on any agreement, promise, or representation, other than those expressly contained or incorporated herein, and, except
for those changes expressly reserved to the Company’ s or Board’ s discretion in this Agreement, the terms of this
Agreement cannot be modified or amended except in a writing signed by Executive and a duly authorized officer of the
Company which is approved by the Board. 4. 5 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in separate
counterparts, any one of which need not contain signatures of more than one Party, but all of which taken together will
constitute one and the same Agreement. Signatures transmitted via facsimile will be deemed the equivalent of originals.
4. 6 Headings and Construction. The headings of the sections hereof are inserted for convenience only and will not be
deemed to constitute a part hereof or to affect the meaning thereof. For purposes of construction of this Agreement, any
ambiguities will not be construed against either Party as the drafter. 4. 7 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is
intended to bind and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by Executive, the Company, and their respective
successors, assigns, heirs, executors and administrators, except that Executive may not assign any of their duties
hereunder and they may not assign any of their rights hereunder without the written consent of the Company. 4. 8
Informing Subsequent Employers. If Executive’ s employment is terminated, the Company has the right to inform any
subsequent employer of Executive’ s obligations under this Agreement, and may send a copy of these terms of
employment to that employer. 4. 9 Attorney Fees. If either Party hereto brings any action to enforce their or its rights
hereunder, the prevailing Party in any such action will be entitled to recover their or its reasonable attorneys’ fees and
costs incurred in connection with such action. 4. 10 Arbitration. To provide a mechanism for rapid and economical
dispute resolution, Executive and the Company agree that any and all disputes, claims, or causes of action, in law or
equity, arising from or relating to this Agreement (including the Release) or its enforcement, performance, breach, or
interpretation, or arising from or relating to Executive’ s employment with the Company or the termination of
Executive’ s employment with the Company, will be resolved, to the fullest extent permitted by law, by final, binding,
and confidential arbitration held in Alameda County, California and conducted by JAMS, Inc. (“ JAMS ”), under its
then applicable JAMS Employment Arbitration Rules and Procedures. By agreeing to this arbitration procedure, both
Executive and the Company waive the right to resolve any such dispute through a trial by jury or judge or by
administrative proceeding. Executive will have the right to be represented by legal counsel at any arbitration proceeding
at their expense. The arbitrator will: (a) have the authority to compel adequate discovery for the resolution of the dispute
and to award such relief as would otherwise be available under applicable law in a court proceeding; and (b) issue a
written statement signed by the arbitrator regarding the disposition of each claim and the relief, if any, awarded as to
each claim, the reasons for the award, and the arbitrator’ s essential findings and conclusions on which the award is
based. The Company will bear all fees for the arbitration, except for any attorneys’ fees or costs associated with
Executive’ s personal representation. The arbitrator, and not a court, will also be authorized to determine whether the
provisions of this paragraph apply to a dispute, controversy or claim sought to be resolved in accordance with these
arbitration procedures. Notwithstanding the provisions of this paragraph, the Parties are not prohibited from seeking
injunctive relief in a court of appropriate jurisdiction to prevent irreparable harm on any basis, pending the outcome of
arbitration. Any awards or orders in such arbitrations may be entered and enforced as judgments in the federal and the
state courts of any competent jurisdiction. 4. 11 Governing Law. All questions concerning the construction, validity and
interpretation of this Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of California without regard to conflicts of laws
principles. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this first amended and restated employment agreement
effective as of the Effective Date. TRINET USA, INC. _/s/Michael Q. Simonds _/s/Timothy N.
Nimmer ANNEX A TRINET GROUP, INC. AMENDED AND RESTATED EXECUTIVE
SEVERANCE BENEFIT PLAN [ Separately filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as Exhibit 10. S to the
Form 10- Q, filed on April 30, 2018. | Amended and Restated Severance Benefit Plan Participation Notice To: Timothy
N. Nimmer Date: May 6, 2024 TriNet Group, Inc. (the “ Company ) has adopted the TriNet Group, Inc. Amended and
Restated Executive Severance Benefit Plan (the “ Plan ). The Company is providing you this Participation Notice to
inform you that you have been designated as a “ Participant ” under, the Plan. A copy of the Plan document is attached
to this Participation Notice. The terms and conditions of your participation in the Plan are as set forth in the Plan and
this Participation Notice, which together constitute the Summary Plan Description for the Plan. You understand that by
accepting your status as a Participant in the Plan, you are waiving your rights to receive any severance benefits on any
type of termination of employment under any other contract or agreement with the Company. By accepting
participation, you represent that you have either consulted your personal tax or financial planning advisor about the tax
consequences of your participation in the Plan, or you have knowingly declined to do so. Please return a signed copy of
this Participation Notice to Catherine Wragg at catherine. wragg @ trinet. com and retain a copy of this Participation
Notice, along with the Plan document, for your records. TriNet Group, Inc. Signature: Printed Name: Title:
ParticipantSignature: Printed Name: Timothy N. Nimmer ANNEX B RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS AND
INVENTION DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT As consideration for, among other things, my employment or continued
employment after the date of this Agreement, all compensation now or hereafter paid to me, including but not limited to




salary, commissions, bonus awards, insurance and other benefits, and all other forms and types of compensation and
benefits, I agree to the terms and conditions of this Restrictive Covenants and Invention Disclosure Agreement (“
RCAIDA ” or “ Agreement ”) as follows: 1. Maintaining Confidential Company Information. A. I acknowledge and
agree that during my employment with TriNet USA, Inc. or any of its successors, subsidiaries, assigns, and related
companies, including TriNet Group, Inc. (collectively, the “ Company ), I will have access to, receive and / or will review
the Company’ s confidential or proprietary information or trade secrets (collectively, “ Confidential Information ). “
Confidential Information > shall include, but not be limited to, the following types of non- public information in any
form: Trade secrets; research and development plans or projects; marketing, sales, financial, product and customer data
and reports; computer materials such as software programs, instructions, source and object code, and printouts;
information regarding the Company’ s products, prospective products, inventions, developments, and discoveries; data
compilations; development databases; business improvements; business plans (whether pursued or not); budgets;
unpublished financial statements; licenses, including the terms thereof; fee agreements and vendor contracts; pricing
models, formulas, and strategy; cost data and analyses; information relating to the skills and compensation of other
employees of the Company; the personal information and protected health information of other employees of the
Company which I would not have obtained absent my employment with the Company, including worksite employees
brought to TriNet by its customers; lists of former, current and potential customers of TriNet and all non- public
information about them such as contact person (s), pricing, product and / or service needs or requirements, profitability,
cost to service, and other terms; marketing strategies, forecasts and other marketing information and techniques;
employment and recruiting strategies and processes; sales practices, strategies, methods, forecasts, compensation plans,
and other sales information; investor information; and the identities of the Company’ s suppliers, vendors, and
contractors, and all information about the Company’ s relationships with its suppliers, vendors and contractors such as
contact person (s), pricing and other terms. For clarity, “ Confidential Information > is limited to information that is
known only to the Company and its customers, vendors and / or suppliers and that is not otherwise readily ascertainable
to the public. To the extent that I have any question as to whether any information constitutes Confidential Information,
or whether any email, spreadsheet, PowerPoint, file, or other document contains Confidential Information, I agree to
obtain the express written permission of my manager before transmitting, using or disclosing the information for any
purpose that is, in whole or in part, outside of my assigned job duties or responsibilities. In no event shall I transmit, use,
or disclose Confidential Information for any purpose other than a purpose that is designed to be in the best interest of
the Company. Expressly excluded from the definition of “ Confidential Information ” is any information that (a)
through no fault of mine is or becomes readily ascertainable to the public and / or is readily and lawfully available to the
public through a public media source such as television, radio or a publicly- available magazine or newspaper; (b) 1
lawfully obtained and possessed prior to my employment with the Company; (c) I lawfully obtained after termination of
my employment with the Company from a third party who was lawfully in possession of the information and permitted
to disclose it to me; (d) arises from my general training, knowledge, skill, or experience, whether gained on the job or
otherwise; or (e) I otherwise have a right to disclose as legally protected conduct. I understand and acknowledge that this
definition and description of Confidential Information includes information in any and all forms, whether original,
duplicated, compiled, aggregated, segregated, or summarized; and whether on paper, electronically stored, conveyed
verbally, residing in my memory, or reproduced from my memory. I agree that if information qualifies as Confidential
Information, it does not lose its confidentiality simply because I am able to remember it. B. During my employment with
the Company, I shall not directly or indirectly transmit, disclose, furnish, or use any Confidential Information other than
as reasonably needed to perform my job duties and responsibilities for the Company. I acknowledge and agree that I am
only permitted to transmit, disclose, furnish, and use Confidential Information if, in so doing, I am acting in good faith
and in the best interests of the Company. Once my employment with the Company ends, I shall not directly or indirectly
transmit, use, furnish, or disclose any Confidential Information to any person or entity for any reason. C. I acknowledge
and agree that all Confidential Information is proprietary and shall remain the exclusive property of the Company.
Accordingly, within ten calendar days of the earlier of (1) my providing notice of resignation to the Company; (2) the
Company’ s notice to me of the separation of my employment; or (3) the end of my employment with the Company for
any other reason or under any other circumstance, I shall return to the Company any and all Confidential Information
in my possession, custody or control, including, but not limited to, all Confidential Information contained in any email,
word processing document, PowerPoint presentation, spreadsheet, text, instant message or other electronically- stored
document or electronic data storage media, without exception. This covenant to return Confidential Information
includes all Confidential Information in my possession, custody, or control regardless of where it may reside or be
stored. I acknowledge and agree that after my employment with the Company terminates, I shall not be permitted to
retain in my possession, custody or control any documents or materials containing Confidential Information, whether
such documents or materials are originals, copies, compilations, summaries, analyses, or otherwise. D. My obligations
under this Paragraph 1 are in addition to, and not in limitation or preemption of, all other obligations of confidentiality I
may have, including any obligations under the common law, statutory law or under general legal or equitable principles,
or under any other Agreement I may have with the Company. E. I agree that the terms of this Paragraph 1 are
reasonable and essential for the protection of the goodwill, trade secrets, proprietary data and confidential information
of the Company; that the Company’ s Confidential Information provides the Company with a competitive advantage in
the marketplace; that activity in violation of this Paragraph 1 is likely to cause substantial and irreparable harm to the
Company; and that the Company has legitimate business reasons to seek protection against improper and unauthorized
disclosures of Confidential Information. I further agree that the terms of this Paragraph 1 are reasonably narrow to



protect the Company’ s interests and will not impair, hinder, hamper, or otherwise impact my ability to obtain other
gainful employment after my employment with the Company terminates. F. In the event I receive a subpoena, deposition
notice, interview request, or other process or order to testify regarding or to disclose Confidential Information, I shall
within five (5) business days of receiving such subpoena, deposition notice, or request: (i) notify the Company’ s Legal
Department in writing of the item, document, or information sought by such subpoena, deposition notice, interview
request, or other process or order; (ii) furnish the Company’ s Legal Department with a copy of said subpoena,
deposition notice, interview request, or other process or order; and (iii) provide reasonable cooperation with respect to
any procedure that the Company may initiate to protect Confidential Information or other interests. If the Company
objects to the subpoena, deposition notice, interview request, process, or order, I shall cooperate to ensure that there
shall be no disclosure until the court or other applicable entity has ruled upon the objection, and then only in accordance
with the ruling so made. If no such objection is made despite a reasonable opportunity to do so, I shall be entitled to
comply with the subpoena, deposition, notice, interview request, or other process or order provided that I have fulfilled
the above obligations. G. Pursuant to the Defend Trade Secrets Act, I understand that an individual shall not be held
criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret that: (a) is made
(i) in confidence to a federal, state or local government official, either directly or indirectly, or to an attorney, and (ii)
solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (b) is made in a complaint or other
document that is filed under seal in a lawsuit or other proceeding. Further, I understand that an individual who files a
lawsuit for retaliation by an employer for reporting a suspected violation of law may disclose the employer’ s trade secret
to the attorney of the individual and use the trade secret information in the court proceeding, if the individual (a) files
any document containing the trade secret under seal and (b) does not disclose the trade secret, except pursuant to court
order. H. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement or otherwise, I understand that: (1) I have the right under federal
law to certain protections for cooperating with or reporting legal violations to the Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “ SEC ”) and / or its Office of the Whistleblower, as well as certain other governmental authorities and self-
regulatory organizations, and as such, nothing in this Agreement or otherwise is intended to prohibit me from disclosing
this Agreement to, or from cooperating with or reporting violations to, the SEC or any other such governmental
authority or self- regulatory organization, and I may do so without notifying the Company. The Company may not
retaliate against me for any of these activities, and nothing in this Agreement or otherwise would require me to inform
the Company of any of these activities or waive any monetary award or other payment that I might become entitled to
from the SEC or any other governmental authority. (2) Nothing in this Paragraph 1 or this Agreement shall limit in any
way any statutory right I may have to disclose or use information under Section 7 of the United States National Labor
Relations Act or any other applicable law. I further understand and acknowledge that nothing in this Paragraph 1 or
this Agreement prohibits me from disclosing information about my wages or terms and conditions of employment or
from disclosing unlawful acts in the workplace such as sexual harassment, discrimination, or retaliation. I understand
and acknowledge that the Company will not take any disciplinary action or other adverse employment action against me
for properly exercising my legal rights. (3) Nothing in this Paragraph 1 or this Agreement shall preclude me from
maintaining, possessing, or disclosing at any time my own personal information, including without limitation my pay
history, wage statements, and tax- related documents and materials, even after my employment with the Company
terminates. (4) If I am unsure or uncertain as to whether information constitutes a trade secret, I will contact the
Company’ s Legal Department to discuss the issue and I agree that I will not transmit, disclose, or use the information in
question without first obtaining express written consent from the Company’ s authorized legal representative. 2. Third-
Party Information. A. I acknowledge and agree that the Company has in the past received, and in the future will receive,
information from customers, vendors and other third parties that is confidential, proprietary, or that the third party
does not want disclosed outside of the Company (“ Third- Party Information ”). I understand that the Company
typically receives such information under a legal duty to maintain its confidence, and that the Company has a legitimate
business interest in ensuring that it does not disclose Third- Party Information to persons outside of the Company, to
persons within the Company who are not authorized to access or use it, or to any party who seeks to use or disclose it for
an improper or unauthorized purpose. B. During my employment with the Company, I shall not directly or indirectly
transmit, disclose, furnish, or use any Third- Party Information other than as I am expressly authorized and as
reasonably needed to perform my job duties and responsibilities for the Company. I acknowledge and agree that I am
only permitted to transmit, disclose, furnish, and use Third- Party Information if, in so doing, I am authorized to do so,
act in good faith, and do so in the best interests of the Company. Once my employment with the Company ends, I shall
not directly or indirectly transmit, use, furnish, or disclose any Third- Party Information to any person or entity for any
reason. C. Within ten calendar days of the earlier of (1) my providing notice of resignation to the Company; (2) the
Company’ s notice to me of the separation of my employment; or (3) the end of my employment with the Company for
any other reason or under any other circumstance, I shall return to the Company any and all Third- Party Information
in my possession, custody or control, including, but not limited to, all Third- Party Information contained in any email,
word processing document, PowerPoint presentation, spreadsheet, text, instant message, any hard copy or other
electronically- stored document, without exception. This covenant to return Confidential Information includes all
Confidential Information in my possession, custody, or control regardless of where it may reside or be stored. I further
acknowledge and agree that I shall not be permitted to retain in my possession, custody or control any documents or
materials containing Third- Party Information, whether such documents or materials are original, copies, compilations,
summaries, analyses, or otherwise. D. My obligations under this Paragraph 2 are in addition to, and not in limitation or
preemption of, all other obligations of confidentiality I may have, including any obligations under the common law,



statutory law or under general legal or equitable principles, or under any other Agreement I may have with the
Company. E. I agree that the terms of this Paragraph 2 are reasonable and essential for the protection of Third- Party
Information; that activity in violation of this Paragraph 2 may cause substantial and irreparable harm to the Company
and / or its customers, vendors and other third parties; and that the Company has legitimate business reasons to seek
protection against improper disclosures of Third- Party Information entrusted to the Company. I further agree that the
terms of this Paragraph 2 are reasonably narrow to protect the Company’ s interests and will not impair, hinder,
hamper, or otherwise impact my ability to obtain other gainful employment after my employment with the Company
terminates. 3. No Improper Use of Information of Prior Employers and Others. During my employment with the
Company, I will not improperly use or disclose any confidential information or trade secrets of any former employer or
any other person to whom I have an obligation of confidentiality, and I will not bring on to Company premises or place
on any Company hardware, software, or equipment any proprietary or confidential information or property belonging
to any former employer or any other person to whom I have an obligation of confidentiality (unless consented to in
writing by that former employer or person). I will use in the performance of my duties only information which is
generally known and used by persons with training and experience comparable to my own, which is common knowledge
in the industry or otherwise legally in the public domain, or which is otherwise provided or developed by the Company. I
represent and warrant that my employment with the Company will not violate or breach any agreement I have entered
with any other person or entity. I further represent and warrant that I have disclosed to the Company, in writing, any
restrictive covenants I may be bound to, including any non- disclosure, non- solicitation, and non- competition
covenants. 4. Return of Company Property. In addition to the obligations in Paragraphs 1 and 2 above, when I leave the
employ of the Company, I will deliver to the Company (and will not keep in my possession, copy, recreate or deliver to
anyone else in whole or in part) any and all items I received from the Company including but not limited to files,
drawings, notes, notebooks, memoranda, specifications, records, business plans and forecasts, financial information,
sales materials, customer and prospective customer lists, reports, programs, proposals, specifications computer-
recorded information (including emails), tangible property (including but not limited to laptop / desktop computers,
flash drives, CD- ROMs, cell phones, smartphones, tablets and other PDA devices), building entry / access cards,
corporate credit cards, identification badges and keys, devices, and documents, together with all copies thereof (in
whatever medium recorded) and any other property or material containing, summarizing, characterizing or disclosing
Confidential Information or Third- Party Information. I further agree that any property owned by the Company,
wherever located, including laptops, cellular telephones, iPads, thumb drives, CDs, disks and any other storage media,
computers, filing cabinets, desks / desk drawers, or lockers, is subject to inspection by Company personnel at any time
during and after my employment, with or without notice. 5. No Conflicting Employment; Solicitation Restrictions. A.
While employed by the Company, I will not, without the Company’ s prior written consent, directly or indirectly engage
in any employment, consulting, contracting, soliciting, sales, marketing or other activity wherein I may use or disclose the
Company’ s Confidential Information or conflict with any of my obligations under this Agreement. I agree that while
employed by the Company I owe the Company a duty of loyalty and a duty to act in good faith, whether such duty is
assumed or implied in law. Thus, during my employment with the Company, I will not directly or indirectly, individually
or in combination with any other employee, individual or competitor of the Company, compete against the Company. B.
During any period in which I am employed by the Company and for a period of one year thereafter, I shall not, directly
or indirectly, take any action or engage in any conduct intended or reasonably calculated to solicit, approach, recruit,
induce or urge any employee, independent contractor, or agent of the Company to discontinue, in whole or in part, his /
her employment relationship with the Company. The restrictions in this paragraph apply only to those employees,
independent contractors, or agents of the Company who at any time during the twelve months preceding termination of
my employment with the Company: (a) I worked with in my department, (b) I had material contact with, or (c) I
supervised. C. During the period of my employment with the Company, and for a period of one year after my
termination for any reason, I shall not directly or indirectly, for myself or on behalf of any other person or entity, solicit
any entity that, at the time, has a contractual relationship with the Company for the purpose of (i) providing or selling
services, goods or products that are the same as or similar to the kinds or types of services, goods or products being
provided or sold by the Company, or (ii) entering into or seeking to enter into any contract or other arrangement with
any such entity for the performance or sale of services or goods and products of a nature being provided or sold by the
Company. I understand that my agreement “ not to solicit ” as set forth in this paragraph means that I will not, directly
or indirectly, initiate any contact or communication with any entity that, at the time, has a contractual relationship with
the Company for the purpose of soliciting, inviting, encouraging, recommending or requesting any such entity to do
business with me and / or any other person or entity. This Paragraph S (C) shall be limited to (i) entities which I directly
solicited, assisted, or otherwise provided services to or for at any time during the last twelve months of my employment
with the Company and / or (ii) entities for which I received commissions or retention compensation from the Company at
any time during the last twelve months of my employment with the Company. D. I acknowledge and agree that, due to
nature of the Company’ s business, the restrictive covenants contained in Paragraphs 1, 2 and 5 are essential for the
reasonable, proper and adequate protection of the Company’ s business, goodwill, trade secrets, proprietary data and
confidential information. I further acknowledge and agree that the covenants in Paragraphs 1, 2 and S are narrowly
tailored, are not overly broad or unduly burdensome, and will not prevent me from earning a livelihood following the
termination of my employment with the Company. 6. Ownership of Discoveries & Results and Proceeds. Any inventions
(whether or not patentable), discoveries, designs, business methods, improvements or works of authorship made by me,
alone or jointly with others, and all results and proceeds of my services to the Company (“ Results and Proceeds ) at any



time during my employment by the Company which are made, conceived, reduced to practice or learned by me in the
course and scope of my employment or with the use of the Company’ s time, property (whether tangible or intangible),
materials or facilities, or relating to any subject matter with which my work for the Company is concerned, are hereby
irrevocably and unconditionally assigned to the Company for its benefit and shall be the exclusive property of the
Company. Any copyrightable subject matter included in the Results and Proceeds shall be “ works made for hire ” as
that phrase is defined in the Copyright Act of 1976 (17 U. S. C. 101 et seq.). If it is ever determined that any Results and
Proceeds cannot be considered “ works made for hire ” or otherwise cannot be fully assigned to the Company under
applicable law, I hereby grant to the Company in perpetuity and on an exclusive and irrevocable basis all worldwide
rights of every kind and nature, whether now known or hereafter recognized, in and to such Results and Proceeds to the
maximum extent permitted by applicable law. Without limitation of the foregoing, the Company has the exclusive right
to obtain and own all patents and copyright registrations with respect to such Results and Proceeds. Neither the
expiration nor the termination of this Agreement shall affect the Company’ s ownership of or rights in the Results and
Proceeds or any intellectual property rights therein. To facilitate the determination of whether any invention, discovery,
designs, business methods, improvement or work of authorship is properly transferable to the Company, I will promptly
advise it of all inventions, discoveries, improvements or works of authorship made, conceived, reduced to practice or
learned by me during the term of my employment and for six months after termination of my employment. I understand
that my obligations under this Paragraph 6 do not apply to any invention that qualifies fully as a non- assignable
invention under any law of any jurisdiction, in each case, to the extent applicable to my inventions. I have completed
Exhibit A, which lists all inventions, improvements and other works (“ Pre- existing Work ”) that I have alone or jointly
with others, conceived, developed, reduced to practice prior to the commencement of my employment with the Company,
that I consider to be my property or the property of third parties. I hereby represent and warrant that there is no Pre-
existing Work other than as set forth in the attached Exhibit A. If Exhibit A is not completed in full, and included
herein, there is no Pre- existing Work for which I claim ownership. I agree that I will not incorporate any Pre- existing
Work into any Company works without first obtaining the express, written approval of the Company in each case. To
the extent that I incorporate any Pre- existing Work into any Company works, I hereby represent and warrant that I
have all necessary rights and authority to do so and hereby grant to Company the perpetual, irrevocable, non- exclusive,
worldwide, royalty- free and sublicensable right to use and exploit such Pre- existing Work for any and all purposes in
connection with the Company' s and its affiliates' and their respective successors' and assigns' current and future
businesses. 7. Perfection and Enforcement of Proprietary Rights. I will assist the Company in every proper way at the
Company' s request and direction to obtain, perfect and enforce United States, Canadian and foreign patent, copyright,
mask work and other intellectual property rights (“ Proprietary Rights ”) relating to Company information and / or
Results and Proceeds in any and all countries. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, I will execute, verify and
deliver such documents and perform such other acts (including appearances as a witness) as the Company may
reasonably request for use in applying for, obtaining, perfecting, evidencing, sustaining and enforcing such Proprietary
Rights and the assignment thereof. My obligation to assist the Company pursuant to this Paragraph 7 shall continue
following the termination of my employment, but the Company shall compensate me at a reasonable rate to be
determined by the Company consistent with its ordinary practices after my termination for the time actually spent by me
at the Company’ s request for such assistance. If the Company or its designee is unable because of my mental or physical
incapacity or unavailability or for any other reason to obtain my signature for any document required by this Paragraph
7, then I hereby irrevocably designate and appoint the Company and its duly authorized officers and agents as my agent
and attorney in fact, to act for and in my behalf and stead to execute and file any such documents with the same legal
force and effect as if originally executed by me, and I declare that this power of attorney shall be deemed to be coupled
with an interest and irrevocable, and may be exercised during any subsequent legal incapacity. 8. No Continued
Employment; Exit Interview. I understand that my employment with the Company is at- will and that this Agreement
does not confer any right of continued employment by the Company and does not limit in any way the Company’ s right
or my right to terminate my employment at any time and for any reason or no reason, with or without cause in
accordance with applicable law. In the event my employment with the Company terminates for any reason, I will, if
requested, participate in an exit interview with the Company and reaffirm in writing my obligations as set forth in this
Agreement (though such re- affirmance is not required in order for the terms of this Agreement to remain valid and
enforceable). I agree to provide the Company with the name and address of my new employer, and consent to the
Company’ s notification to my new employer of my rights and obligations under this Agreement, including that I agree
the Company may provide a copy of this Agreement to any such new employer. 9. Legal and Equitable Remedies. A. In
the event I breach or threaten to breach, or the Company reasonably believes I am about to breach, any of the terms,
conditions or restrictive covenants in Paragraphs 1, 2 or 5 of this Agreement, I agree that the Company will be entitled to
injunctive relief as well as an equitable accounting of all earnings, profits and other benefits relating to or arising from a
violation of this Agreement, which rights shall be cumulative and in addition to any other rights or remedies to which the
Company may be entitled at law or in equity. I acknowledge and agree that a breach of Paragraphs 1, 2 or 5 will cause
the Company to suffer immediate and irreparable harm and that money damages will not be adequate to compensate the
Company or to preserve the status quo. Therefore, I consent to the issuance of a temporary restraining order,
preliminary injunction, and other injunctive relief necessary to enforce this Agreement. B. In the event of a breach of
Paragraph 5, the Company shall be entitled to an injunction, judgment, or other order that requires me to comply with
the breached term, condition or covenant for a time period equal to the period of the breach. The relief provided for in
this Paragraph 9 (B) shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, all other rights and remedies available at law and equity.



C.I agree that any application for temporary restraining order and / or temporary or preliminary injunctive relief shall
be adjudicated exclusively in a court of competent jurisdiction, even if the Company and I are parties to an arbitration
agreement that otherwise includes disputes under this Agreement. I agree that the injunctive relief to which I consented
above, under the circumstances addressed in this Section 9 (C), shall be granted by a court of competent jurisdiction
pending arbitration on the merits to preserve the status quo pending completion of such arbitration. D. I agree that in
any proceeding alleging breach of this Agreement (whether in court or in arbitration), the Company and I each shall
have the right to engage in deposition and document discovery, and the Company shall have the right to conduct forensic
examination (s) of any computers and / or electronic devices in my possession, custody or control, if the Company
reasonably believes such devices contain Confidential Information or other Company property. I further agree that in
connection with any application for injunctive relief to enforce this Agreement (including without limitation any
application for temporary and / or preliminary injunctive relief), the foregoing discovery shall be conducted on an
expedited basis, including expedited document and deposition discovery. E. If any dispute under this Agreement is
subject to resolution by arbitration under an agreement or program agreed to by me with the Company, I understand
and agree that my agreement to engage in expedited discovery as outlined in Section 9 (D) is an essential term of the
parties’ arbitration agreement, and these provisions are intended to supplement and modify any applicable arbitration
rules which may be incorporated into any arbitration agreement that is applicable to the dispute. Accordingly, both I
and the Company request that any court of competent jurisdiction order such expedited discovery in order to enforce
the parties’ arbitration agreement as written and in accordance with its terms. F. I understand and agree that: all of the
foregoing remedies are expressly without prejudice to any other rights and remedies that the Company may have for a
breach of this Agreement (including recovery of monetary damages, which may include clawback or disgorgement of any
compensation paid during any period of disloyalty or breach of this Agreement). G. If a lawsuit is brought that relates to
or arises out of this Agreement or my employment with or termination from the Company, the prevailing party in that
lawsuit shall be awarded its reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses. 10. Modification & Severability; Other Restrictive
Covenants. If any section, provision, paragraph, phrase, word, and / or line (collectively “ Provision ”) of this Agreement
is held to be unenforceable, then I agree that this Agreement will be deemed amended to the extent necessary to render
the otherwise unenforceable Provision, and the rest of the Agreement, valid and enforceable. If a court declines to amend
this Agreement as provided herein, the invalidity or unenforceability of any Provision of this Agreement shall not affect
the validity or enforceability of the remaining Provisions, which shall be enforced as if the offending Provision had not
been included in this Agreement. I further agree that if one or more post- employment restrictive covenants in this
Agreement are found unenforceable (despite, and after application of, any applicable right to reformation that could add
or renew enforceability), then, and only then, any provision (s) of any prior agreement between the parties that would
provide for restriction (s) on the same or substantially similar post- employment conduct shall not be considered
superseded and shall remain in effect so as to afford the Company the broadest protections allowed under applicable
law. 11. Binding Effect and Assignability. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties
hereto and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors, assigns, affiliated entities, and any party- in-
interest. I agree that, should the Company be acquired by, merge with, or otherwise combine with another corporation
or business entity, the surviving entity will have all rights to enforce the terms of this Agreement as if it were the
Company itself enforcing the Agreement. I understand and agree that this Agreement applies no matter which company
or affiliate within the Company I may be employed with at any given time. I expressly agree that this Agreement may be
enforced against me by any Company affiliate, without the need for any formal assignment of this Agreement, but in the
event such an assignment is made, I hereby consent to such assignment without any further assent from me required to
make such assignment binding and effective. Notwithstanding the foregoing, I understand and agree that I may not
assign this Agreement. 12. Survival. The provisions of this Agreement shall survive the termination of my employment,
regardless of the reason for the termination, and shall also survive the assignment of this Agreement by the Company to
any successor in interest or other assignee. 13. Waiver & Amendment. I agree and understand that a waiver by the
Company of the breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any subsequent
breach, nor shall recourse to any remedy hereunder be deemed a waiver of any other or further relief or remedy
provided for herein. No waiver shall be effective unless made in writing and signed by an officer of the Company. The
Company shall not be required to give notice to enforce strict adherence to all terms of this Agreement. This Agreement
can only be amended or changed in a writing signed by both parties. 14. Change in Employment. I agree that any
subsequent change in my duties or title will not affect in any respect the validity, enforceability, or scope of this
Agreement. 15. Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Venue. I understand and agree that in the event of any disputes under
this Agreement, then the following applies: A. The Agreement will be governed by, construed, interpreted, and its
validity determined under the laws of the State of Colorado. B. The parties hereby consent to jurisdiction in such court
for such purpose, and I consent to service of process by mail in respect of any such suit, action or proceeding. The parties
further agree not to file any action relating in any way to this Agreement in any court other than as specified in this
Section. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, if any dispute under this Agreement is subject to resolution by arbitration
under an agreement or program agreed to by me and the Company, then such arbitration shall be the sole and exclusive
venue for adjudicating such disputes, other than any requests for a temporary restraining order and / or a temporary or
preliminary injunction pending arbitration, which are reserved exclusively for adjudication in court pursuant to Section
9 above even in otherwise arbitrable disputes. | ACKNOWLEDGE THAT I HAVE CAREFULLY READ AND
UNDERSTAND THIS AGREEMENT AND ALL OF ITS TERMS. I FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGE THAT I HAVE
RECEIVED A COLORADO NOTICE REGARDING COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE PERTAINING TO THIS



AGREEMENT AND ITS PROVISIONS. I ACKNOWLEDGE THAT I HAVE BEEN PROVIDED AN ADEQUATE
OPPORTUNITY TO REVIEW THIS AGREEMENT, TO ASK QUESTIONS ABOUT THIS AGREEMENT AND TO
HAVE A LAWYER OF MY CHOOSING REVIEW THIS AGREEMENT. I AM SIGNING THIS AGREEMENT
VOLUNTARILY, AND I VOLUNTARILY CONSENT TO ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS CONTAINED
HEREIN. I STIPULATE, ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT THE BENEFITS AND CONSIDERATION THE
COMPANY IS PROVIDING TO ME IN CONNECTION WITH MY EMPLOYMENT ARE SUFFICIENT
CONSIDERATION FOR ALL OF THE TERMS IN THIS AGREEMENT. Signature:

Timothy N. Nimmer Date: EXHIBIT A INVENTION DISCLOSURE
AGREEMENT (IDA) TO: TriNet USA, Inc. and its Subsidiaries, Related Companies, and Divisions SUBJECT: Previous
Inventions, Improvements, Creations or Works I have no inventions to disclose I disclose inventions as described

below 1. Except as listed in Section 2 below, the following is a complete list of all inventions, improvements, creations or
works that have been made or conceived or first reduced to practice by me alone or jointly with others prior to my
engagement by the Company.
Note- if you require
additional space to list your previous inventions or need to attach additional relevant paperwork, please contact MYHR
@ trinet. com. 2. Due to a prior confidentiality agreement, I cannot complete the disclosure in Section 1 above. Instead, 1
list the inventions, improvements or works generally, and the party (ies) to whom I owe proprietary rights and a duty of
confidentiality. Inventions, Improvements, Creations or WorksPartiesRelationship1234 | HEREBY REPRESENT AND
WARRANT that the contents of this Exhibit A are truthful, accurate and complete. I have carefully read this Exhibit A
and have no disclosures to make other than those included above. Signature: Date:
INSIDER TRADING AND MATERIAL NONPUBLIC INFORMATION POLICY
Purpose and Scope As a public company, TriNet Group, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, “ TriNet ” or the “ Company
”) is subject to various federal and state laws and regulations governing trading in its securities. It is the policy of TriNet
to fully comply with these laws and regulations. This Insider Trading and Material Nonpublic Information Policy (this *
Policy ”) provides a general overview of insider trading, the need for confidentiality and TriNet’ s prohibition against
insider trading and other restrictions with respect to the trading of securities and handling of material nonpublic
information. This Policy is divided into five parts: « Part I is intended to provide a general overview of what constitutes
insider trading and material nonpublic information and who is subject to this Policy; * Part IT contains TriNet’ s
prohibition on insider trading, open and closed trading windows, as well as certain exceptions; * Part III imposes special
pre- clearance requirements and acknowledgement and certification requirements on (i) all members of the Board of
Directors of the Company, (ii) all of the Company’ s executive officers and Senior Vice Presidents who report directly to
the Company’ s Chief Executive Officer, and (iii) certain employees or groups of employees of the Company designated
in writing by the Chief Legal Officer of the Company from time to time whose duties may expose them to material
nonpublic information (collectively, “ Covered Persons ). The Chief Legal Officer of the Company shall deem who is a
necessary and appropriate Covered Person, provided that the Company’ s “ officers ” as defined under Section 16 (a) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “ Exchange Act ”’) and members of the Board of Directors of the
Company must remain Covered Persons; * Part IV sets out requirements pertaining to a written plan, contract,
instruction, or arrangement under Rule 10b5- 1 under the Exchange Act (a “ Rule 10bS- 1 Plan ”); and * Part V
provides the Company’ s policies regarding the use, disclosure and protection of material nonpublic information. TriNet
Group, Inc. Insider Trading Policy 1 Last Revised: December 18, 2024 Part I: Overview of Insider Trading “ Insider
trading ” is illegal under federal securities laws, a violation of this Policy and is a top priority for state and federal
prosecutors. Criminal prosecutions for insider trading are commonplace and may result in both fines and imprisonment.
a. What is Insider Trading? Insider Trading is generally understood to include (1) purchasing, selling, donating or
otherwise trading in a company’ s securities while in possession of material nonpublic information; (2) disclosing or *
tipping ” material nonpublic information to others or recommending the purchase or sale of securities on the basis of
such information; or (3) assisting someone who is engaged in any of the above. There is no “ de minimis > test. Use of
material nonpublic information to gain personal benefit and tipping are as illegal with respect to a few shares of stock as
they are with respect to a large number of shares. You can be held liable both for your own transactions and for
transactions effected by others who receive any material nonpublic information from you or were advised by you to
trade when you were in possession of material nonpublic information. b. What is “ Material Nonpublic Information ”?
Information is generally regarded as “ material > if it has market significance. In other words, if public dissemination of
information is likely to affect the market price of securities, or if it is otherwise information that a reasonable investor
would want to know before making an investment decision, that information is likely “ material. ” Certainly, if the
information makes you want to trade, it will probably have the same effect on others. Both positive and negative
information can be material and, typically, the materiality is judged in hindsight, i. e., only after someone has traded on
the information, the information becomes public and the effect on the market is seemingly apparent. Although by no
means an all- inclusive list, and while highly dependent on facts and circumstances, examples of information that is
generally regarded as material include: * financial performance and results, key metrics, financial condition, earnings
pre- announcements, forecasts, projections or guidance, particularly if inconsistent with the Company’ s guidance or the
expectations of the investment community; * changes in independent auditors, or notification that the Company may no
longer rely on an audit report; * business plans or budgets; * events that may result in restatements of financial results,
material impairments, the creation of a significant reserve or write- off, restructurings or other adjustments to the
financial statements; * impending bankruptcy or financial liquidity problems; * analyst upgrades or downgrades of a




company or one or more of its securities; * proposals, plans or agreements, even if preliminary in nature, involving
mergers, acquisitions or dispositions; ¢ significant changes to, or introduction of, products or services; * significant events
affecting a company' s operations, including the breach of information systems that compromises the functioning of a
company' s information or other systems or results in the exposure or loss of customer, employee or worksite employee
information; ¢ significant business developments involving business relationships, including the gain or loss of or the
execution, modification, renewal or termination of an important contract or order with a substantial customer, partner,
supplier or other business partner; ¢ significant information relating to the Company’ s products or services, such as new
products or services, major modifications, significant pricing changes or other announcements of a significant nature; ¢
changes in key personnel, such as changes in senior management, board of director changes or material reductions in
force; » major events involving securities of the Company, including calls of securities for redemption, changes in
dividend policy, stock splits or stock repurchase programs, modification to the rights of security holders or notice of
delisting; * new public or private equity or debt offerings or significant borrowings; ¢ significant legal or regulatory
developments, whether positive or negative, actual or threatened, including litigation or investigation or inquiry by
governmental agencies or positive or negative developments in existing litigation or investigations or resolutions thereto;
* updates regarding any prior material disclosure that has materially changed; ¢ the existence of a special closed trading
window; and ¢ any other facts or circumstances which might cause a company’ s financial results to be substantially
affected. When in doubt about whether particular information is material, you should either (a) consult the Chief Legal
Officer before making any decision to disclose such information (other than to persons who need to know it in order to
fulfill their job responsibilities) or to trade in securities to which that information relates or (b) presume that the
information is material. c. What is “ Nonpublic ”? Information is generally regarded as “ nonpublic ” if it has not been
disseminated in a manner designed to reach investors generally, and the investors have not been given the time to absorb
the information. Filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the'" SEC') and press releases are generally
regarded as public information. However, information obtained in the normal course of employment or through a
rumor, tip or workplace gossip is not public information. As a general rule, information should be considered nonpublic
until market open on the second trading day after the information was disseminated to the general public (i. e., outside
TriNet) through SEC filings or press releases. As with questions of materiality, when in doubt about whether particular
information is nonpublic, you should either (a) consult the Chief Legal Officer before making any decision to disclose
such information (other than to persons who need to know it in order to fulfill their job responsibilities) or to trade in
securities to which that information relates or (b) presume that the information is nonpublic and treat it as confidential.
d. What are “ Securities ”? “ Securities ” include stocks (common and preferred), debt securities (including bonds, notes
and debentures), options, restricted stock units, warrants and other convertible securities, as well as derivative
instruments. The definition of securities also includes securities in which you or your Related Persons (as defined below)
have any beneficial or other interest, or over which you exercise investment control, including: * Securities held in joint
accounts or accounts of persons or entities controlled directly or indirectly by you or your Related Persons; * Securities
for which you or your Related Persons act as trustee, executor or custodian; and * Any other securities over which you or
your Related Persons exercise any direct or indirect control. e. What is “ Tipping ”? “ Tipping ” occurs when you share
nonpublic information with others (commonly referred to as a “ tippee ”), who trade on the basis of this information. ¢
Tipping may include conversations at social or business gatherings. It does not matter if you share the material
nonpublic information inadvertently. * Tippees may not do anything with material nonpublic information that the
original person from whom they received the material nonpublic information is prohibited from doing. Tippees who
share or trade on the basis of material nonpublic information are violating securities laws. f. What is “ Trade, ” ¢
Trading, ” or a “ Transaction ”? “ Trade ” or “ transaction ” includes a purchase, sale, loan, donation, gift or any other
transfer or disposition of securities or any offer to engage in the transactions above. This includes contracts to purchase /
sell or otherwise acquire or dispose of a security. This also includes any other arrangement that generates gains or losses
from or based on changes in the prices of securities including derivative securities (for example, exchange- traded put or
call options, swaps, caps and collars), hedging and pledging transactions, short sales and certain arrangements
regarding participation in benefit plans. g. Who is subject to this Policy? This Policy applies to all members of TriNet’ s
Board of Directors, all officers and other employees (including temporary workers or consultants of TriNet and its
subsidiaries), as well as members of such persons’ immediate family members, other non- family members of the same
household of any of the foregoing individuals, and any other entity that trades in securities of the Company which are
beneficially owned by any of the foregoing individuals (collectively, “ Related Persons ). Further, this Policy applies to:
1) any account over which directors, officers or employees (and their Related Persons) have or share the power, directly
or indirectly, to make investment decisions (whether or not such persons have a financial interest in the account) and 2)
those accounts established or maintained by such persons with their consent or knowledge and in which such persons
have a direct or indirect financial interest. It is the obligation and responsibility of each director, officer and employee to
act in a manner consistent with this Policy. The Company, in accordance with this Policy, will not engage in transactions
in Company securities or securities of any other company while aware of material nonpublic information relating to the
Company or its securities or such other company and its securities, as applicable. During the course of your employment
with the Company or service as a director, you may receive material information that is not yet publicly available (i. e.,
not disclosed to the public in a press release or SEC filing) about the Company or about other publicly traded companies
with which the Company has business dealings. Because of your access to this information, you are prohibited from
buying, selling, donating, transferring or otherwise dealing in the Company’ s securities or the securities of such other
publicly traded company, or disclosing such information to a third party who does so, or causes someone else to do so,



until such information has been disclosed to the general public. Further, even when you are not in possession of material
nonpublic information, this Policy may restrict you from trading in or transferring the Company’ s stock during a closed
trading window period as defined below under Parts II and III (as applicable). Part II: Prohibitions on Trading for All
Employees, Officers and Directors and Related Persons a. Prohibitions on Insider Trading Subject to the exceptions
expressly set forth in Section (e) below of this Part II, all employees, officers and directors of the Company (including all
of their respective Related Persons), who are in possession of any material nonpublic information are prohibited from: ¢
trading or otherwise engaging in any transaction involving any Company security, whether or not issued by the
Company during any period commencing on the date they become aware of material nonpublic information concerning
the Company and ending on the date the information is no longer material or no longer deemed nonpublic; ¢
recommending, either directly or indirectly, or expressing opinions on the basis of material nonpublic information as to
trading in the Company’ s securities; ¢ tipping, either directly or indirectly, material nonpublic information to any other
person (including to Related Persons) on the basis of which such other person may engage in transactions involving the
Company’ s securities; In addition, subject to the exceptions expressly set forth in Section (e) below of this Part II, no
employee, officer or director of the Company (nor any of their respective Related Persons), who is in possession of any
material nonpublic information may: * purchase or sell any security of any other company while in possession of
material nonpublic information about that company that was obtained in the course of their involvement with the
Company; * communicate any such material nonpublic information with respect to such other company that is in their
possession to any other person, including family members and friends, or otherwise disclose such information without
the Company’ s authorization; and * advise any other person, including family members and friends, to purchase or sell
any security of such other company while in possession of any material nonpublic information about such other
company. Each of the above would be considered “ insider trading ” for purposes of this Policy, regardless of how any
securities are held (e. g., in a brokerage account, 401 (k) or other retirement account, or otherwise), is prohibited under
this Policy and, in addition to any potential criminal or civil sanction, would subject any director, officer or employee in
violation of this Policy to Company- imposed discipline, including dismissal. Other than as expressly set forth in Section
5 below, there are no exceptions to this Policy, even for hardship to the employee, officer or director or based on the use
of proceeds (such as making a mortgage payment or for an emergency expenditure). Gifts of securities are treated under
this Policy in the same way as other transfers of securities. The prohibitions in this Section (a) continue to apply to you
even after you have separated from the Company. If you are in possession of material nonpublic information when you
separate from the Company, you (and your Related Persons) may not trade, or advise any other person to trade, in the
Company’ s securities or the securities of such other relevant company or share such information with any other person
until the information has become public or is no longer material. In addition, if there is a closed trading window (as
described in Section (b) below) in effect at the time you separate from the Company, you are subject to the applicable
trading restrictions until at least the end of the relevant closed trading window following your departure. b. Open and
Closed Trading Windows In addition to the prohibition in Section (a), above: Quarterly Closed Trading Windows.
Trading in the Company’ s securities is prohibited for all individuals subject to this Policy during the period
commencing at the close of trading (1: 00 p. m. California time) on the 14th day of the third month of each fiscal quarter
(i. e., March 14, June 14, September 14, and December 14) and ending at the end of the first full trading day following
the date that the Company’ s financial results are first fully disclosed to the public. If the 14th calendar day falls on a
weekend or U. S. federal holiday, the quarterly closed trading window will begin after the close of trading on the
immediately preceding business day. Special Closed Trading Windows. From time to time, an event may occur that is
material to the Company but known by a select few (such as negotiation of mergers, acquisitions or dispositions) that
may not be publicly disclosed. In connection with such event, the Chief Legal Officer of the Company may impose special
closed trading windows during which employees, officers or directors (and their Related Persons) may be prohibited
from trading in the Company’ s securities. The Chief Legal Officer is not required to provide reasons for the imposition
of any closed trading window and the imposition of the special closed trading window itself may constitute material
nonpublic information that should not be communicated. If the Company imposes a special closed trading window, it
will notify the employees, officers or directors affected and those employees, officers or directors (and their Related
Persons) must comply with the prohibitions set forth in Section (a) of this Part IT until they are notified that the closed
trading window is lifted. Open Trading Window and Insider Trading. Subject to the additional restrictions for Covered
Persons in Part III below, directors, officers and employees of the Company are generally permitted to trade in the
Company’ s securities when no closed trading window is in effect. However, even during an open trading window, any
director, officer or employee who is in possession of any material nonpublic information should not trade in the
Company’ s securities until the information has been made publicly available or is no longer material. Brokers are
prohibited from making trades or fulfilling limit orders during closed trading windows. Notwithstanding the above,
closed trading windows do not prohibit trading in Company securities pursuant to a Rule 10b5S- 1 Plan (discussed in Part
IV). c. Other Prohibited Transactions In addition to the above restrictions, all employees, officers and directors of the
Company (and their respective Related Persons) must refrain from holding Company securities in a margin account,
pledging Company securities as collateral for a loan, engaging in short sales, transactions in put or call options (or other
derivative securities), hedging transactions, standing limit orders (except (i) standing and limit orders under Approved
Rule 10bS- 1 Plans and (ii) standing orders entered into during an open trading window and that terminated before the
same open trading window closes) or similar inherently speculative transactions with respect to the Company’ s
securities at any time, regardless of whether such individual is in possession of material nonpublic information or
whether the trading window is open. These transactions often evidence an expectation that the Company’ s securities



will decline in value and that such directors, officers or employees do not have the same objectives as other Company
securityholders. In addition, these transactions may reduce such individuals’ incentive to improve the Company’ s
performance or otherwise introduce at least the potential for a conflict of interest. d. Section 16 Reporting Persons Any
of the Company’ s securities purchased on the open market by members of the Company’ s Board of Directors and its
officers who are subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16 of Exchange Act (Section 16 Reporting Persons ) or
their Related Persons must be held for a minimum of six (6) months and are subject to short- swing profit liability under
the provisions. Approved Rule 10b5- 1 Plans do not exempt individuals from complying with Section 16 short- swing
profit rules or liability. In addition, Section 16 (c) of the Exchange Act absolutely prohibits Section 16 Reporting Persons
from making short sales of the Company’ s equity securities. e. Exceptions Notwithstanding the foregoing, the trading
restrictions in Part II, Sections (a) and (b) of this Policy do not apply to the following: « ESPP. Purchasing Company
stock through the Company’ s Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ ESPP ”). However, any changes in your election
percentage under the ESPP and the sale of any Company stock acquired under the ESPP are subject to trading
restrictions under this Policy. * Option Exercises; Certain Transactions Involving Equity Awards. ¢ Exercising stock
options granted under the Company’ s Equity Incentive Plan with cash or the delivery of previously owned Company
stock. However, the sale of any shares issued upon the exercise of Company- granted stock options and any cashless
exercise of Company- granted stock options are subject to trading restrictions under this Policy; * the surrender of
shares directly to the Company in payment of the exercise price or in satisfaction of tax withholding obligations in a
manner permitted by the applicable equity award agreement; or ¢ vesting or settlement of equity- based awards, that in
each case do not involve a discretionary market sale of the Company’ s securities (e. g., a broker- assisted cashless
exercise or similar sale transaction). This Policy also does not apply to any non- discretionary market sales (including
broker- assisted sales) of the Company’ s securities in satisfaction of tax withholding obligations arising from any
Company equity award (other than from the exercise of stock options or similar awards) and occurring automatically
pursuant to and in compliance with a non- discretionary “ sell- to- cover ” policy or similar arrangement approved by
the Company as then in effect. [ 1 ] « Rule 10bS- 1 Plans. These trading restrictions do not apply to transactions under a
Rule 10bS- 1 Plan. * Trusts. In addition, transfers into trusts (where the director, officer or employee has an interest and
serves as a trustee) may be made regardless of whether a quarterly or other closed trading window is in effect or whether
you are in possession of material nonpublic information. However. * Transfers Between Accounts with the Same Owner.
This Policy does not apply to transactions that involve merely a change in the form in which you or your Related Persons
own securities (e. g., the transfer of shares to an inter vivos trust of which you are the sole beneficiary during your
lifetime), provided however that transfers between accounts by Covered Persons require the prior approval of the Chief
Legal Officer. Notwithstanding the foregoing, because trusts remain subject to this Policy, transfers out of the trust must
comply with the other terms of this Policy. * Mutual Funds. Transactions in mutual funds that are invested in Company
securities are not transactions subject to this Policy. * Dividend Reinvestment Plans. A dividend reinvestment plan
(DRIP) is an arrangement by which dividends paid on a company’ s stock are automatically reinvested into whole and
fractional shares of that stock. Your election to participate in a DRIP, or to increase or decrease your level of
participation in the DRIP, is subject to the same restrictions as other trading activities referenced in this Policy. The
Policy also applies to the sale of company stock purchased pursuant to the DRIP. However, this Policy does not apply to
purchases of Company stock that result from reinvestment of dividends pursuant to a DRIP. « Changes due to Stock
Splits or Dividends. This Policy does not apply to changes in the number of Company securities you or your Related
Persons hold due to a stock split or a stock dividend that applies equally to all securities of a class, or similar
transactions. * Bona Fide Gifts. This Policy does not restrict you or your Related Person’ s ability to make a bona fide
gift during an open trading window, provided however that any gifts of Company securities by Covered Persons require
the prior approval of the Chief Legal Officer. This means you may not make bona fide gifts during closed trading
windows. * Special Exceptions. In addition, the Company’ s Chief Legal Officer may waive trading restrictions for
certain employees, officers or directors under this Part IT when and to the extent the Chief Legal Officer believes that
such waiver is consistent with the objectives of this Policy. Such individuals will be notified by the Chief Legal Officer of
an applicable waiver and its conditions. However, even if an individual is eligible for a waiver, any director, officer or
employee who is in possession of any material nonpublic information should not trade in the Company’ s securities until
the information has been made publicly available or is no longer material. f. Violations of Insider Trading Law Anyone
who effects transactions in the Company’ s securities, or the securities of other public companies engaged in business
transactions with the Company (or provides information to enable others to do so) on the basis of material nonpublic
information is subject to both civil liability and criminal penalties, as well as disciplinary action by the Company.
Officers and employees who violate this Policy may be subject to disciplinary action by the Company, including dismissal
for cause. Directors who violate this Policy may be removed from the board. The SEC, prosecutors, stock exchanges and
plaintiffs' lawyers focus on uncovering insider trading. A breach of the insider trading laws could expose the individual
or anyone who trades on information provided by an individual to criminal fines up to $ S million and imprisonment up
to 20 years, in addition to civil penalties (up to three times of the profits earned), and injunctive actions. The U. S.
securities laws may be applicable to trades in the Company' s securities executed outside the U. S. g. Questions Any
director, officer or employee who has questions about these matters should speak with their own attorney or the
Company’ s Chief Legal Officer. Any exceptions to the Policy, if permitted, may only be granted by the Chief Legal
Officer and must be provided before any activity contrary to the above requirements takes place. Part ITI: Additional
Trading Restrictions for Covered Persons Subject to the exceptions expressly set forth in Section (d) below, in addition
to the restrictions imposed in Part II above, all Covered Persons (as defined above) shall be subject to the following



additional restrictions: a. Pre- clearance of Securities Transactions Other than pursuant to a Rule 10b5- 1 Plan, no
Covered Persons, or their Related Persons, may, directly or indirectly, purchase or sell (or otherwise make any transfer,
gift, pledge or loan of, or establish a trading plan other than a Rule 10b5- 1 Plan with respect to) any Company security
at any time without first obtaining prior approval from the Chief Legal Officer or, if the Chief Legal Officer is
unavailable, their designee, even during an open trading window. In addition, for purposes of this Section (a), Covered
Persons must obtain pre- clearance and follow the procedures described below prior to the exercise of options that
involve a broker- assisted cashless exercise or similar sale transaction, making any gifts of securities or transferring
securities between their accounts or those of their Related Persons. Each Covered Person should contact the Chief Legal
Officer prior to commencing any transaction in the Company’ s securities. The Chief Legal Officer is not required to
grant a pre- clearance request. The Company’ s pre- clearance of any particular transaction does not constitute legal
advice and does not insulate any Covered Person from liability under applicable securities laws. Even after a Covered
Person’ s transaction is approved for pre- clearance, they may not transact in Company securities if: « The transaction
occurs during a closed trading window (except for transfers between accounts of the same owner as set forth in the
exception outlined in Part II (e) hereto), or * They become aware of material nonpublic information before the
transaction is executed. The Chief Legal Officer or their designee shall record, or cause to be recorded, the date each pre-
clearance request is received and the date and time each request is approved or disapproved. Unless revoked, a grant of
permission will normally remain valid until the close of trading four (4) trading days following the day on which it was
granted, or for such shorter or longer period prescribed by the Chief Legal Officer. If the Covered Person becomes
aware of any material nonpublic information before the transaction has been affected, they cannot proceed with the
transaction. If the transaction does not occur during the permitted period, pre- clearance of the transaction must be re-
requested. Pre- clearance is not required for purchases and sales of securities under a Rule 10b5- 1 Plan. b. Designation
as a Covered Person; Acknowledgment and Certification The Chief Legal Officer (or designee) within the Legal
Department shall notify any Covered Persons in writing that they are Covered Persons under this Policy and the Legal
Department shall maintain a list of such Covered Persons, which will be reviewed with the executive leadership team
from time to time, as determined by the Chief Legal Officer. All Covered Persons are required to acknowledge and
certify (in a form determined to be reasonable by the Chief Legal Officer) that they have read and understand this
Policy, including the additional restrictions imposed on Covered Persons, and that they agree to be bound by such
restrictions until their separation from the Company or until they are other otherwise informed in writing by the Chief
Legal Officer (or designee) that they are no longer designated as a Covered Person under this Policy. c. Trades by Chief
Legal Officer With respect to any pre- clearance, approval, interpretation or special exception under this Policy that is
sought by the Chief Legal Officer with respect to trading by the Chief Legal Officer or their Related Persons, the Chief
Legal Officer shall seek approval thereof from the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer may consult
with the Company’ s outside securities counsel and shall have the authority to pre- clear, approve, interpret or grant a
special exception to the Chief Legal Officer. d. Exceptions Notwithstanding the foregoing, the trading restrictions in Part
III, Section (a) of this Policy are subject to the exceptions set forth in Part II, Section (e). Part IV: Rule 10b5- 1 Plans A
Rule 10bS- 1 Plan is a written trading plan adopted in advance of any transactions in Company securities. Rule 10b5- 1
Plans reduce the risk of trading on the basis of material nonpublic information. If you adopt a Rule 10b5- 1 Plan, you
may not trade outside that plan. [ 2 | a. Who Needs a Rule 10b5- 1 Plan? Not everyone needs to adopt a Rule 10b5- 1
Plan. The Company strongly recommends that Section 16 Reporting Persons, and certain other designated personnel
notified by the Chief Legal Officer, adopt and trade strictly under a Rule 10b5- 1 Plan. The Chief Legal Officer, in their
sole discretion, can also permit other individuals to adopt a Rule 10b5- 1 plan. b. What are the Requirements for a Rule
10b5- 1 plan? A Rule 10b5- 1 Plan must meet the following minimum requirements: * Pre- Approval. Each Rule 10b5- 1
Plan (and any modifications to a Rule 10bS- 1 Plan) must be pre- approved by the Chief Legal Officer. Approval by the
Chief Legal Officer of a Rule 10b5- 1 plan is not a determination by the Company or the Chief Legal Officer that any
specific Rule 10b5- 1 Plan is sufficient to satisfy the requirements of Rule 10b5- 1 under the Exchange Act. « Timing and
modifications. You can only adopt or modify a Rule 10bS- 1 Plan when (a) you are not aware of any material nonpublic
information and (b) when there is not a closed trading window in effect, as described in this Policy. « Duration. A Rule
10b5- 1 Plan must have a minimum term length of one year from adoption. If your Rule 10b5- 1 Plan terminates
according to its terms prior to one year, then you may adopt a new Rule 10bS- 1 Plan subject to satisfaction of the
cooling- off ” period defined below and the other requirements described in this Policy.  “ Cooling off ” periods. You
cannot immediately trade after entering or modifying a Rule 10b5- 1 Plan. The SEC requires there to be a “ cooling off ”
period between adoption or modification of a plan and trading. The length of the “ cooling off ” period depends on who
you are: ° For all Section 16 Reporting Persons, the first trade under the Rule 10b5- 1 Plan may not occur until after the
later of (a) 90- days after the adoption, or modification, of the Rule 10b5- 1 Plan or (b) two business days following
disclosure in Form 10- K or 10- Q of the Company’ s financial results for the fiscal quarter in which the Rule 10b5- 1
Plan was adopted or modified (but not to exceed 120 days after adoption or modification of the Rule 10b5- 1 Plan). c For
all others, the first trade under the Rule 10bS- 1 Plan may not occur until 30- days following the Rule 10bS- 1 Plan
adoption or modification. ° Upon termination of a Rule 10bS- 1 Plan entered into on or after the date of this Policy,
Section 16 Reporting Persons and other persons covered by such Rule 10bS- 1 Plan are prohibited from trading in the
Company’ s securities during the period commencing on the date of the termination and ending on the date that falls 60
days following termination of the plan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in extraordinary circumstances, the relevant
person terminating their plan may request the Chief Legal Officer to reduce this period from 60 days to 30 days, which
the Chief Legal Officer may approve in their sole discretion. ° For the avoidance of doubt, these cooling- off periods do



not apply to a Company adopted Rule 10b5- 1 Plan. « No overlapping plans. You may not adopt more than one Rule
10b5- 1 Plan at a time except in the following circumstances: = You may adopt multiple Rule 10b5- 1 Plans with separate
brokers, but they will be taken together to constitute a single Rule 10b5- 1 Plan. = You may simultaneously maintain two
Rule 10bS- 1 Plans, so long as the later- commencing Rule 10b5- 1 Plan is not authorized to begin trading until after all
trades under the first Rule 10b5- 1 Plan are completed or expire based on the terms of the Rule 10b5- 1 Plan. = Non-
discretionary arrangements which authorize an agent to sell only enough shares as are necessary to satisfy tax
withholding obligations arising exclusively from the vesting and settlement of Company equity awards (such as RSUs)
will not be considered “ overlapping > plans for this purpose.  Single- trade Rule 10bS- 1 Plans. Rule 10bS- 1 Plans
designed to effect an open- market purchase or sale of the total amount of securities as a single transaction are permitted,
but you may only have one such single- trade Rule 10bS- 1 Plan over the course of a 12- month period. ¢ Certifications.
The Rule 10b5- 1 Plan must include a representation in the Rule 10bS- 1 Plan certifying that at the time of adoption or
modification of a Rule 10bS- 1 Plan, the individual (i) is not aware of material nonpublic information about the issuer or
its securities and (ii) the individual is adopting the contract, instruction or plan in good faith and not as part of a plan or
scheme to evade the prohibitions of Rule 10b5- 1. o In addition, you must enter into to the Rule 10bS- 1 Plan in good faith
and not as part of a plan or scheme to evade the prohibitions of Rule 10b5- 1 under the Exchange Act and you must have
acted in good faith with respect to the Rule 10b5- 1 Plan. « Reporting. All Section 16 Reporting Persons must report on
their Forms 4 or 5 in connection with any trades, as applicable, that their Rule 10b5- 1 Plan was adopted to satisfy Rule
10b5- 1 (c¢). The Company reserves the right to publicly disclose, announce, or respond to inquiries from the media
regarding the adoption, modification, or termination of a Rule 10bS- 1 Plan. Part V: Policies Regarding the Use,
Disclosure and Protection of Material Nonpublic Information All employees, officers and directors of the Company have
ethical and legal responsibilities to maintain the confidentiality of material nonpublic information. a. Use or Disclosure of
Material Nonpublic Information As discussed above, no employee, officer or director shall use material nonpublic
information about the Company for their personal benefit. In addition, except as specifically authorized or in the
performance of an individual’ s designated corporate responsibilities, under no circumstances may an employee, officer
or director release to others information that might affect the Company’ s securities. Therefore, no employee, officer or
director of the Company is permitted to disclose material nonpublic information to anyone, including other employees,
officers or directors of the Company, unless the other employee, officer or director needs to know such information in
order to fulfill their job responsibilities. Under no other circumstances should such information be disclosed to anyone,
including family, relatives or business or social acquaintances. No employee, officer or director should discuss material
nonpublic information in public places or in common areas on Company property. In maintaining the confidentiality of
the information, the individual in possession of such information shall not affirm or deny statements made by others,
either directly or through electronic means, if such affirmation or denial would result in the disclosure of material
nonpublic information. If an employee, officer or director has any doubt about whether certain information is nonpublic
or material, such doubt should be resolved in favor of not communicating such information or trading. Questions
concerning what is or is not material nonpublic information should be directed to the Company’ s Chief Legal Officer. b.
Unauthorized Disclosure of Internal Information Unauthorized disclosure of internal information about the Company
may create serious problems for the Company whether or not the information is used to facilitate improper trading in
securities of the Company. Therefore, it shall be the duty of each person employed or affiliated with the Company to
maintain the confidentiality of information relating to the Company or obtained through a relationship of confidence.
Company personnel, officers or directors should not discuss internal Company matters or developments with anyone
outside the Company, except as necessary in the performance of regular corporate duties. c. Social Media Any written or
verbal statement that would be prohibited under the law or under this Policy is equally prohibited if made on the
Internet or by social media. All employees, officers and directors should periodically review TriNet’ s Social Media
Policy and ensure their social media activities comply with the policy. d. Inadvertent Disclosure of Material Nonpublic
Information If material nonpublic information regarding the Company is inadvertently disclosed, no matter what the
circumstances, by any employee, officer or director, the person making or discovering that disclosure should
immediately report the facts to the Chief Legal Officer. e. Inquiries Regarding Material Nonpublic Information When an
inquiry is received regarding information that may be material, it should be referred, without comment, to the
Company’ s Investor Relations Department via investorrelations @ trinet. com. f. Reporting of Violations Any person
who believes that a violation of this Policy has taken place shall report such violation promptly to the Chief Legal
Officer. Any questions concerning this Policy should be directed to the Chief Legal Officer. [ 1 | Exercise of options that
involve a broker- assisted cashless exercise or similar sale transaction by Covered Persons require the prior approval of
the Chief Legal Officer. [ 2 | For Rule 10b5- 1 Plans entered into prior to the date of this Policy, open market trading is
not encouraged outside of the relevant plan and may cause your 10bS- 1 Plan to be cancelled. Exhibit 21. 1
SUBSIDIARIES OF TRINET GROUP, INC. Company Name IncorporationJurisdictionAmbrose Advisory Services, LLC New
YorkApp7, Inc. DelawareArchimedes Risk Solutions, Ltd. BermudaClarus R & D Solutions, LLCOhiolnsureYourPeople,
LLCDelawareManageY ourPeople, LLCDelawarePayY ourPeople, LLCDelawareTriNet Commercial Services, Inc.
DelawareTriNet Employer Group Canada, Inc. OntarioTriNet Enrich Administration, Inc. DelawareTriNet HR I, Inc.
OklahomaTriNet HR II, Inc. DelawareTriNet HR II Holdings, Inc. DelawareTriNet HR II- A, Inc. FloridaTriNet HR III, Inc.
CaliforniaTriNet HR III- A, Inc. DelawareTriNet HR III- B, Inc. DelawareTriNet HR IV, LLC New YorkTriNet HR X, Inc.
DelawareTriNet HR X1, Inc. DelawareTriNet Insurance Brokerage, Inc. DelawareTriNet MSB, Inc. DelawareTriNet
Professional Employer Services, Inc. DelawareTriNet SMB Services, Inc. DelawareTriNet FrastDelaware-TCR Operations S.
R. L. Costa Rica TriNet TrustDelawareTriNet USA, Inc. DelawareYourPeople, Inc. DelawareZenefits Development, Inc.
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CERTIFICATION BY PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY
ACT OF 2002 1, Burtenr™M-Michael Q . Getdfteld-Simonds , certify that: 1. [ have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10- K
of TriNet Group, Inc.; 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and
other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 4. The registrant' s other certifying
officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f)
and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: (a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure
controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared; (b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control
over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles; (c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant' s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; and (d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant' s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant' s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant' s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant' s internal control over
financial reporting; and 5. The registrant' s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant' s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant' s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent functions): (a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or
operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant' s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and (b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves
management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant' s internal control over financial reporting. Date:
February +5-13 , 2624-2025 / s / Burtonr™M-Michael Q . GotdfteldBurtonrM-SimondsMichael Q . GotdfieldPresident
SimondsPresident and Chief Executive Officer Exhibit 31. 2 CERTIFICATION BY PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER 1,
Kelly Tuminelli, certify that: Date: February +5-13 , 2824-2025 / s / Kelly TuminelliKelly TuminelliChief Financial Officer
Exhibit 32. 1 CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U. S. C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION
906 In connection with the Annual Report of TriNet Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “ Company ”’), on Form 10- K for
the year ending December 31, 2023-2024 as filed with the U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
Report ), each of the undersigned officers of the Company does hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. § 1350 (section 906 of
the Sarbanes- Oxley Act 0f2002), that: (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company. The foregoing certification (i) is given to such officers’
knowledge, based upon such officers’ investigation as such officers reasonably deem appropriate; and (ii) is being furnished
solely pursuant to 18 U. S. C. § 1350 (section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002) and is not being filed as part of the
Report or as a separate disclosure document and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (whether made before or after the date
of the Report), irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing. Date: February +5-13 , 2624-2025 / s
/ Burtenr-M-Michael Q . GeldfieldBurtenr-M-SimondsMichael Q . GeldfieldChief-SimondsChief Exccutive OfficerDate:
February 45-13 , 2024-2025 / s / Kelly TuminelliKelly TuminelliChief Financial Officer [ ST E! QSF? Z [9S 37=4]$ 02175
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